
Common Council

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers7:00 PMWednesday, August 21, 2024

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

D. ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONS

E. ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

F. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

24-1058 Common Council Meeting Minutes of August 7, 2024

 

CC Minutes 8-7-24.pdfAttachments:

G. BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR

24-1093 Confirmation of Appointment - Police & Fire Commission 

 

August 21 2024 Council Appointments Memo.pdfAttachments:

24-1128 Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Policy Board

 

8.21.24 MPO Policy Board Memo.pdfAttachments:

24-1094 Women's Equality Day Proclamation

 

Women's Equality Proclamation 2024.pdfAttachments:

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS

J. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 8/20/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24758
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9f46328d-dcf4-42c0-9f91-4414ffc2a1b2.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24793
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2a6a827d-ba37-49c0-a1cb-5ffda23981c4.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24828
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f94e1336-0d83-4bc2-a391-eda4d915b7ea.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24794
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=12d11f92-9b99-4761-ab40-a09db2e0207f.pdf


August 21, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

24-1072 Initial Resolution for the Street Vacation of N. Sampson Street, South of E. 

Winnebago Street

(Taken up under Consolidated Action Items) 

Sampson Street - Initial Resolution - Final.pdfAttachments:

K. ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAY

L. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

24-1036 Approve Boldt Permanent Street Occupancy Permit and Sign Permit for 5 

Awnings in College Avenue Right-of-Way Associated with the Fox 

Commons Project

Location 1 Awning Applications.pdf

Location 2 Awning Applications.pdf

Location 3 Awning Applications.pdf

Location 4 Awning Applications.pdf

Main Entrance Awning Applications.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1037 Approve Findorff Long Term Temporary Street Occupancy Permit in 

Oneida Street and City Center Street for Fox Commons Construction

J.H Findorff - City Center St - long term permit 9-6-24.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1038 Approve RODAC Long Term Temporary Street Occupancy Permit for 

dumpster within Morrison Street parking lane north of College Ave through 

11/15/2024  

RODAC - long-term occupancy permit 9-14-24.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1039 Award of Contract for Land Acquisition Services for Lawe Street 

reconstruction to Moss & Associates, in an amount not to exceed 

$217,000

MSC Memo Land Acquisition services Lawe St 08-12-2024.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 8/20/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24772
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=11f53e58-161b-43ed-ac8f-7029b28daf08.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24737
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ee63cd6b-d225-4741-8ed8-0b94ed1980ec.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b640a271-04b4-40d3-82a9-6fcdaae41034.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e6bc8836-07ad-49ac-a6bb-cb8afaef223a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9a73e817-9f89-4e2a-9730-1d954086adc3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=52158c39-f76d-498a-8279-9e2aac7d044f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24738
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9316fb85-ee3e-492d-b2f9-d7776690b073.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24739
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fcc77d34-bee3-4da1-95d9-65ac431ff7f6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24740
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1d6b4b9f-7c74-4409-babf-37a6369c97d2.pdf


August 21, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

8/12/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1040 Approve ordinance change to Install a stop sign on Catherine Street at 

North Street

Catherine-North (Yield to Stop).pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1041 Approve ordinance change to Install a stop sign on the north leg of Mary 

Street at North Street (for southbound traffic)

Mary-North (north leg) (Uncontrolled to Stop).pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1042 Approve ordinance change to Install a stop sign on the south leg of Mary 

Street at North Street (for northbound traffic)

Mary-North (south leg) (Uncontrolled to Stop).pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1044 Approve ordinance changes for Parking changes on Mason St by 

Jefferson ES (follow-up to a 6-month evaluation)

Mason St 1000S - Jefferson ES Parking Changes.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1045 Approve ordinance changes to Install a stop sign on Tonka Street at North 

Street

North-Tonka (Uncontrolled to Stop).pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1046 Approve street vacation for a 50’ x 70’ area of Sampson Street south of E. 

Winnebago Street 

Sampson Vacation Combined.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 8/20/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24741
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5ff2a406-9297-4188-be40-2de34eb7985d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24742
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e1e1f86f-1f1c-4222-9eac-d118a51024d0.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24743
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=51301ba9-157e-427e-bb84-6e6f2655107a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24744
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d244bab3-e65f-4647-8453-cf747eca5844.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24745
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a15e7fd5-826d-4164-994f-e6f051fd8478.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24746
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e835ba00-5b53-4044-b2bc-0d73f06cf9d2.pdf


August 21, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

24-1050 Amendment Request - Service Contract for Traffic Signal Control and 

Management Software

SISP Contract Award_Amendment Memo.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1051 Variance Request for Driveway Extension - 3039 N. Ballard Rd

3039 N Ballard Rd Drive Extension Variance Request Memo.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

Staff's recommendation to deny the variance was recommended for approval.

2. MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

24-0834 Non-Renewal of the Class "B" Fermented Malt Beverage & "Class B" 

Liquor License for Corner Pub, 1123 N Mason Street.  Kim Williams, 

Agent.

 

Corner Pub Alcohol Lic Non-Renewal MEMO - Atty.pdf

2024 Corner Pub Non-Renewal Hearing Notice.pdf

2023 Non-Use of License Letter- Corner Pub.pdf

CORNER_PUB 2023 Inspection Report.pdf

CORNER_PUB 2024 Inspection Report.pdf

Corner Pub 2024.2025 Renewal.pdf

Kim Williams-inspection letter.pdf

Inspections S&L Memo- Corner Pub 7-9-2024.pdf

7-10-24 - Corner Pub- Report of S&L to Common Council.pdf

Council Follow-up Memo CornerPub 7-15-24.pdf

7-24-24 Corner Pub Report of S&L to Council.pdf

8-14-24 Corner Pub S&L Findings of Fact.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

6/26/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

held

Kim Williams addressed the committee

7/10/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Motion failed 2/3

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 8/20/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24750
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=36293ebb-5289-4aa5-96af-2f16e9c5561e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24751
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7dfb264e-a9ee-47ea-bf27-3366a7ecfa16.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24535
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=83053232-84fb-4679-b861-e8407551c7e1.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4c9b21b8-b906-42a0-b83b-e517c101db73.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7a13fda0-768b-463d-86ab-813b2e0612da.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0a012120-541e-4722-b615-3607bf563f2d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5829e9b8-4071-48c0-a00a-bbe6b0ad0f86.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1474b99e-bd4a-4263-97b8-06ef367a99aa.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=51328876-dbdc-4bfc-a4c4-5374b0736ab4.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=964f58af-75e0-45cd-8cb8-bb9d7c87f357.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7f2319c6-1588-423a-8a0f-0dab89732c29.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c2ba2d60-b4ce-4a9f-b68a-1f31eb350b40.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=63e6b40f-8a6d-4b9f-adab-8779bedc4366.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ce34e6fd-996b-4c4e-8678-8681272fbfa9.pdf


August 21, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

7/10/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Approve a 60 day extension (commencing July 10th) for the licensee to 

complete remaining work to reopen the business and for the alcohol license to 

no longer be deemed abandoned. 

Motion failed 2/3.

7/10/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Approve the non-renewal of the alcohol license in accordance with the findings 

of the attached report.

Motion carried 3/2.

7/17/24 Common Council referred to the Safety and Licensing 

Committee

7/24/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Recommend approval of the non-renewal of the license.  Motion Failed 2/3

7/24/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Extend the license abandonment period to August 15th 2024.  Motion Carried 

3/2.

7/24/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

amended

Further extend abandonment to August 31st.  Motion Failed 2/3

8/7/24 Common Council referred to the Safety and Licensing 

Committee

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Motion to approve the renewal of the alcohol license. Passed 4/1

24-0986 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License Permanent 

Premises Amendment application for Rye Inc d/b/a Rye Restaurant, 

Nicolas Morse, Agent, located at 308 W. College Ave, contingent upon 

approval from all departments. 

Rye Restaurant Premise Amend. 2024.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-0987 Class "A" Beer and "Class A" Liquor License application for Dolgencorp 

LLC d/b/a Dollar General #6535, John Greene, Agent, located at 1320 W. 

Wisconsin Ave.

Dollar General 6535 Redacted.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 5 City of Appleton Printed on 8/20/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24687
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=96ed07ee-698e-4a82-bf72-353f20179f76.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24688
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7dfea047-0bef-4940-8c55-0acde69e8a88.pdf


August 21, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

24-0988 Cigarette, Tobacco, and Electronic Vaping Device License application for 

Dolgencorp LLC d/b/a Dollar General #6535, John Greene, Agent, located 

at 1320 W. Wisconsin Ave.

Dollar General 6535 Tob Redacted.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-0989 Class "A" Beer and "Class A" Liquor License application for Dolgencorp 

LLC d/b/a Dollar General #21851, John Greene, Agent, located at 1010 

W. College Ave.

Dollar General 21851 Redacted.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-0990 Cigarette, Tobacco, and Electronic Vaping Device License application for 

Dolgencorp LLC d/b/a Dollar General #21851, John Greene, Agent, 

located at 1010 W. College Ave.

Dollar General 21851 Tob Redacted.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-0992 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License Temporary 

Premises Amendment application for The Trout Museum of Art Inc d/b/a 

Trout Museum of Art, Christina Turner, Agent, located at 111 W. College 

Ave on Sept. 5, 2024 from 6 p.m. to 10 p.m. for Party for museum, 

contingent upon approval from the Health, Inspections, and Public Works 

Departments. 

Trout Museum Premise Amend. 9.5.24.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-0993 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License Temporary 

Premises Amendment application for Fox Cities Performing Arts Center 

Inc d/b/a Fox Cities Performing Arts Center, Maria Van Laanen, Agent, 

located at 400 W. College Ave, on August 21, 2024 from 3 p.m. to 9 p.m. 

for outdoor cookout Event, contingent upon approval from all departments.

Fox Cities PAC Temp Premise Amend 8.21.24.pdf

Temp Premises Amendment - PAC - Special Issuance Order 8.19.24.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 6 City of Appleton Printed on 8/20/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24689
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1fff5dec-7efd-467e-a7d9-c3b9c53d548a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24690
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=44dae94e-2d76-4408-8bcd-4bd1c66c2949.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24691
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b393bff5-1e4c-4256-b573-c9242e656822.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24693
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6aec59a3-c5e1-4e1c-8371-e94074ec0170.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24694
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=05111ce6-a3ad-407b-8d59-dee299944234.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bdbccd1e-8d9a-4ec8-8ae2-40839f1db3f3.pdf


August 21, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

24-0994 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License Temporary 

Premises Amendment application for Fox Cities Performing Arts Center 

Inc d/b/a Fox Cities Performing Arts Center, Maria Van Laanen, Agent, 

located at 400 W. College Ave, on October 4, 2024 from 4 p.m. to 1- p.m. 

for fundraiser Event, contingent upon approval from all departments.

Fox Cities PAC Temp Premise Amend 10.4.24.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1004 Class "B" Beer & Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for Rivera 

Restaurants LLC d/b/a Mr. Frogs on the Ave, Vanessa Alvarado, Agent, 

located at 409 W. College Ave, contingent upon approval from the Health, 

Inspections, and Public Works departments. 

Rivera Restaurants LLC Reserve Class B Combo Redacted.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1006 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for 

Gonzalez Mexican Grill LLC d/b/a Gonzalez Mexican Grill, Carolina 

Gonzalez Ramirez, Agent, located at 2190 S. Memorial Dr, contingent 

upon approval from the Finance, Inspections, and Public Works 

departments.

Gonzalez Mexican Grill LLC Class B Reserve Combo Redacted.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1009 Class "B" Beer License application for Lilac Enterprise LLC d/b/a May's 

Kitchen, May Vang, Agent, located at 1804 S. Lawe St. Ste 204.

May's Kitchen Redacted.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1010 Cigarette, Tobacco, and Electronic Vaping Device License application for 

Jaliyan Gas LLC d/b/a Wisconsin Avenue Pantry, Nilesh Patel, Agent, 

located at 111 W. Wisconsin Ave. 

Wisconsin Ave Pantry CTV Redacted.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 7 City of Appleton Printed on 8/20/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24695
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6b639eb7-5150-4fa6-9271-6459f44f41f8.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24705
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c93d0ba4-fcc3-42ac-972c-1143e6bf7f28.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24707
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e019846a-90fa-4802-a3bb-89976a603d1d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24710
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=84e18cf8-0583-43ee-8787-ade4793a4e95.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24711
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=499298e6-dee3-4cd9-984d-ea9e24b4064e.pdf


August 21, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

24-1011 Cigarette, Tobacco, and Electronic Vaping Device License application for 

Swami LLC d/b/a Northland Amoco, Kanu Patel, Agent, located at 800 E. 

Northland Ave. 

Northland Amoco Tobacco Redacted.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1012 Cigarette, Tobacoo, and Electronic Vaping Device License application for 

Sai Krupa LLC d/b/a Richmond Citgo, Nilesh Patel, Agent, located at 1601 

N. Richmond St.

Richmond Citgo Tobacco Redacted.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

3. MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION

24-1032 Request to approve the street discontinuance to vacate a portion of N. 

Sampson Street public right-of-way located south of E. Winnebago Street 

and adopt the Initial Resolution and exhibit map

StaffReport_NSampsonSt_ StreetVacation_For8-14-24.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

24-1033 Request to approve the land disposition of the land locked parcel located 

between E. Winnebago Street and Bellaire Court (Tax Id #31-1-1275-00), 

in accordance with Wis. Stat. §62.23(5) pertaining to surplus of public 

lands, as shown on the attached map

DispositionofSurplusLand_MemotoCPC_For8-14-24.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

4. MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

24-1054 2024 Reid Irrigation Update Memo

 

2024 Reid Irrigation Update Memo.pdf

2024 Reid Irrigation Update Sole Source Request.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Parks and Recreation 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 8 City of Appleton Printed on 8/20/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24712
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b1873b88-96d4-482e-a665-d2f87b3d83e3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24713
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0fa2332a-d92e-45e2-b9e3-446efb3e6462.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24733
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7e60afff-d12f-46a1-b311-da26554fdaca.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24734
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=95bbdbfb-d363-4b9c-b99e-69315ddd15d6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24754
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=96637044-0158-4fa8-a9c6-8acc3f1c5aa4.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b55be1e6-29a2-485b-932d-5abb5449dccd.pdf


August 21, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

24-1055 Irish Fest - Request Private Event Memo

Irish Fest - Request Private Event Memo.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Parks and Recreation 

Committee

recommended for approval

Approval of action as noted in the 8/12/2024 memo

24-1057 Mom Prom Memo - Raffle License

 

Mom Prom Memo - Raffle License.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Parks and Recreation 

Committee

recommended for approval

Approve request to obtain a raffle license for event as set forth in memo.

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

24-0972 Resolution #8-R-24 to Require a Super Majority Vote on Wheel Tax or 

Wheel Tax Related Fee Increases

 

#8-R-24 Require Super Majority Vote on Wheel Tax Fee Changes.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

7/22/24 Finance Committee held

8/12/24 Finance Committee recommended for approval

24-1063 Request to approve to de-obligate a portion of two existing ARPA fund 

allocations and re-obligate to Human Resources Strategic Planning 

Project

Finance Committee Memo - HR Strategic Planning ARPA.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Finance Committee recommended for approval

24-1064 Request to approve State/Municipal Financial Agreement for I-41/Ballard 

Interchange Project (2025 City Cost Share $435,200).  

I-41 Ballard SMFA Finance Memo w Attachment 08-12-2024.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Finance Committee recommended for approval

Page 9 City of Appleton Printed on 8/20/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24755
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=245078ca-6b1c-49c6-b4f4-762281084027.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24757
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=16a8e09c-9714-46af-9eb1-baf30b19ef0d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24673
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=466b496a-e6c9-44ca-b9e4-3ad8b45580f4.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24763
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3de224df-d4ae-4396-82e9-21f174f0c88e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24764
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=945ee7b0-f633-470a-98b8-d924ad77292f.pdf


August 21, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

24-1069 Request to approve the following budget amendments:

Valley Transit Fund

Federal Grants (RAISE) +$25,000,000

Federal Grants (ARPA) +$  1,800,000

Buildings +$26,800,000

To fund Transit Center reconstruction project with grant funds (2/3 vote of 

Council required)

Valley Transit Fund

Federal Grants (Section 5339b) +$15,000,000

Buildings +$15,000,000

To fund Whitman facility remodel with grant funds (2/3 vote Council 

required)

Valley Transit Fund

Federal Grants (Cares Act) +$4,191,645

Buildings +$4,191,645

To fund Whitman facility remodel with grant funds (2/3 vote of Council 

required)

Legislative History 

8/12/24 Finance Committee recommended for approval

6. MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

7. MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE

8. MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

9. MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION

24-0976 Authorization to Accept Fiscal Year 2024 Federal 5339 (b) Funds for 

$12,000,000 for the Whitman Facility Remodel Phase 2

FY24 Bus Grant Award for Appleton - Congratulations! email .pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

7/23/24 Fox Cities Transit 

Commission

recommended for approval

Proceeds to Council on August 21, 2024.

8/12/24 Finance Committee recommended for approval

Page 10 City of Appleton Printed on 8/20/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24769
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24677
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7406717d-28b8-4d21-b8a9-0405e5170593.pdf


August 21, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

24-0977 Authorization to Accept Fiscal Year 2024 Rebuilding American 

Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity (RAISE) discretionary grant for 

$25,000,000 for the Downtown Appleton Regional Transit Multimodal Hub

2024 RAISE Grant Award letter.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

7/23/24 Fox Cities Transit 

Commission

recommended for approval

Proceeds to Council on August 21, 2024.

8/12/24 Finance Committee recommended for approval

10. MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

24-1022 Policy Review: N200 Child Passenger Safety Program

POL_N200_Child Passenger Safety Program_DRAFT.pdf

POL_N200_Attachments.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Board of Health recommended for approval

Presented by Deputy Director, Sonja Jensen.

A motion was made by Alderperson Vaya Jones, seconded by Alderperson Nate 

Wolff, that Policy Review: N200 Child Passenger Safety Program was 

recommended for approval.  The motion carried by the following vote:

24-1026 Animal Ordinance Memorandum

2024.08.02_AnimalOrdinanceMemorandum_a.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/14/24 Board of Health recommended for approval

Presented by Health Officer, Charles Sepers.

A motion was made by Alderperson Nate Wolff, seconded by Deborah Werth, 

that Animal Ordinance Memorandum was recommended for approval.  The 

motion carried by the following vote:

M. CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMS

24-1092 Street Vacation for N Sampson Street Consolidated Action Items

24-1032 City Plan Commission - recommended for approval

24-1046 Municipal Services Committee - recommended for approval

24-1072 Initial Resolution

 

N. ITEMS HELD

O. ORDINANCES

Page 11 City of Appleton Printed on 8/20/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24678
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=68be2ee9-233a-4d90-89ff-370362567467.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24723
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1e713de5-1c28-4b8c-bcce-5c4c54f1a02e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=561b1ec5-9910-411f-828f-41bdc72a9e52.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24727
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=091a433b-52e2-4ac8-bfe5-2edc0f28cc8f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24792


August 21, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

24-1090 Ordinances #100-24 & #101-24

Ordinances to Council 8-21-24.pdfAttachments:

P. LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION

Q. RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION

R. OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESS

S. ADJOURN

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and 

if feasible.  

Remote meeting attendance may be permitted pursuant to Section 2-29 of the Appleton 

Municipal Code and Rules of Council.

Page 12 City of Appleton Printed on 8/20/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24790
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0832ec3e-37f9-4226-84c9-cb8103029bad.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, August 7, 2024

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Woodford at 7:00 p.m.

INVOCATIONB.

A moment of silent reflection was held.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson 

Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt, Alderperson Chad Doran and Mayor Jake Woodford

Present: 15 - 

Alderperson Patti HeffernanAbsent: 1 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All Departments were represented.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

24-0985 Common Council Meeting Minutes of July 17, 2024

CC Minutes 7-17-24.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Croatt, that the 

Minutes be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson 

Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Absent: Alderperson Patti Heffernan1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24686
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=82a87093-052b-4e86-b858-7b3316bf23b0.pdf


August 7, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

24-1018 Proclamations:

  - Creative Economy Week

  - Breastfeeding Awareness Month
 

Creative Economy Week Proclamation 2024.pdf

Breastfeeding Month Proclamation 2024.pdf

Attachments:

24-1019 Public Works Director Recommendation
 

DPW Director Recommendation to Council.pdf

L. Jungwirth_Resume Updated.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Alfheim, that the 

Public Works Director recommendation be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried 

by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson 

Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Absent: Alderperson Patti Heffernan1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

Kim Williams, 1123 N Mason St. spoke regarding Item 24-0834 Corner Pub Alcohol 

License Non-renewal

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24719
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f2875afc-52e6-4463-91b8-2538cab09021.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=90a5f6dd-0d83-415c-b7bf-3e4be7fd33c3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24720
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4df89128-c5b2-4384-a21f-490c3e0332fd.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ba39e323-3a0e-46cb-859f-d5be8d1d219d.pdf


August 7, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

24-0834 Non-Renewal of the Class "B" Fermented Malt Beverage & "Class B" 

Liquor License for Corner Pub, 1123 N Mason Street.  Kim Williams, 

Agent.
 

Corner Pub Alcohol Lic Non-Renewal MEMO - Atty.pdf

2024 Corner Pub Non-Renewal Hearing Notice.pdf

2023 Non-Use of License Letter- Corner Pub.pdf

CORNER_PUB 2023 Inspection Report.pdf

CORNER_PUB 2024 Inspection Report.pdf

Corner Pub 2024.2025 Renewal.pdf

Kim Williams-inspection letter.pdf

Inspections S&L Memo- Corner Pub 7-9-2024.pdf

7-10-24 - Corner Pub- Report of S&L to Common Council.pdf

Council Follow-up Memo CornerPub 7-15-24.pdf

7-24-24 Corner Pub Report of S&L to Council.pdf

Attachments:

Motion by Croatt, seconded by Firkus to refer this item back to the Safety and 

Licensing Committee due back on 8/14/2024.  Roll. Call.  Motion carried 13/1 

(Doran).

24-1014 Request to approve a resolution authorizing and providing for the sale 

and issuance of $13,500,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, 

Series 2024 and all related details.

Appleton 2024 GO Promissory Notes - Award Resolution.pdf

Appleton 2024 G.O. Promissory Notes - Award Resolution FINAL.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Fenton, that the 

Resolution for General Obligation Promissory Notes in the amount of 

$13,500,000 be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson 

Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Absent: Alderperson Patti Heffernan1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 3City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24535
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=83053232-84fb-4679-b861-e8407551c7e1.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4c9b21b8-b906-42a0-b83b-e517c101db73.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7a13fda0-768b-463d-86ab-813b2e0612da.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0a012120-541e-4722-b615-3607bf563f2d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5829e9b8-4071-48c0-a00a-bbe6b0ad0f86.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1474b99e-bd4a-4263-97b8-06ef367a99aa.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=51328876-dbdc-4bfc-a4c4-5374b0736ab4.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=964f58af-75e0-45cd-8cb8-bb9d7c87f357.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7f2319c6-1588-423a-8a0f-0dab89732c29.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c2ba2d60-b4ce-4a9f-b68a-1f31eb350b40.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=63e6b40f-8a6d-4b9f-adab-8779bedc4366.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24715
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=59e04a60-b5ae-41e1-a706-9d83a85a511f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2c643178-3191-4308-87a2-728918dac401.pdf


August 7, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

24-1015 Request to approve a resolution authorizing and providing for the sale 

and issuance of $12,910,000 $12,630,000 Sewerage System Revenue 

Bonds, Series 2024 and all related details.

Appleton 2024 Sewer Revenue Bonds - Award Resolution.pdf

Appleton 2024 Sewer Revenue Bonds - Award Resolution FINAL.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Fenton moved, seconded by Alderperson Van Zeeland, that the 

Resolution for Sewerage System Revenue Bonds in the amount of $12,630,000 

be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson 

Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Absent: Alderperson Patti Heffernan1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, Alderperson Croatt seconded, to approve the 

balance of the agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson 

Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Absent: Alderperson Patti Heffernan1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

24-0946 Approve the request from The 513 Appleton, LLC for a permanent 

street occupancy permit at 513 W. College Avenue for five exterior 

sconce lights to extend into the College Avenue right-of-way 

approximately 5 inches at a height of approximately 11 feet and 

greater.

The 513 Appleton LLC - Permanent Occupancy Permit App College 

Ave MSC 07-22-2024.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 4City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24716
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c9a072a0-e061-4e56-bac9-c75d3e5e3d1f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3283e71e-c5b6-4cc7-a6d1-a3d00765360d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24647
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=42965efb-d889-4dd1-8412-def6e41953cc.pdf


August 7, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

24-0947 Approve Utility Easement Release of Rights for I-41 Project Water 

Main Relocation

I-41 Ballard Ease Release MSC Memo w Attachments 

07-22-2024.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-0948 Approve State/Municipal Agreement for the design and construction of 

the Lawe Street Bridge over the Navigational Canal. 

4984-24-76_77 C APPLETON, LAWE STREET, STATE 

MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT P-44-0719.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-0949 Approve ordinance changes related to the B-24 Summit St 

Reconstruction Project (Packard St to Elsie St). 

Summit (Packard to Elsie) B-24 Parking Changes.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-0950 Approve ordinance changes related to the B-24 Summit St 

Reconstruction Project (Prospect Av to Fourth St)

Summit (Prospect to Fourth) B-24 Parking Changes.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

24-0919 Class "B" Beer & Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for 

ODH Appleton, Inc d/b/a Cambria Hotel Appleton, Troy Graverson, 

Agent, located at 3940 N. Gateway Dr, contingent upon approval from 

the Health, Inspections, and Public Works departments. 

ODH Appleton.Cambria App Redacted.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-0920 Class "B" Beer & "Class B" Liquor License application for Ka Lee and 

Peng Xiong d/b/a Shadows Food and Spirits, located at 211 S. Walter 

Ave, contingent upon approval from the Inspections and Public Works 

departments. 
 

Shadows Food & Spirits App Redacted.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 5City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24648
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=19bfefe3-1523-4fdc-a886-d78a8158275b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24649
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6399fca9-4c2c-481c-a623-f8b5618479d1.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24650
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=028ae7d7-0fe9-48d6-8eaf-7cc77e83bf21.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24651
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1a2aa979-4d2e-48ce-b5e7-95f274bc58e1.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24620
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=90974449-a0b5-4572-9012-48f5fa51ed53.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24621
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e8b2fda5-ddd1-400c-8e70-4252bf581aed.pdf


August 7, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

24-0921 Pet Store renewal application for Lucky Fish & Aquarium LLC, 

Keeteekune Thao, Applicant, located at 337 W. Wisconsin Ave, 

contingent upon approval from all departments. 
 

Lucky Fish & Aquarium 2024 Renewal Redacted.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-0951 Cigarette, Tobacco, and Electronic Vaping Device License renewal 

application for Patrick Flanagan d/b/a Flanagan's Stop & Shop, Patrick 

Flanagan, Agent, located at 522 W. College Ave.
 

Flanagan's Tobacco Redacted.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

24-0957 Request to approve Riverside Cemetery Association reimbursement 

request for maintenance of Veteran graves.

RS cemetery grave reimbursment 2024_1-1.pdf

Copy of Military Report 2023 - 2024.pdf

VETERANS JULY 2023 - JUNE 2024.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-0958 Request to reject bid from Neumann Pools Inc. for the Mead Pool 

Plastering Project.

2024 Mead Pool Re-Coating Project (reject bids).pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 6City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24622
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3363f137-c466-40a0-87de-69943f1fa4b7.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24652
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a4a81ceb-8af9-4081-bfb3-3c2665acc133.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24658
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2db52bde-550e-4e89-9769-ffd728303201.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2f9b29f9-2a09-45c8-a3b0-7c64bda063d5.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d18b56b9-4cd3-43e5-afa3-4324dff2740a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24659
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f00a301c-1640-4ee8-ab70-eca7b3f61709.pdf


August 7, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

24-0959 Request to approve Change Order No. 2 to contract 21-24 for H-23 

Lightning Drive Extension Phase 1 for added drain tile and earthwork, 

in the amount of $72,830.00 resulting in a decrease in contingency 

from $92,934.82 to $20,104.82. Overall contract increases from 

$1,622,361.12 to $1,695,191.12.

H-23 Change Order 2 Finance Memo Final.pdf

Copy of H-23 Change Order 2 Final.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-0960 Request to award the 2024 Police Station Gun Range Door Project to 

IEI general contractor in the amount of $44,838 with a 10% 

contingency of $4,484 for a project total not to exceed $49,322, along 

with the following budget amendment (2/3 vote of Council required):

2024 Fire Station Alarm Upgrade Project - $3,502

2024 Police Station Gun Range Door project +$3,502

Police Station Firing Range Door.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-0961 Request to reject base bid from August Winter & Sons in the amount 

of $2,617,900 for the Appleton Wastewater Treatment Plant Primary 

Clarifier #1 - #4 Rehabilitation Project.

PrimClarifer1-4 Rehab_Bid rejection memo.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-0962 Request to approve Change Order #1 to Sabel Mechanical as part of 

the AWWTP Final Clarifier Tank Underdrain and Tank Drain 

Rehabilitation Contract Project totaling $8,837 resulting in a decrease 

in contingency from $6,662 to $0.00 with the balance of $2,175 

covered by available project funds.

240719_Finance Memo_Change Order 1_Sabel amended.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1016 Resolution for Emergency Green Ramp Repairs and Reconstruction

0360 - Finance Memo - Emergency Green Ramp Repairs - 

FINAL.pdf

0360 - Resolution - Emergency Green Ramp Repairs - FINAL.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 7City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24660
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f452e3cc-cc6b-45c5-8cd0-3bd6de81cdd3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3912ab79-90f1-4dc1-b1e8-d8d024e59666.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24661
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a77f7f7d-efaf-4cf5-b2d3-c67fb060292d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24662
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=70f7d47b-dd25-494c-afa0-adc030c6665f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24663
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fff27ece-b02b-494e-bfb6-ee9383346635.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24717
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b113f2c8-f596-47f3-ad0f-6c9b94fc78ed.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8d3bf10f-2c17-4f4e-b486-e54f795e90b4.pdf


August 7, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

24-1017 Request to approve sole source contract with Restoration Systems, 

Inc. to complete Phase 1 of the Green Ramp Barrier Panel Emergency 

Repair in an amount not to exceed $47,230.

Finance Award Memo Green Ramp Phase 1 Shoring Installation 

Contract RSI_FINAL.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

24-0953 Award Apple Hill Farms Pond 4 Outlet Pipe Repair Contract to 

Advance Construction, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $28,000.
 

AHF Pond 4 Outlet Repairs - UC Memo Final 07-23-2024.pdf

Contract Award Form - AHF Pond 4 Outlet Repair - Final.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

8.

24-0941 Request to Approve RingCentral SaaS for $209,000.
 

Request to Approve RingCentral SaaS for $209,000.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

ITEMS HELDN.

ORDINANCESO.

24-0984 Ordinance #99-24 (Rescinding No Mow May)

Ordinances to Council 8-7-24.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Hayden, that the 

Ordinance be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Page 8City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24718
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6c4576d4-24a9-475a-bdb5-1f85465e3b6e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24654
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f6de0458-d563-479f-9a2a-e11bf25976b3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4f4b648c-525e-40e1-af53-015745c79a9e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24642
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=901ff891-e0ed-47d3-b6ec-44d44df734dd.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24685
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5e578989-49cf-4437-b230-0029705308e3.pdf


August 7, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson 

Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise 

Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Alex Schultz, 

Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

12 - 

Nay: Alderperson Vered Meltzer and Alderperson Nate Wolff2 - 

Absent: Alderperson Patti Heffernan1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
Q.

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

ADJOURNS.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Hayden, that the 

meeting be adjourned at 7:16 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson 

Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Absent: Alderperson Patti Heffernan1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 9City of Appleton



 
 
Date: August 21, 2024 

To: Members of the Common Council 

From: Mayor Jacob A. Woodford  

Subject: Confirmation of Appointment 

 

It is with pleasure that I present the following recommendation for your confirmation at the 

August 21, 2024, Common Council meeting.  

 

Police and Fire Commission – Appointment 

 

 Dan Weiske  Term Ends May 2029 

 

Dan Weiske is a retired police officer with a 30-year career in law enforcement. He has served 

in various capacities at the Appleton Police Department, culminating in his last role as Police 

Captain. Throughout his career, Dan has also held other key positions, including Lieutenant of 

Investigative Services, Lieutenant of Operations (Coordination), Investigator, Crime Scene 

Processor (ID Technician), Community Liaison Officer, and Field Training Officer (FTO). In 

addition to his service in Appleton, Dan has contributed his skills to the Woodville (WI) Police 

Department and served as a part-time Game Warden with the Department of Natural Resources 

(WI). He is also a proud veteran of the United States Air Force, where he served a four-year 

term as a Crew Chief. Dan currently owns and operates his own business as a licensed 

contractor. 



 
 
Date: August 21, 2024 

To: Members of the Common Council 

From: Mayor Jacob A. Woodford  

Subject: MPO Policy Board Appointments 

 

East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission has undergone a process to better align 

with best governance practices and federal regulations with respect to the Metropolitan Planning 

Organization (MPO). Previously, the Commission Board served as the MPO policy board, which 

oversees planning initiatives and state/federal funding allocation for projects within the MPO 

area.  

 

As a part of this change, the City of Appleton will have a total of four voting members on the 

board. The board must be made up of elected officials. After consideration of options and 

absent any regulatory guidance on how appointments are handled, I recommend the following:  

 

1. Mayor 

2. Council President 

3. Council Vice President 

4. Council-Appointed Plan Commission Representative 

 

The rationale for these recommendations is that the mayor is a citywide elected official and has 

administrative oversight of city departments responsible for implementation of plans. Each of the 

three Common Council appointees are elected by the Council to serve in their roles. Moving 

forward, my recommendation would be to simply include the MPO Policy Board role as a 

component of the respective roles for each of these positions. This should make the process 

relatively seamless and ensure that our MPO representatives are recognized by their fellow 

alders as leaders of the Council.  

 





INITIAL RESOLUTION 
 

WHEREAS, the public interest requires that a portion of Sampson Street, south of 

East Winnebago Street, that has not previously been vacated, be vacated and 

discontinued, 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of Appleton, Wisconsin, 

hereby determines that the public interest requires that a portion of Sampson Street, City 

of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin, as hereinafter described, is hereby vacated 

and discontinued pursuant to §66.1003 of the Wisconsin Statutes. 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
The North 70 feet of Sampson Street, bounded on the North by the 
South line of Winnebago Street, on the West by Block 79 of the 1st Ward 
Plat, and on the East by Block 77 of the 1st Ward Plat and also Lot 44 
of the Garfield Place Plat, all according to the recorded Assessor’s Plat 
of the City of Appleton, being located in the NW ¼ of Section 25, T.21N., 
R.17E., City of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin. 
 
See also attached Exhibit “A” for illustration. 

  
COMMON DESCRIPTION: 

Portion of Sampson Street, south of East Winnebago Street that has not 
previously been vacated 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk of the City of Appleton be authorized 

and directed to give notice required by §66.1003 of the Wisconsin Statutes. 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that according to §66.1005 of the Wisconsin Statutes, 

upon vacation and discontinuance of said part of Sampson Street, title to the above-

described street shall belong to the adjoining property owners and shall acquire an 

ownership interest in the entire area being vacated as shown on the attached Exhibit Map. 

 
By:  _________________________________ 
 
Date:  _______________________________ 
City Law A24-0345 



 

































































Closing Oneida Street and City Center Street for Fox Commons construction

Peter Neuberger
Line

Peter Neuberger
Line



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

METER BAG APPLICATION

Fee is $9.00 per day plus tax or any part thereof.

THIS FEE WILL BE CHARGED FOR EVERY DAY THE METER BAG IS RESERVED
(excluding Sundays and Holidays).

NOTE: Meter bags shall not be used on red meters. If a red meter is found bagged, the bag
will be removed and the vehicle will be ticketed.

Company Name .....................................................................................................................

Agent......................................................................................................................................

Company Address..................................................................................................................

Phone Number .....................................................................................................................

Reason ...................................................................................................................................

Location ................................................................................................................................

Zone & Space# .......................................................................................................................

Date(s)....................................................................................................................................

Amount Due...........................................................................................................................
($9.00 per bag per day plus tax)

Approved by ..........................................................................................................................
Department of Public Works Representative

..................................................



GENERAL NOTES:
THIS TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.

TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN IS NOT TO SCALE.

WARNING LITES OF APPLETON, INC. ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR LAYOUT

& SETUP OF ACCEPTED TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

THE CITY OF APPLETON DECIDES FINAL APPROVAL OF TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

ADVANCED WARNING SIGNS WILL BE MOUNTED ON PORTABLE SUPPORTS.

THE EXACT NUMBER, LOCATION, AND SPACING OF ALL SIGNS AND DEVICES.

SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO FIT FIELD CONDITIONS AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

START DATE & TIME

DURATION:
www.warningliteswi.com920-725-0757

“Safety Is Our Business”

Of Appleton, Inc.

1-920-725-0757

Warning Lites
TRAFFIC SAFETY & SUPPLY

LEGEND
SIGN SYMBOL

CHANNELIZER DRUM

TYPE III BARRICADE

DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC

Project Number

Sheet Number

Owner

Prime Contractor Traffic Control Contractor

Project Name

Date

Prepared By

Phone

CITY OF APPLETON

City Center Plaza

Findorff Warning Lites of Appleton, Inc.

N/A

920-725-0757 1 07/29/2024

Lance G Mauel

42” DELINEATOR CONE

STREET VIEW OF
ROADWAY CLOSED

TO TRAFFIC FOR
DRIVE-THRU

ROAD
CLOSED

SIDEWALK
CLOSED

SIDEWALK
CLOSED

CLOSURE TO START
AUGUST 1ST

THROUGH DECEMBER
8TH, 2024



GENERAL NOTES:
THIS TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.

TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN IS NOT TO SCALE.

WARNING LITES OF APPLETON, INC. ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR LAYOUT

& SETUP OF ACCEPTED TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

THE CITY OF APPLETON DECIDES FINAL APPROVAL OF TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

ADVANCED WARNING SIGNS WILL BE MOUNTED ON PORTABLE SUPPORTS.

THE EXACT NUMBER, LOCATION, AND SPACING OF ALL SIGNS AND DEVICES.

SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO FIT FIELD CONDITIONS AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

START DATE & TIME

DURATION:
www.warningliteswi.com920-725-0757

“Safety Is Our Business”

Of Appleton, Inc.

1-920-725-0757

Warning Lites
TRAFFIC SAFETY & SUPPLY

LEGEND
SIGN SYMBOL

CHANNELIZER DRUM

TYPE III BARRICADE

DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC

42” DELINEATOR CONE

ROAD
CLOSED

STREET VIEW OF ALLEY
CLOSURE. BARRICADES

FACING WEST

SIDEWALK
CLOSED

Project Number

Sheet Number

Owner

Prime Contractor Traffic Control Contractor

Project Name

Date

Prepared By

Phone

CITY OF APPLETON

City Center Plaza

Findorff Warning Lites of Appleton, Inc.

N/A

920-725-0757 2 07/29/2024

Lance G Mauel



GENERAL NOTES:
THIS TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.

TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN IS NOT TO SCALE.

WARNING LITES OF APPLETON, INC. ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR LAYOUT

& SETUP OF ACCEPTED TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

THE CITY OF APPLETON DECIDES FINAL APPROVAL OF TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

ADVANCED WARNING SIGNS WILL BE MOUNTED ON PORTABLE SUPPORTS.

THE EXACT NUMBER, LOCATION, AND SPACING OF ALL SIGNS AND DEVICES.

SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO FIT FIELD CONDITIONS AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

START DATE & TIME

DURATION:
www.warningliteswi.com920-725-0757

“Safety Is Our Business”

Of Appleton, Inc.

1-920-725-0757

Warning Lites
TRAFFIC SAFETY & SUPPLY

LEGEND
SIGN SYMBOL

CHANNELIZER DRUM

TYPE III BARRICADE

DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC

42” DELINEATOR CONE

SIDEWALK
CLOSED

SIDEWALK CLOSURE
AT ALLEY EXIT

Project Number

Sheet Number

Owner

Prime Contractor Traffic Control Contractor

Project Name

Date

Prepared By

Phone

CITY OF APPLETON

City Center Plaza

Findorff Warning Lites of Appleton, Inc.

N/A

920-725-0757 3 07/29/2024

Lance G Mauel

CITY TO FURNISH & INSTALL
“AUTHORIZED VEHICLES ONLY”

SIGNS,
COMPENSABLE BY FINDORFF



GENERAL NOTES:
THIS TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.

TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN IS NOT TO SCALE.

WARNING LITES OF APPLETON, INC. ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR LAYOUT

& SETUP OF ACCEPTED TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

THE CITY OF APPLETON DECIDES FINAL APPROVAL OF TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

ADVANCED WARNING SIGNS WILL BE MOUNTED ON PORTABLE SUPPORTS.

THE EXACT NUMBER, LOCATION, AND SPACING OF ALL SIGNS AND DEVICES.

SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO FIT FIELD CONDITIONS AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

START DATE & TIME

DURATION:
www.warningliteswi.com920-725-0757

“Safety Is Our Business”

Of Appleton, Inc.

1-920-725-0757

Warning Lites
TRAFFIC SAFETY & SUPPLY

LEGEND
SIGN SYMBOL

CHANNELIZER DRUM

TYPE III BARRICADE

DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC

42” DELINEATOR CONE

ROAD
WORK
AHEAD

ROAD
WORK
AHEAD

ROAD
CLOSED
AHEAD

WASHINGTON ST
SIDEWALK TO
REMAIN OPEN

ROAD
CLOSED

Project Number

Sheet Number

Owner

Prime Contractor Traffic Control Contractor

Project Name

Date

Prepared By

Phone

CITY OF APPLETON

City Center Plaza

Findorff Warning Lites of Appleton, Inc.

N/A

920-725-0757 4 07/29/2024

Lance G Mauel

SIDEWALK
CLOSED

SIDEWALK
CLOSED

ARIAL VIEW WHEN
ALLEY IS CLOSED



GENERAL NOTES:
THIS TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.

TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN IS NOT TO SCALE.

WARNING LITES OF APPLETON, INC. ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR LAYOUT

& SETUP OF ACCEPTED TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

THE CITY OF APPLETON DECIDES FINAL APPROVAL OF TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

ADVANCED WARNING SIGNS WILL BE MOUNTED ON PORTABLE SUPPORTS.

THE EXACT NUMBER, LOCATION, AND SPACING OF ALL SIGNS AND DEVICES.

SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO FIT FIELD CONDITIONS AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

START DATE & TIME

DURATION:
www.warningliteswi.com920-725-0757

“Safety Is Our Business”

Of Appleton, Inc.

1-920-725-0757

Warning Lites
TRAFFIC SAFETY & SUPPLY

LEGEND
SIGN SYMBOL

CHANNELIZER DRUM

TYPE III BARRICADE

DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC

42” DELINEATOR CONE

WHEN ROAD IS OPEN, PROVIDE
SIGN INDICATING “ROAD OPEN TO

DRIVE UP WINDOW”. VERIFY
MESSAGE WITH CITY FINANCE

DEPARTMENT

Project Number

Sheet Number

Owner

Prime Contractor Traffic Control Contractor

Project Name

Date

Prepared By

Phone

CITY OF APPLETON

City Center Plaza

Findorff Warning Lites of Appleton, Inc.

N/A

920-725-0757 5 07/29/2024

Lance G Mauel

SIDEWALK
CLOSED

SIDEWALK
CLOSED

ROAD TO REMAIN
OPEN FROM

DECEMBER 9TH OR
SOONER THROUGH
JANUARY 31ST 2025



GENERAL NOTES:
THIS TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.

TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN IS NOT TO SCALE.

WARNING LITES OF APPLETON, INC. ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR LAYOUT

& SETUP OF ACCEPTED TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

THE CITY OF APPLETON DECIDES FINAL APPROVAL OF TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

ADVANCED WARNING SIGNS WILL BE MOUNTED ON PORTABLE SUPPORTS.

THE EXACT NUMBER, LOCATION, AND SPACING OF ALL SIGNS AND DEVICES.

SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO FIT FIELD CONDITIONS AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

START DATE & TIME

DURATION:
www.warningliteswi.com920-725-0757

“Safety Is Our Business”

Of Appleton, Inc.

1-920-725-0757

Warning Lites
TRAFFIC SAFETY & SUPPLY

LEGEND
SIGN SYMBOL

CHANNELIZER DRUM

TYPE III BARRICADE

DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC

42” DELINEATOR CONE

ROAD
WORK
AHEAD

ROAD
WORK
AHEAD

WASHINGTON ST
SIDEWALK TO
REMAIN OPEN

Project Number

Sheet Number

Owner

Prime Contractor Traffic Control Contractor

Project Name

Date

Prepared By

Phone

CITY OF APPLETON

City Center Plaza

Findorff Warning Lites of Appleton, Inc.

N/A

920-725-0757 6 07/29/2024

Lance G Mauel

SIDEWALK
CLOSED

ROAD
WORK
AHEAD

ARIAL VIEW WHEN
ALLEY IS OPEN



Boldt Laydown

Findorff Laydown

Drive lane required between spaces

Findorff Laydown

August 1 - October 31, 2024 - Permit paid for by Findorff, Meter bagged paid for by Findorff and Boldt (50/50
split) TCP paid and managed by Boldt

November 2024 Permit paid for by Findorff, Meter bagged paid for by Findorff, TCP paid for and managed by
Findorff

Boldt Laydown

One off
deliveries
coordinated
with JHF

Fencing as required

Fencing as required



TOTAL BAG DAYS = 448

Rate = $9.00/day + tax 4,253.76$             

ZONE 9201 - 
ONN205

ZONE 9201 - 
ONN206

ZONE 9201 - 
ONN207

ZONE 9201 - 
ONN208

ZONE 9201 - 
ONN102

ZONE 9201 - 
ONN104

ZONE 9201 - 
ONN106

8/17/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
8/18/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
8/19/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
8/20/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
8/21/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
8/22/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
8/23/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
8/24/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
8/25/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
8/26/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
8/27/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
8/28/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
8/29/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
8/30/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
8/31/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/1/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
9/2/24 Monday HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY
9/3/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/4/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/5/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/6/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/7/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/8/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
9/9/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

9/10/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/11/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/12/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/13/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/14/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/15/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
9/16/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/17/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/18/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/19/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/20/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/21/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/22/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
9/23/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/24/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/25/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/26/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/27/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/28/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9/29/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
9/30/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/1/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/2/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/3/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/4/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/5/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/6/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
10/7/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

DATE

Alley/Oneida St

8/17/24 to 10/31/24

DAY

Findorff and Boldt - Alley/Oneida St - Meter Bags



10/8/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/9/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

10/10/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/11/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/12/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/13/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
10/14/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/15/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/16/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/17/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/18/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/19/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/20/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
10/21/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/22/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/23/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/24/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/25/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/26/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/27/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
10/28/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/29/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/30/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
10/31/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

64 64 64 64 64 64 64
TOTAL BAG DAYS = 448
Rate = $9.00/day + tax 4,253.76$   



TOTAL BAG DAYS = 210

Rate = $9.00/day + tax 1,993.95$             

ZONE 9201 - 
ONN205

ZONE 9201 - 
ONN206

ZONE 9201 - 
ONN207

ZONE 9201 - 
ONN208

ZONE 9201 - 
ONN102

ZONE 9201 - 
ONN104

ZONE 9201 - 
ONN106

11/1/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/2/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/3/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
11/4/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/5/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/6/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/7/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/8/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/9/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

11/10/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
11/11/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/12/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/13/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/14/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/15/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/16/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/17/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
11/18/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/19/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/20/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/21/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/22/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/23/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/24/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
11/25/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/26/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/27/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
11/28/24 Thursday HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY
11/29/24 Friday HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY HOLIDAY
11/30/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
12/1/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY
12/2/24 Monday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
12/3/24 Tuesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
12/4/24 Wednesday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
12/5/24 Thursday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
12/6/24 Friday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
12/7/24 Saturday Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
12/8/24 Sunday SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY SUNDAY

30 30 30 30 30 30 30

TOTAL BAG DAYS = 210

Rate = $9.00/day + tax 1,993.95$   

DATE

Alley/Oneida St

11/1 to 12/8/24

DAY

Findorff and Boldt - Alley/Oneida St - Meter Bags



Insurance Coverage:

Insurance Carrier: ___________________________________________________________

Insurance Agent Name and Phone Number: ______________________________________

Policy Number: _____________________________________________________________

Policy Period: ______________________________________________________________

* Bond Carrier: ______________________________________________________________

* Bond Agent Name and Phone Number: ________________________________________

* Bond Number: ____________________________________________________________

* Bond Period: _____________________________________________________________

I confirm that I have the authority to sign and certify the information contained herein as the permittee/licensee
or duly authorized representative of the entity obtaining this permit/license.

I have reviewed and understand the insurance and bonding requirements of the City of Appleton. I hereby certify
that I, or the company I represent have insurance and a bond in the amounts required to obtain this permit/
license. I have named the City of Appleton as an additional insured for purposes of this permit/license and have
provided the name of my insurance and bond carriers, the policy numbers and policy periods above.

Further, I agree to maintain appropriate insurance coverage for the duration of this permit/license and to
indemnify against any and all liability, loss, damage and expenses and costs including attorneys� fees arising out
of the activities performed as described herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the
applicant, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, which may arise from the use of city right of
way or property under this permit or license.

I certify that this application, and all information and documentation provided therein, is true and accurate.

Company Name:__________________________________

Print Name: ______________________________________

Signature: _______________________________________

Date: ___________________________________________

* Bonds are required for the following types of work only:

Plumbing in the public right of way: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 4 265)

Demolition of Buildings: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 4 188(a)(2))

Sewer lateral sealing in the public right of way: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 4 188(c))

Moving of Buildings: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 4 207(5))

Cement Finisher�s License: $5,000.00 License Bond (Municipal Code Section 9 33)

Excavation or place facilities in the public right of way: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 16 110)

Bond Coverage:



Rev. 05-2024

General 
Description/
Reason:

 Street Address:

- or-

(Department use only)
Occupancy Type  Sub-Type Location

Permanent - Obstruction ($40) 
Temporary - Obstruction ($40) 
Amenity/Annual ($40) 
Blanket/Annual ($250)  
Block Party ($15)

Awning 

Dumpster

Sign

Obstruction / Other

POD / Container

 Certificate of Insurance Bond

Other : 

Traffic Control Requirements N/A

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

PERMIT TO OCCUPY    

THE     

PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

Permit # : 

Effective Date: 

Expiration Date: 

Non-Refundable Fee:

Paid (yes or no):

Contact Traffic Division (920-832-2379) 1 business day prior to 
any lane closure, or 2 business days prior to a full road closure. 
Additional Requirements:

 This permit approval is subject to the following conditions:

Address:

Company:

E-mail:

Date:

Telephone:

Applicant Information

Arterial/CBD

Collector 

Local 

Additional Requirements 

Plan/Sketch

Applicant Signature:

Other (attach plan)

APPROVED BY: DATE:

(Department of Public Works)

Multiple Streets: 

Name (print):

Proposed Traffic Control:

 Approved by: 

Permittee is responsible to obtain any further permits that may be required as part of this occupancy.
Permittee shall adhere to any plan(s) that were submitted to the City of Appleton as part of this application.
This permit is subject to IMMEDIATE REVOCATION and/or issuance of a MUNCIPAL CITATION if conditions of the permit are not met. 
This permit is subject to IMMEDIATE REVOCATION if unfavorable traffic conditions develop during the period the occupancy is permitted.
Dumpsters/PODs/Containers shall be located within 12" of face of curb. 

Occupancy Information

Type of Street:

City Manual Page(s) 

Date:

State Manual Page(s) 

This permit is issued to the applicant upon payment of the permit fee and is expressly limited to the location and type described herein.  The applicant, in exchange for receiving this 
permit, warranties that all street occupancies will be performed in conformity to City ordinances, standards and policies, be properly barricaded and lighted, and be performed in a safe 
manner.  By applying for and accepting this permit, the applicant assumes full liability and/or any costs incurred by the City for corrective work required to bring the subject area into 
compliance with said ordinances, standards, policies and permit conditions. No occupancy shall occur prior to approval of this permit by the Department of Public Works.  

The Grantee shall guarantee at their expense, the repair or replacement of pavement, sidewalk and any other facilities within the public right-of-way damaged or destroyed by the Grantee 
or any sub-contractor working for them.  The Grantee shall assume complete and full liability and responsibility, in accordance with existing ordinances and policies, in the event of injury 
or damage to persons or property resulting from their facilities within the public right-of-way.

Date(s) From: To: 35 days or < 35 days or >
         (Requires Committee and Council Approval)

Sandwich Board 

Tables/Chairs
Sidewalk

Terrace

Roadway

Sidewalk/roadway obstruction requested  Y  or   N

Committee and Council Approval

Date:



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

METER BAG APPLICATION 

Fee is $9.00 per day plus tax or any part thereof.  

THIS FEE WILL BE CHARGED FOR EVERY DAY THE METER BAG IS RESERVED 

(excluding Sundays and City Observed Holidays).

NOTE: Meter bags shall not be used on red meters. If a red meter is found bagged, the bag 

will be removed and the vehicle will be ticketed.   

Company Name ..................................................................................................................... 

Agent ...................................................................................................................................... 

Company Address .................................................................................................................. 

Phone Number | Email  .....................................................................................................................

Reason  ................................................................................................................................... 

Location  ................................................................................................................................ 

Meter Zone & Space# .......................................................................................................................

Date(s) ....................................................................................................................................

(Department use only) 
Amount Due ........................................................................................................................... 

($9.00 per bag per day plus tax) 

Approved by .......................................................................................................................... 

Department of Public Works Representative 

Today’s Date .................................................. 

05/2024

*Required*

_____________________________________________________________________________
 



Insurance Coverage: 

Insurance Carrier: ___________________________________________________________ 

Insurance Agent Name and Phone Number: ______________________________________ 

Policy Number: _____________________________________________________________ 

Policy Period: ______________________________________________________________ 

* Bond Carrier: ______________________________________________________________

* Bond Agent Name and Phone Number: ________________________________________

* Bond Number: ____________________________________________________________

* Bond Period: _____________________________________________________________

I confirm that I have the authority to sign and certify the information contained herein as the permittee/licensee 
or duly authorized representative of the entity obtaining this permit/license.  

I have reviewed and understand the insurance and bonding requirements of the City of Appleton. I hereby certify 
that I, or the company I represent have insurance and a bond in the amounts required to obtain this permit/
license.  I have named the City of Appleton as an additional insured for purposes of this permit/license and have 
provided the name of my insurance and bond carriers, the policy numbers and policy periods above.  

Further, I agree to maintain appropriate insurance coverage for the duration of this permit/license and to 
indemnify against any and all liability, loss, damage and expenses and costs including attorneys’ fees arising out 
of the activities performed as described herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the 
applicant, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, which may arise from the use of city right of 
way or property under this permit or license. 

I certify that this application, and all information and documentation provided therein, is true and accurate. 

Company Name:__________________________________ 

Print Name: ______________________________________ 

Signature: _______________________________________ 

Date: ___________________________________________ 

* Bonds are required for the following types of work only:

‐ Plumbing in the public right‐of‐way: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 4‐265)

‐ Demolition of Buildings: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 4‐188(a)(2))

‐ Sewer lateral sealing in the public right‐of‐way: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 4‐188(c))

‐ Moving of Buildings: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 4‐207(5))

‐ Cement Finisher’s License: $5,000.00 License Bond (Municipal Code Section 9‐33)

‐ Excavation or place facilities in the public right‐of‐way: $5,000.00 Permit Bond (Code Section 16‐110)

Statement of Insurance Coverage

Bond Coverage: 



 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:   August 12, 2024 
 
To:    Municipal Services Committee 
 
From:  Mark Lahay, Assistant City Engineer 
 
Subject:   Award of Contract for Land Acquisition Services for Lawe Street 

Reconstruction to Moss & Associates, in an amount not to exceed 
$217,000. 

 

 

The Department of Public Works requests approval to contract with Moss & 
Associates, in an amount not to exceed $217,000 to provide Land Acquisition Services 
for the Lawe Street reconstruction project scheduled for construction in 2026.  The 
Wisconsin Department of Transportation requires that the City obtain all right-of-way 
prior to the PS&E date for this construction project.  This contract will authorize Moss & 
Associates to provide services enabling the City to meet this requirement.  

The Department of Public Works issued Requests for Proposals to six qualified firms.  
The only proposal received was from Moss & Associates.  Moss & Associates 
demonstrated the personnel necessary and a good understanding of the project to 
complete the required tasks.  The not-to-exceed cost of $217,000 provides for 
appraisals for all 66 parcels along the project limits. Based on future design 
refinements, some of these parcels may not require an appraisal, and the scope of 
work and associated costs would be reduced accordingly.  



Page 1 of 1 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 8/5/24 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Eric Lom, P.E., City Traffic Engineer 

Subject: Catherine Street / North Street intersection control (proposed 1-way stop) 
 
Based on a request from Alderperson Smith, the Traffic Section recently reviewed the traffic 
control at the yield-controlled intersection of Catherine Street / North Street. This three-legged 
“T” intersection is located two block-equivalents east of Rankin Street and one block south of 
Pacific Street. The land use in this area is primarily residential. Both streets are functionally 
classified as Local.  

In a typical intersection control study, we consider traffic volumes, crash history, safe approach 
speeds, etc. In this case, the entering volume of this intersection is relatively low (less than 1000 
vehicles per day). A review of crash records indicated zero reportable crashes for the past five 
years. The critical approach speed for the intersection was found to be approximately 9 mph, 
which is primarily due to buildings and vegetation located in the SE and SW quadrants, resulting 
in poor sight lines. 

While this intersection does not meet the traffic volume or the crash frequency thresholds for 
stop control, the critical approach speed is below the standard for yield control. As such, we 
recommend implementing one-way stop control. To accomplish this, the following ordinance 
action is required: 

 

1. Create: “Install a stop sign on Catherine Street at North Street.” 



Page 1 of 1 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 8/5/24 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Eric Lom, P.E., City Traffic Engineer 

Subject: Mary St / North Street (north leg) intersection control (proposed 1-way stop) 
 
Based on a request from Alderperson Smith, the Traffic Section recently reviewed the traffic 
control at the uncontrolled intersection of Mary Street / North Street (north leg). This three-
legged “T” intersection is located three block-equivalents east of Rankin Street and one block 
south of Pacific Street. The land use in this area is primarily residential. Both streets are 
functionally classified as Local.  

In a typical intersection control study, we consider traffic volumes, crash history, safe approach 
speeds, etc. In this case, the entering volume of this intersection is relatively low (less than 1000 
vehicles per day). A review of crash records indicated zero reportable crashes for the past five 
years. The critical approach speed for the intersection was found to be approximately 6 mph, 
which is primarily due to homes and vegetation located in the NW and NE quadrants. 
 

While this intersection does not meet the traffic volume or crash frequency thresholds for stop 
control, the critical approach speed is below the standard for no control/yield control. As such, 
we recommend implementing one-way stop control. To accomplish this, the following ordinance 
action is required: 

 

1. Create: “Install a stop sign on the north leg of Mary Street at North Street (for 
southbound traffic).” 



Page 1 of 1 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 7/26/24 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Eric Lom, P.E., City Traffic Engineer 

Subject: Mary St / North Street (south leg) intersection control (proposed 1-way stop) 
 
Based on a citizen complaint, the Traffic Section recently reviewed the traffic control at the 
uncontrolled intersection of Mary Street / North Street (south leg). This three-legged “T” 
intersection is located three block-equivalents east of Rankin Street and one block south of 
Pacific Street. The land use in this area is primarily residential. Both streets are functionally 
classified as Local.  

In a typical intersection control study, we consider traffic volumes, crash history, safe approach 
speeds, etc. In this case, the entering volume of this intersection is relatively low (less than 1000 
vehicles per day). A review of crash records indicated zero reportable crashes for the past five 
years. The critical approach speed for the intersection was found to be approximately 10 mph, 
which is primarily due to homes located in the SW and SE quadrants. 
 

While this intersection does not meet the traffic volume or crash frequency thresholds for stop 
control, the critical approach speed is below the standard for no control/yield control. As such, 
we recommend implementing one-way stop control. To accomplish this, the following ordinance 
action is required: 

 

1. Create: “Install a stop sign on the south leg of Mary Street at North Street (for 
northbound traffic).” 



Page 1 of 2 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 7/17/24 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Eric Lom, P.E., City Traffic Engineer 

Subject: Parking changes on Mason St by Jefferson ES 
 (follow-up to a 6-month evaluation) 
 
 
At the request of the Principal at Jefferson Elementary School, the City’s Traffic Section recently 
assessed the possibility of making numerous changes to the on-street parking along the east 
side of Mason Street, adjacent to the school, as a means of improving traffic safety and 
operations. Based on our evaluation, we initiated an evaluation period to coincide with the 2023-
2024 school year. The evaluation generally included the following: 

1. Removed the existing 4-Hour Parking zone (7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. on school days) 
2. Created a small 15-minute Parking zone (7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. on school days) 
3. Created one handicapped accessible stall 
4. Created a small Passenger Loading Zone south of their south driveway (7:30 a.m. to 

4:30 p.m. on school days) 
5. Created a small No Stopping zone adjacent to small parking lot at the south end of their 

property (7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. on school days) 
 
This arrangement has had had the desired effect, and we have not received any feedback from 
the community. Based on this, we recommend the changes be made permanent. To accomplish 
this, the following ordinance changes are necessary: 

 

1. Repeal Ord. 97-52:  “Parking be restricted to four hours during school hours on the east 
side of Mason Street from the south right-of-way line of Prospect Avenue to a point 415 
feet south.” 

2. Repeal Ord. 97-52:  “Stopping, standing, or parking be prohibited, except for bus 
loading, during school hours, on the east side of Mason Street from a point 415 feet 
south of the south right-of-way line of Prospect Avenue extending 50 feet south.” 



Page 2 of 2 

3. Create: “Designate a 15-minute parking zone from 7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. on school 
days on the east side of Mason Street from a point 286 feet south of Prospect Avenue to 
a point 348 feet south of Prospect Avenue.” 

4. Create: “Parking be restricted to vehicles displaying handicapped license plates or 
Wisconsin handicapped permit only on the east side of Mason Street from a point 348 
feet south of Prospect Avenue to a point 373 feet south of Prospect Avenue.” 

5. Create: “Stopping, standing and parking be prohibited, except for buses, from 7:30 a.m. 
to 4:30 p.m. on school days on the east side of Mason Street from a point 420 feet south 
of Prospect Avenue to a point 470 feet south of Prospect Avenue.” 

6. Create: “No Parking/Passenger Loading Zone (driver must remain behind wheel/pull 
forward when possible) 7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. on school days on the east side of Mason 
Street from a point 470 feet south of Prospect Avenue to a point 550 feet south of 
Prospect Avenue.” 

7. Create: “Stopping. standing and parking be prohibited from 7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. on 
school days on the east side of Mason Street from a point 550 feet south of Prospect 
Avenue to a point 615 feet south of Prospect Avenue.” 



Page 1 of 1 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 7/26/24 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Eric Lom, P.E., City Traffic Engineer 

Subject: North Street /Tonka Street intersection control (proposed 1-way stop) 
 
Based on a citizen complaint, the Traffic Section recently reviewed the traffic control at the 
uncontrolled intersection of North Street / Tonka Street. This three-legged “T” intersection is 
located two block-equivalents east of Rankin Street and one block south of Pacific Street. The 
land use in this area is primarily residential. Both streets are functionally classified as Local.  

In a typical intersection control study, we consider traffic volumes, crash history, safe approach 
speeds, etc. In this case, the entering volume of this intersection is relatively low (less than 1000 
vehicles per day). A review of crash records indicated zero reportable crashes for the past five 
years. The critical approach speed for the intersection was found to be approximately 2 mph, 
which is primarily due to building located in the NW quadrants, causing extremely poor sight 
lines. 

While this intersection does not meet the traffic volume or the crash frequency thresholds for 
stop control, the critical approach speed is well below the standard for no control/yield control. 
As such, we recommend implementing one-way stop control. To accomplish this, the following 
ordinance action is required: 

 

1. Create: “Install a stop sign on Tonka Street at North Street.” 



PRO  APPLICANT  STREET VACATION INITIATED BY
Name Citizen Requested/Initiated   Aldermanic Resolution

City Staff Initiated

Mailing Address

Phone 

E-mail

STREET INFORMATION
Name of Street(s) to be Vacated:

Location: 

Legal Description of Proposed Street Vacation 
*Please submit an electronic copy of the legal description in Microsoft Word format.

Current Zoning: Proposed Zoning:

Current Uses:

PLEASE STATE THE REASON(S) FOR STREET VACATION REQUEST
*Please attach a location map of the property or portion of the property in question and facts to support the request.

Date Applicant Signature 

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and if feasible.  1/23

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Application Complete _____________________    ____________             Date Filed ____________    

Fee for Citizen Requested or Initiated: $200.00 Acct #PWZNIG Receipt # __________ Date Paid ____________

APPLICATION FOR STREET VACATION 
Development Department

100 N. Appleton St. PH: 920-832-6468
Appleton, WI 54911 FAX: 920-832-5994

Stamp date received









Page 1 of 1 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 08/07/2024 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Michael Hardy, P.E., Traffic Engineer 

Subject: Amendment Request - Service Contract for Traffic Signal Control and 
Management Software 

 

Department of Public Works recommends for approval an amendment to the current service 
contract for new Econolite brand traffic signal control and management software. The current 
service contract with Traffic Control Corporation was approved at the June 10, 2024 meeting of 
the Municipal Service Committee. The original service contract was approved for $103,400.00, 
plus a contingency of $5,000 only to be utilized as needed. The new amount would be 
$132,510.00, an increase of $29,110.00.    

This recommendation is a result of; 1) switching from an on-premise software and server 
application to a cloud-based System as a Software (SaaS) service as requested by Information 
Technology Department, and 2) Permission by Wisconsin Department of Transportation 
(WisDOT) to use all remaining authorized grant funds for advanced purchase of future SaaS 
annual subscriptions (through 2032).   The Information Technology Department will budget for 
annual subscriptions once the prepayment term ends. 

Twenty-one new intersection controllers were separately purchased from Wisconsin Department 
of Transportation (WisDOT) procurement contract #510465. The total amount of that purchase 
order was $86,343.00. 

This is related to the WisDOT Signals and ITS Standalone Program (SISP) grant that the 
Municipal Services Committee and Finance Committee approved for acceptance on March 25, 
2024. The City’s local match of the $220,750.00 grant award is 10% ($22,075.00). 

The combined cost of the revised service contract and purchase order would be $219,675.00, 
which remains within budget. The procurement of the Econolite brand software has been 
detailed throughout the grant process. Written approval for sole source procurement of 
Econolite software was formally received from WisDOT on March 13, 2024. 

 



 
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911 
Phone (920) 832-6411 

 
TO:   Municipal Services Committee  
 
FROM:  Kurt W. Craanen, Inspections Supervisor 

 
SUBJECT:   Variance Request for Driveway Extension – 3039 N. Ballard Rd. 
     
DATE:   August 12, 2024 
▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬ 
 
On August 1, 2024, Inspections Division of Community Development Department received a 
complaint about pavement installed in the front yard of a residential property at 3039 N. 
Ballard Rd. The City responded and found that a 15’ x 15’ slab was installed, three (3) feet 
from the sidewalk. 
 
Section 19-91(f)(3) of the Municipal Code requires a permit for driveway extension and limits 
driveway extensions into the front yard to four (4) feet.  This installation is in violation of this 
section of the Municipal Code. 
 
Contact was made with the owner, Micheal Strege, who stated that this slab was not a 
parking space, but a “turn around” so he and his wife do no need to back onto Ballard Road. 
 
Section 19-91(g) of the Municipal Code states that appeals shall be filed with the Inspection 
Supervisor and heard by the Municipal Services Committee. 
 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends to deny the appeal to allow 
a driveway extension 15’ into the front yard.  
 
   



From: michael strege <mb_strege@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 7, 2024 11:01 AM 
To: Kurt Craanen <Kurt.Craanen@Appleton.org> 
Subject: Driveway Extension /Request for Variance 

This request for the extension is for usage as a turnround only to Ballard Rd. When we lived in 
Tennessee my wife was involved in a car accident causing her fear/ anxiety when backing out of our 
driveway. This is my soul purpose for this turnaround, safety for my wife and grandchildren of driving 
age.  Dimensions from turnaround to sidewalk taper 3ft. 3in. , 6ft. slab to sidewalk. Full Size of Slab 
15x15  I have noticed on Ballard Rd. south an apartment complex with parking close to the sidewalk 
and roadway. Also other businesses on Ballard with the same parking features, that are close to the 
road. Of course with an apartment complex, vehicles are parked at all times of the day and night.    

Michael B. Strege    

 

mailto:mb_strege@yahoo.com
mailto:Kurt.Craanen@Appleton.org




CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920.832.6423 
f: 920.832.5962 

www.appleton.org 

 

 
TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee, Common Council  
 
From:  ACA Zak Buruin 
 
Date:  6/21/24 
 
RE:  Corner Pub, Alcohol Beverage Abandonment and Non-Renewal 
 

 
Wisconsin Statutes §125.12(3) and (2)(ag) authorize an issuing municipality to refuse to 
renew an alcohol beverage license where the licensee has violated a local regulation 
adopted under §125.10.  Appleton Code §9-52 is such a regulation.  
 
Appleton Code §9-52(9) provides that abandonment of an alcohol beverage license 
shall be sufficient grounds for revocation or non-renewal of such license.  It defines 
“abandonment” as “continuing refusal or failure of the licensee to use the license for the 
purpose for which the license was granted by the city council for a period of one (1) 
year.”    The Common Council may extend such period if good cause is shown.   
 
On May 30, 2023, the Appleton Health Department conducted an inspection of the 
Corner Pub, an alcohol beverage licensed establishment located at 1123 N. Mason 
Street in Appleton.  The inspection was prompted by a broken water pipe in the rental 
unit above the bar, resulting in significant damage to the licensed premises.  The 
inspection report noted several significant areas of concern and several city 
departments that would need to approve of the repairs and conditions of the bar before 
it would be able to reopen.    
 
On July 28, 2023, license holder Kim Williams was notified of the situation via a letter 
from Clerk Lynch.  The letter advised Ms. Williams that if her business was not 
reopened by May 30, 2024, would result in grounds for her alcohol beverage license(s) 
to be revoked or not renewed.  It advised that the letter was intended to provide her 
ample notice of the potential loss of her alcohol beverage license and to remedy the 
situation by reopening the business.   
 
On May 30, 2024, the given deadline to reopen, the Appleton Health Department 
conducted an inspection to determine if the premises was compliant with requirements 
to reopen.  The inspection report noted that the bar area was not complete, and the 
business did not look as though it was ready to open.  It was further noted that multiple 
city departments were unable to confirm that the establishment was able to resume 

http://www.appleton.org/


operation.  The Health, Fire, and Inspections departments had not been able to approve 
the condition of the premises due to necessary additional work.  The establishment 
could not reopen.   
 
The following day, Clerk Lynch provided written notice to Ms. Williams of the intent to 
not renew her alcohol beverage license(s) based upon abandonment.  The letter 
provided her with the required opportunity to be heard on the issue of the non-renewal 
of her alcohol beverage license at the meeting of the Safety and Licensing Committee 
of the Appleton Common Council on June 26 at 5:30 PM, The same letter advised her 
of the option to withdraw the renewal application and have the associated license fee 
refunded.   
 
Based upon the above, the alcohol license in question is considered “abandoned” and is 
therefore subject to revocation or non-renewal under Appleton Code §9-52(9).   
 





____________________________________________________ 
 

   

____________________________________________________ 
 

 
  
July 28, 2023 
 
Kim Williams 
200 E Harding Drive 
Appleton, WI 54915 
 
 
Re: Abandonment/Non-Use of Alcohol License  
 
 
Appleton Municipal Code Section 9-52 (9) states that an alcohol license may be revoked or non-renewed for 
failure to use the license for the purpose in which it was granted for a period of 1 (one) year.  As of May 30, 
2023 your establishment with the trade name, Corner Pub, located at 1123 N Mason St. has remained closed to 
the public, and your Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage & “Class B” Liquor License have not been used.  
Failure to open your business and use your alcohol license for the intended purpose of a bar/tavern by May 30, 
2024 may be grounds for license revocation or non-renewal.  This letter is to provide you ample notice of 
potential non-renewal or revocation should the business not be operational by the time specified.   
 
If you have any questions regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to contact me at the number listed above. 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
Kami Lynch  
City Clerk  
 

LEGAL & ADMINISTRATIVE 
SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

Office of the City Clerk 
Kami Lynch, Clerk 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911 
Phone: 920/832-6443 

  
 



 
APPLETON HEALTH DEPARTMENT
100 N Appleton Street
Appleton WI 54911
Phone: 920-832-6429
Fax: 920-832-5853
Website: www.appleton.org

 
No image found with name: PublicHealth_COA_small.jpg. Image files needed to

be generated.

Appleton restaurant inspection reports are
posted on the health department website

 
 

Retail Food Establishment Inspection Report
 
Establishment Information  
Facility Name

CORNER PUB
Facility Type

Retail Food - Serving Meals
Facility ID #

HSAT-7QWT54
Facility Telephone #

920 073-1097
Facility Address

1123 N MASON ST
APPLETON , WI 54914
Licensee Name

KIM-RICK WILLIAMS
Licensee Address

1123 N MASON ST
APPLETON , WI
54914

 

Inspection Information  
Inspection Type

Routine
Inspection Date

May 30, 2023
Total Time Spent

 
 

Equipment Temperatures  
Description Temperature (Fahrenheit)

walkin beer cooler
pizza freezer    
Warewashing Info      
Machine Name Sanitization Method Thermo Label PPM Sanitizer Name Sanitizer Type

manual bleach
 

OPERATOR - The violations in operating procedure or physical arrangement indicated below must be corrected by
the next routine inspection or by a date specified in this report.
 

Comments:
Water pipe broke in rental over bar.  Ceiling down to rafters, walls have stud exposed.  Can lighting hanging down.  Bar needs to
be essentially put back together and have all departments sign off prior to reopening.  Fire, HVAC, Building, Plumbing, Electrical
and Health will all need to come through and inspection prior to opening  back up for business.
 
Re attach the faucet on the 4 compartment sink.  (Faucet is onsite)
 
Report will be mailed to 200 E. Harding Drive 54915 

 

Any operator aggrieved by an order of this department under this chapter may request a hearing as provided in ch.227
statute, if state licensed, or a local ordinance if licensed by an agent health department.
 

Person in Charge

 
 

Rick Williams 

Sanitarian

 
 

Michelle Roberts
(920) 832-6429

 

Page 1 of 1CORNER PUB (Inspection Date: 05/30/2023)



 
APPLETON HEALTH DEPARTMENT
100 N Appleton Street
Appleton WI 54911
Phone: 920-832-6429
Fax: 920-832-5853
Website: www.appleton.org

 
No image found with name: PublicHealth_COA_small.jpg. Image files needed to

be generated.

Appleton restaurant inspection reports are
posted on the health department website

 
 

Retail Food Establishment Inspection Report
 
Establishment Information  
Facility Name

CORNER PUB
Facility Type

Retail Food - Serving Meals
Facility ID #

HSAT-7QWT54
Facility Telephone #

920 730-1097
Facility Address

1123 N MASON ST
APPLETON , WI 54914
Licensee Name

KIM-RICK WILLIAMS
Licensee Address

200 E HARDING DR
APPLETON , WI
54915

 

Inspection Information  
Inspection Type

Routine
Inspection Date

May 30, 2024
Total Time Spent

 
 

Equipment Temperatures  
Description Temperature (Fahrenheit)

walkin beer cooler
pizza freezer    
Warewashing Info      
Machine Name Sanitization Method Thermo Label PPM Sanitizer Name Sanitizer Type

manual bleach
 

OPERATOR - The violations in operating procedure or physical arrangement indicated below must be corrected by
the next routine inspection or by a date specified in this report.
 

Comments:
Hold from Fire, Electrical, HVAC.  Building and Plumbing not onsite to recheck.  Inspections will create a CSR with all the
notes.  No storage under stairs.
 
4 compartment sink installed. Bar still not completed and looking ready to open.   Bar can not be reopened at this time.  Final
approvals needed from Fire, Electrical, HVAC, Plumbing and Building.  Also Health needs to come back and bar should look
like it is ready to open.
 
Report emailed to crystal.k.denton@gmail.com  

 

Any operator aggrieved by an order of this department under this chapter may request a hearing as provided in ch.227
statute, if state licensed, or a local ordinance if licensed by an agent health department.
 

Person in Charge

 
 

KIm Williams

Sanitarian

 
 

Michelle Roberts
(920) 832-6429

 

Page 1 of 1CORNER PUB (Inspection Date: 05/30/2024)















 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:  7/10/24 

To:  Safety and Licensing Committee  

From:  Kurt W. Craanen, Inspection Supervisor   

Subject: 1123 N. Mason St, - Corner Pub 

 

 

On May 30, 2024, an inspection was conducted at the owner’s request at the Corner Pub, 

1123 N. Mason St. This type of scheduled inspection, involving staff from the Health, 

Community Dev. and Fire Department staff, is common. 

The condition of the property on May 30,2024, was such that it was not a habitable building. 

Inspections staff noted multiple life safety violations. The owner was instructed to hire licensed 

contractors to correct the code violations.  

On June 6, 2024, an electrical permit was issued to Alan’s Electric to correct electrical 

violations.  

An inspection was scheduled for July 8, 2024. Staff from Community Dev., Health and Fire 

conducted inspections.  Staff found multiple violations still existing at the property.  These 

violations include: 

• The ceiling has openings and gaps in several places that need to be properly sealed with 

gypsum board and fire caulk. 

• Areas of walls and at door opening, have exposed wood studs.  

• HVAC vent openings at wall lack grilles. 

• Partitions in men’s restroom lack support.  

• No grab bars at toilets in restrooms.  

• The gas furnace must be enclosed with a 2-hour rated ceiling and surrounding walls. 

• Door to furnace room must be 1 ½ hour rated with a closer. 

 

Based on the condition of the property and the multiple violations that still exist, staff does not 

support the renewal of the liquor license.  

 

c:  Zak Buruin  









CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920.832.6423 
f: 920.832.5962 

www.appleton.org 

 

 
TO:  Appleton Common Council  
 
From:  ACA Zak Buruin 
 
Date:  July 15, 2024 
 
RE: Non-Renewal of the Class “B” Malt Beverage & “Class B” Liquor License 

for Corner Pub, 1123 N. Mason Street. Kim Williams, Agent 
 

 
In response to questions and concerns raised by members of the Safety and Licensing 
Committee regarding the renewal of the above noted alcohol beverage license, I have compiled 
the following information relevant to the inspection process in this case. 
 
For background purposes, prior to the May 30, 2023 health inspection of the licensed premises, 
significant damage was done to the premises as a result of a water pipe breaking in the unit 
above the licensed premises.  As a result, significant repairs were required before the premises 
could reopen for business.  A specific list of code violations and necessary repairs were not 
provided because no inspections were requested or therefore carried out beyond that 
conducted by the Health Department.  As noted in the Health Department’s inspection report, 
the “Bar needs to be essentially put back together and have all departments sign off prior to 
reopening.” 
 
The Health Department inspection report was provided to the applicant following the inspection 
in 2023.  While typically provided via email, this report was mailed to the licensee’s address 
because no email address was provided.  This included the notification of the various 
departments that would need to approve of the premises before it could be permitted to reopen.   
 
The damage to the premises was such that ceiling rafters and wall studs were exposed and the 
can lighting was hanging down (among other things).  The work that needed to be completed 
required obtaining appropriate permits.  It is the request for these permits that notifies the 
Inspections Department of the need for the kind of inspections that were necessary in this case.  
My understanding is that no permits for any of the necessary repairs were requested until June 
6, 2024, after the May 30 deadline to reopen and avoid the license being considered 
abandoned.    
 
Most of the repairs needed required the services of a licensed contractor.  A licensed contractor, 
had one or more been employed earlier in the process, would have been in a position to seek 
required permits and inspections, and would be more familiar with inspections requirements.  
Again, no permits were sought until permit for the electrical work was obtained on June 6, 2024.  
This was over a year after being told of the numerous inspections that would need to be passed, 
and over 10 months since being warned of the May 30, 2024 deadline to reopen and avoid 

http://www.appleton.org/


license abandonment. 
 
In summary, the applicant in this matter was provided with information needed to comply with 
the City’s requirements and was given significant time to do so.  It is only as the deadline for 
abandonment passed that recognizable progress began to be made on bringing the property 
into compliance with the City’s code.  It is expected that a representative of the City’s 
Inspections Department will be available at the upcoming meeting of the Common Council to 
answer any questions that may remain.   
 
The Common Council has the discretion to allow more time before considering the alcohol 
license in question to be considered abandoned if good cause is shown.   
 
It does not appear that the delays in progress or in the providing of information to the applicant 
in this matter were the result of any action or inaction on the part of the involved departments.   
Assertions that the relevant departments failed to timely inspect or provide inspection results are 
not factually supported and should not be treated as a basis for a finding of good cause to 
extend the deadline for abandonment.   
 
Should the Council find good cause based upon information supported by the record, it may 
exercise its discretion as it sees fit.  

 
 



















lindsay.reuer
Pencil





lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil







lindsay.reuer
Pencil





lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil





lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil





lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:   August 14, 2024  

To:   City Plan Commission  

From:  Lindsey Smith, Principal Planner 

Subject:  Street discontinuance to vacate a portion of Sampson Street right-of-way 

 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

Owner/Applicant:  City of Appleton / Tom Kromm, Department of Public Works 
 
Location:  Part of Sampson Street, located south of E. Winnebago Street 

Owner/Applicant’s Request:  The applicant is requesting a street discontinuance to 

vacate a portion of Sampson Street right-of-way. 

Municipal Services Committee Meeting Date:  August 12, 2024 
 
Plan Commission Informal Public Hearing Date:  August 14, 2024 
 
Common Council Meeting Date – Initial Resolution:  August 21, 2024 
 
Common Council Meeting Date – Public Hearing (40-day waiting period):  October 2, 
2024 
 

 
BACKGROUND 

A portion of the Sampson Street right-of-way is in Garfield Place Plat (1892) and 1st Ward 
Plat (1907) all according to the recorded 1907 Assessor’s Plat. The right-of-way was 
dedicated when the City approved this Plat. This portion of Sampson Street right-of-way 
was never publicly improved with utilities and roadway.  
 
In 2007, the City of Appleton initiated a street discontinuance to vacate a portion of 
Sampson Street right-of-way generally located between E. Winnebago Street and E. 
Atlantic Street. The subject area being considered was not vacated in 2007 due to an 
existing driveway in Sampson Street right-of-way for 937 E. Winnebago Street.  
 
When right-of-way is vacated, it is given to those abutting lands where the right-of-way was 
originally dedicated. The City did not vacate the subject area in 2007 as the vacation would 
have created a portion of the driveway for 937 E. Winnebago to be owned by 925 E. 
Winnebago Street.   
 
 



2 
 

 

Recently, the property owners (Gibson) at 925 E. Winnebago Street have agreed to sell 
their portion (25 feet x 70 feet) of the vacated Sampson Street right-of-way to the property 
owners (Murphy) at 937 E. Winnebago Street. As this agreement is in place, this will allow 
937 E. Winnebago Street to maintain their driveway with the vacated Sampson Street. 
Murphy has also expressed interest in building an accessory building in the vacated 
Sampson Street.  
 

 
STAFF ANALYSIS  

Title to Vacated Street:  When vacated, the land reverts to its original source, which in this 
case includes the parcels located adjacent to the proposed vacation area.  Consequently, 
title to the street segments being vacated would belong to the adjoining property owner.  
The owner (Murphy) of parcel #31-1-1290-00 would acquire a vacated part of Sampson 
right-of-way totaling approximately 1,750 square feet.  The owner (Gibson) of parcel #31-
1-1196-00 would acquire vacated part of Sampson Street right-of-way totaling 
approximately 1,750 square feet.    As shown on the attached map, the adjoining property 
owner would acquire the vacated Sampson Street right-of-way of approximately 3,500 
square feet. Per the attached agreement, Gibson intends to sell approximately 1,750 
square feet to Murphy to maintain the existing driveway in Sampson Street right-of-way.  It 
is anticipated that the vacated area would be combined with the surrounding parcel, as 
described above. 
 
Existing Public Utilities:  The City will not retain an easement for any existing utilities 
within the entire length and width of the vacated right-of-way.  The easement release is 
captured in the attached Initial Resolution. 
 
Street Right-of-Way Width:  This portion of Sampson Street is approximately 50 feet wide. 
 
Street Classification:  The City’s Arterial/Collector Plan Map identifies Sampson Street as 
a local street. 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses:  The surrounding area is under the jurisdiction of 
the City of Appleton (north, south, east, and west).  The uses are generally residential and 
institutional in nature.  
 
North: R-1C Central City Residential District. The adjacent land to the north is E. 
Winnebago Street.  
 
South:  R-1C Central City Residential District. The adjacent land uses to the south are 
single family residential. 
 
East:  R-1C Central City Residential District. The adjacent land use to the east is single 
family residential. 
 
West: R-1C Central City Residential District. The adjacent land use to the west is single 
family residential.  
 
 



3 
 

 
 
Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  The City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 
Future Land Use Map identifies this area with a future Public/Institutional Use.  The 
proposed street vacation is consistent with the following excerpts from the Comprehensive 
Plan 2010-2030. 
 
OBJECTIVE 6.8 Transportation: 
Implement transportation improvements which also support the City’s desired land use, 
housing and neighborhood goals, objectives, and policies. 
 
POLICY 5.2.3 Encourage and facilitate renovate and redevelopment that preserves and 
enhances the viability existing housing and neighborhoods.  
 
 
Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the July 23, 2024 TRG 
agenda.  No negative comments were received from participating departments. 
   

 
FUTURE ACTION 

Certified Survey Map:  The property owner at 937 E. Winnebago Street will be required 
to submit an application for Certified Survey Map (CSM) review pursuant to Division 4, 
Minor Land Division (CSM) of the City of Appleton Subdivision Code prior to any 
construction commencing or issuance of building permits within the vacated Sampson 
Street.  Staff will review the CSM for conformance with the City’s Municipal Code.  

   

 
RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the discontinuance of a portion of Sampson Street public right-of-way, 
as shown on the attached map and legal description, and the adoption of the Initial 
Resolution, BE APPROVED. 
 





INITIAL RESOLUTION 
 

WHEREAS, the public interest requires that a portion of Sampson Street, south of 

East Winnebago Street, that has not previously been vacated, be vacated and 

discontinued, 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of Appleton, Wisconsin, 

hereby determines that the public interest requires that a portion of Sampson Street, City 

of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin, as hereinafter described, is hereby vacated 

and discontinued pursuant to §66.1003 of the Wisconsin Statutes. 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
The North 70 feet of Sampson Street, bounded on the North by the 
South line of Winnebago Street, on the West by Block 79 of the 1st Ward 
Plat, and on the East by Block 77 of the 1st Ward Plat and also Lot 44 
of the Garfield Place Plat, all according to the recorded Assessor’s Plat 
of the City of Appleton, being located in the NW ¼ of Section 25, T.21N., 
R.17E., City of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin. 
 
See also attached Exhibit “A” for illustration. 

  
COMMON DESCRIPTION: 

Portion of Sampson Street, south of East Winnebago Street that has not 
previously been vacated 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk of the City of Appleton be authorized 

and directed to give notice required by §66.1003 of the Wisconsin Statutes. 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that according to §66.1005 of the Wisconsin Statutes, 

upon vacation and discontinuance of said part of Sampson Street, title to the above-

described street shall belong to the adjoining property owners and shall acquire an 

ownership interest in the entire area being vacated as shown on the attached Exhibit Map. 

 
By:  _________________________________ 
 
Date:  _______________________________ 
City Law A24-0345 



 











 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:  August 14, 2024  

To:  City Plan Commission 

From:  Lindsey Smith, Principal Planner 

Subject: Disposition of Surplus Land (Parcel Number: 31-1-1275-00) per Wis. Stat. § 

62.23(5) 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

Owner/Applicant:  City of Appleton / Lindsey Smith, Community Development Department 

 

Parcel Number/Location: 31-1-1275-00, Land locked parcel between E. Winnebago 

Street and Bellaire Court 

 

Request:  The applicant is requesting to dispose of parcel number 31-1-1275-00.   

 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  August 14, 2024 

 

Common Council Meeting Date:  August 21, 2024 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Wis. Stat. § 62.23(5) states that the sale of land that was intended to be used as a public 
land shall be referred to the Plan Commission for its consideration and report before final 
action is taken by the Common Council. 
 
The subject parcel is part of Lot 30 within Garfield Palace Plat of the 1907 Appleton 
Assessor Map. 
 
In 2007, the City vacated the unnamed right-of-way and Sampson Street right-of-way. A 
portion of the vacated right-of-way was added to the subject parcel.  
 
The City recently received an inquiry from an adjacent property owner about acquiring the 
subject parcel.  
 

 
 



 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS  
 
Lot Area:  Approximately 3,586 square feet 

 

Zoning:  R-1C – Central City Residential District 

 

Street Frontage:  None 

 

Easements:  A utility easement is located on the northern 12.5 feet of the subject parcel. 

 

Other Relevant Information:  The subject parcel is located at the bottom of a ravine 

between E. Winnebago Street and Bellaire Court, approximately a 20+ foot elevation 

difference from the street elevation.   

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the July 23, 2024 TRG 
agenda.  No negative comments or objections were received from participating 
departments. 

 

FUTURE ACTION 

 

As the subject parcel is land locked, the Community Development Department will mail a 

notification to the property owners that are adjacent to the subject parcel. The notification 

will inform them about the disposition of surplus land and the process to acquire the subject 

parcel is interested.  

 

Legal Services will prepare a quit claim deed to the highest bidder.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

In accordance with Wis. Stat. § 62.23(5), Staff recommends the disposition of parcel 

number 31-1-1275-00, surplus of public lands, as shown on the attached maps, BE 

APPROVED. 



E HANCOCK ST

N
 F

O
X

 S
T

B
E

LL
A

IR
E

C
T

E WINNEBAGO ST

58

90
0

90
8

90
7

924918

921

937

60

59
61

56

924 930 934

919 925

1-1275

1-
12

43

1-
12

44

1-1276

1-
11

97

1-1278

1-1277

1-
12

46

1-1231

1-
12

04

1-
12

47

1-1274

1-
12

45

1-
08

69
-2

1-1229

1-
12

05

1-1290

1-1279

1-
11

96

0 40 8020 Feet±City Plan Commission
8-14-2024

Disposition of Surplus Land

Subject Area



Department of Parks & Recreation 
1819 East Witzke Blvd. 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920-832-3919 
f: 920-993-3103 

www.appleton.org 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TO:  Parks and Recreation Committee 
 

FROM:  Dean R. Gazza 
 

DATE:  August 12, 2024 
 

RE: Action:  Approve Use of Reid Golf Course Fund Balance for Updates to Toro Irrigation 
System and Software. 

 
 

Reid Golf Course maintains a Toro Irrigation System which was installed in 2005. The irrigation system is 
controlled via a central computer and software program (SitePro) and 13 Toro Osmac Satellites which 
communicate to automatically turn sprinkler heads on and off for the desired duration. 

 
Satellite communication components are being phased out and will need to be upgraded when parts are 
no longer available.  Reinders has a promotion on G3 Osmac upgrade kits, purchase 3 kits receive 2 free 
kits.  In addition, Toro is offering Lynx Software and new computer at 50% savings.  Reid’s irrigation 
computer is not city owned and is serviced through Toro NSN.  SitePro is an antiquated software 
program which will not be updated when the new Windows Operating system comes out. 
 
Quote for G3 Upgrade Kits for Osmac 
 
Lynx Central Computer w/Apps   $6,450.00 
9 - G3 Osmac Upgrade Kits - $1978.83 per  $17,809.47 
6 - G3 Osmac Upgrade Kits    Free 
Programming Software and Training   $2,000.00 
Installation of G3 Osmac Kits    $1,200.00 
     Total  $27,459.47 
 
We are requesting to purchase these unbudgeted items as a sole source purchase through Reinders and 
install this year.  Projected 2024 revenues are on track to exceed budgeted projections.  Attached is the 
approved sole source request.  

 
Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 

 

http://www.appleton.org/departmentname
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org




 
Department of Parks & Recreation 

1819 East Witzke Blvd. 
Appleton, WI 54911  

p: 920-832-5905 
f: 920-993-3103 

www.appletonparkandrec.org 
 

 

 

 TO:    Parks & Recreation Committee 

 FROM: Dean Gazza 

 DATE:  8/12/2024 

RE: Action: Approve Irish Fest of the Fox Cities to hold a ticketed private Special Event in 
Jones Park on September 13-14, 2024 for Irish Fest 

  

The Jones Park Rental Policy requires permission from the Parks and Recreation Committee for 
any private Special Events in Jones Park. 

Irish Fest of the Fox Cities is requesting to host a Special Event in Jones Park for the fourth 
year. Irish Fest is an Irish Musical, Dancing and Cultural Festival with an anticipated attendance 
of 3,000 people. Because Irish Fest is charging attendees a fee to attend the event, the 
Committee will need to give approval.   

Irish Fest is aware of the rules and regulations of the park and agree to abide by them. Staff are 
also allowing Irish Fest to extend their music until 10:00pm and to have demonstration dogs. 
The Parks and Recreation Department supports their requests as their past events have had no 
problems or issues. 

 

 



 
Department of Parks & Recreation 

1819 East Witzke Blvd. 
Appleton, WI 54911  

p: 920-832-5905 
f: 920-993-3103 

www.appletonparkandrec.org 
 

 
TO:  Parks and Recreation Committee 

         
FROM: Dean Gazza 
 
DATE:  July 10, 2024 
 
RE:  Action Item: Request to obtain a raffle license for Parks & Recreation Mom Prom event 
 
 
Our recreation programming provides valuable opportunities for children to engage in physical activities, develop 
new skills, and build lasting friendships. Unfortunately, many families in our community face financial barriers 
that prevent their children from participating in these beneficial programs. Our fee waiver program aims to 
eliminate these barriers, ensuring that all children can partake in our activities. In the past 12 months, our 
department has observed a 150% increase in fee waiver applications. In 2024, we revised our Fee Waiver Policy 
to increase the annual amount allocated per child, ensuring it better aligns with the costs of our programs. Given 
the recent growth and increased demand for our fee waiver program, we anticipate the need to explore creative 
solutions to offset the associated costs with the fee waiver program. 
 
Appleton Parks and Recreation is seeking the Committee’s approval to apply for a raffle license to support our 
annual Mom Prom fundraiser event that is organized by Appleton Parks and Recreation. The purpose of this 
fundraiser is to raise funds for our fee waiver program, which enables children to participate in our recreation 
programming regardless of their financial status. Currently, the money raised comes solely from the registration 
fee and monetary donations for the event. During our 2024 Mom Prom event, we made $8,000. We believe that 
hosting this fundraiser event with a raffle license will significantly increase our fundraising efforts allowing us to 
reach even more children in need. Your approval of the raffle license is vital for the success of this event and the 
continuation of our mission to provide accessible recreation programming to all children in our community. 
 
The next Mom Prom event is scheduled for March 8, 2025, at the Paper Valley Hilton Hotel in Appleton. Local 
businesses generously donate products and services as prizes for the event. In the past, we provided free raffle 
tickets for these prizes. If we obtain a raffle license, we plan to sell tickets at a fixed price at the door to raise 
funds for our fee waiver program. The proceeds from the raffle will be allocated to Parks and Recreation: 
16541.502000 Donations & Memorials. These funds will not only help cover costs associated with the fee waiver 
program but also significantly enhance our ability to reach more underprivileged youth in need of financial 
assistance, helping them develop relationships, social skills, and physical well-being through recreation 
programming. 
 
Thank you for your continuous support in the fee waiver program and your consideration in obtaining a raffle 
license. Please feel free to contact me at 832-5572 with any questions or by email at dean.gazza@appleton.org 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


Resolution #8-R-24 
Resolution to Require a Super Majority Vote on Wheel Tax or Wheel 

Tax Related Fee Increases 
 
 

Date: Wednesday July 17th, 2024  
Submitted By: Alderperson Christopher Croatt – District 14 
Referred To: Finance Committee 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION SUMMARY 

 
Require a super majority vote (2/3) of the Common Council on any change to the City of 
Appleton wheel tax or wheel tax related fees proposed by the city or part of a resolution 
submitted by an Alderperson or Alderpersons. 
 

 
 
 

FULL RESOLUTION 
 
Whereas tax and fee increases can have a direct financial impact on the citizens of 
Appleton, and; 
 
And Whereas tax and fee changes can have an impact on departmental budgets, capital 
projects, borrowing obligations, service levels, and operations, and; 
 
And Whereas certain transactions such as transfer of funds, special use permits, and 
some other important financial impact votes require a super majority vote of the Common 
Council, and; 
 
And Whereas important votes on tax and fee increases should be held to the same higher 
threshold for approval as other finance-based matters with the potential for direct financial 
implications to taxpaying citizens, now; 
 
Therefore, Be It Resolved the City of Appleton requires a super majority vote defined as a 
2/3 vote of the members of the Common Council on all wheel tax and wheel tax related fee 
changes, including increases and decreases.   



 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:   August 12, 2024 

To:  Finance Committee 

From:  Jay Ratchman, Director of Human Resources 

Olivia Galyon, Community Development Specialist 

Subject:  ARPA Funds De-obligation and Re-obligation to Human Resources 

Strategic Planning Project 

 

 

 

City staff are bringing forward a request to deobligate a portion of two existing ARPA 

allocations for projects that will not need their entire allocated budget and reallocate those 

available funds to a Human Resources Department project. Appleton Common Council 

approved funding for two American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) projects, the Neighborhood 

Leadership Academy and Comprehensive Plan Update, on April 3, 2024, following a 

recommendation of approval from the Finance Committee. The Neighborhood Leadership 

Academy was originally allocated $100,000, and the Comprehensive Plan Update was 

originally allocated $400,000. These projects are each being carried out by the Community 

Development Department, which is contracting with professional services firms to provide the 

necessary services to implement these projects.  

Following the release of an RFP for each project and firm interviews and proposal refinement, 

firms were recommended for selection, and Community Development Committee and 

Common Council approved the consultants and contract totals. SmithGroup was selected for 

the Comprehensive Plan Update for a total contract amount of $375,000. NeighborWorks 

Green Bay was selected for the Neighborhood Leadership Academy proposal for a total 

contract amount of $80,000. Both projects came in under their originally allocated amounts, 

providing the opportunity for de-obligation of the remaining $25,000 from the Comp Plan 

project and $20,000 from the Neighborhood Leadership Academy project. The total $45,000 

remaining from these projects is available to be re-obligated to the Human Resources 

Department for their Strategic Planning project. The Strategic Planning project has been 

reviewed for ARPA eligibility and approved by the City’s consultants at Booth Management and 

Consulting.  

The Strategic Planning project will serve as a context for City strategic decisions and actions 

for years to come. The project will include an organizational assessment, creation of a core 

mission and guiding principles, core values, and identification of top priorities based on 

customer data and feedback. The development of this internal strategic plan will be 

coordinated with the update of the City’s external comprehensive plan update to ensure 

alignment of the internal and external plans. This project is vital for ensuring that the vision, 



mission, guiding beliefs and core values are clearly identified and conveyed to employees and 

the community, and that City strategies and projects align to ultimately meet community needs 

of our citizens and visitors.   

Staff have two recommendations for committee and council to enable the HR Strategic 

Planning ARPA project to proceed. First, staff recommend that committee de-obligate the 

remaining $25,000 from the Comprehensive Plan project that will not be used, as well as 

$20,000 from the Neighborhood Leadership Academy project. If approved, staff will make edits 

to the MOUs that obligated these funds. Second, staff recommend that committee approve the 

re-obligation of these funds to the HR Strategic Planning project for a total of $45,000.  



 

MEMORANDUM  
Date:   08/12/2024 
To:  Finance Committee  
From:  Pete Neuberger, Deputy Director of Public Works 
Subject: Request to Approve State/Municipal Financial Agreement for I-41/Ballard 

Interchange Project (2025 City Cost Share $435,200). 
 
The Department of Public Works (DPW) is requesting authorization for the City of Appleton to enter 
into a State/Municipal Financial Agreement (SMFA) for the I-41/Ballard Interchange Project. The 
SMFA is attached.  

 

• Per SMFA page 2, total project cost estimate is $23.87 Millon, including: 
o $23.02 Million State/Federal funds  
o $411,015 Outagamie County funds 
o $435,200 City of Appleton funds 

• Project bid letting is scheduled for October 2024. 
• Start of construction is scheduled for spring of 2025. 
• WisDOT intends to issue an SMFA update as needed based on actual bids received. 
• WisDOT requests local partners enter into the SMFA at this time to allow for an orderly and 

efficient bidding and award process this fall. 
• City Cost Share is included in DPW’s 2025 CIP budget request. 

 
 

 Thank you for your consideration. 

 



   

 

 1 of 7 ID 1130-65-76 NE Region  

 

 
The signatories  City of Appleton and Outagamie County, hereinafter called the Municipality, through its 

undersigned duly authorized officers or officials, hereby requests the State of Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation, hereinafter called the State, to initiate and affect the highway or street improvement hereinafter 
described. 

The authority for the Municipality to enter into this agreement with the State is provided by Section 86.25(1), 
(2), and (3) of the Statutes. 
 

NEEDS AND ESTIMATE SUMMARY: 

Existing Facility - Describe and give reason for request: 

The IH 41 Project corridor, which has four travel lanes – two in each direction – is congested and sees a higher 

rate of crashes than similarly configured freeways in Wisconsin. By federal standards, the project area has 

multiple roadway design deficiencies, and much of its pavement and several bridges are nearing the end of their 

useful lives and must be replaced. 

Much of the original pavement in the corridor was built in the 1960s and has reached the end of its useful life, 

meaning further rehabilitations are no longer cost-effective. The project corridor also has narrow road shoulders, 

outdated ramp designs, and interchanges spaced too closely to one another – deficiencies that can contribute to 

safety and operational problems. 

Proposed Improvement – Nature of work: 

WisDOT identified the diverging diamond interchange as the preferred alternative for the County E interchange. At 

the County E interchange, the diverging diamond interchange (DDI) is the safest interchange option, has the best 

traffic operations, and has the support of the Municipality. Impacts between alternatives considered are not 

substantially different. 

 

County E will be reconstructed, and bike lanes will be added from Capitol Drive to Evergreen Drive. Sidewalk and 

shared use paths impacted by reconstruction will be replaced. New storm sewer will be installed within the project 

limits. The existing structures carrying County E over IH 41 will be replaced with structures B-44-0324 and B-44-

0325. Retaining walls R-44-0040 and R-44-0041 will be constructed. Sign structures S-44-0367, S-44-0369, S-44-

0370, S-44-0371, S-44-0372, and S-44-0373 will be constructed. New traffic signals will be installed at the IH 

41/County E ramp terminals. MUTCD compliant signing and pavement markings will be installed with the project 

                                                                                                                                                                                

The trees in the Ballard Interchange median will be replaced with the project.  

Describe non-participating work included in the project and other work necessary to finish the project 

completely which will be undertaken independently by the municipality: 

The core and west approach to the County E/ Capitol Drive intersection will be reconstructed to allow for the 

addition of an eastbound left turn lane (two total eastbound left turn lanes after reconstruction). Bike lanes will be 

constructed on both sides of the Capitol Drive. Sidewalk will be replaced on the north side of Capitol Drive. The 

limits of the reconstruction of Capitol Drive extend from the core of the County E/ Capitol Drive intersection to 250 

ft west of Commerce Court.  

Work along Capitol Drive and Ballard and Capitol Drive intersection core will also include storm sewer installation, 

erosion control, fertilizer/seed/mulch, permanent signing, traffic signals, pavement marking and temporary traffic 

 

 

ORIGINAL 

STATE/MUNICIPAL  
FINANCIAL AGREEMENT FOR  

A STATE – LET HIGHWAY 

PROJECT  

 

Date:   6/20/2024  
ID:    1130-65-76 (Design: 1130-63-01) 
Road Name:  IH 41 
Title: Appleton – De Pere 

Limits:    Ballard Road (CTH E) Interchange 

County: Outagamie 

Roadway Length: 0.51 Miles 



   

 

 2 of 7 ID 1130-65-76 NE Region  

control.  

Landscaping elements such as trees, bushes, and grass will be added to the medians and islands of the IH 41 and 

Ballard Road diverging diamond interchange (DDI). 

City of Appleton Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) infrastructure will be added to the IH 41 and Ballard 

Road DDI 

 

                              SUMMARY OF COSTS 

 
Phase 1 

Total Est. 

Cost 

Federal/State 

Funds 

 
% 

City of 

Appleton 

 
% 

County of 

Outagamie 

 
% 

Design Engineering N/A N/A 100% $0 0% $0 0% 

Real Estate Acquisition N/A N/A 100% $0 0% $0 0% 

Municipal Utility Coordination: N/A N/A 100% $0 0% $0 0% 

Construction 2:        

Category 1000 – Roadway $23,000,000.00 $23,000,000.00 100% $0 0% $0 0% 

Category 16XX – 100% Outagamie 

County Funded 

$15.00 $0 0% $0 0% $15.00 100% 

Category 18XX – 100% State 

Funded 

$1,000.00 $1,000.00 100% $0 0% $0 0% 

Category 20XX – B-44-0324   100% $0 0% $0 0% 

Category 20XX – B-44-0325   100% $0 0% $0 0% 

Category XXXX – Ballard and 

Capitol Intersection 

$618,000.00 $0 0% $309,000.00 50% $309,000.00 50% 

Category XXXX – Ballard Rd 

Interchange Landscaping (CSS) 

$200,000.00 $0 0% $100,000.00 50% $100,000.00 50% 

Category XXXX – Ballard Rd Tree 
Replacement (18 Trees) 

$20,000.00 $16,000.00 80% $2,000.00 10% $2,000.00 10% 

Category XXXX – City of Appleton 

ITS  

$24,000.00 $0 0% $24,000.00 100% $0 0% 

Category XXXX – City of Appleton 

Sanitary Manhole Adjustments  

$2,000.00 $1,800.00 90% $200.00 10% $0 0% 

       Subtotal $23,865,015.00 $23,017,800.00  $435,200.00  $411,015.00  

Total Est. Cost Distribution $23,865,015.00 $23,017,800.00  $435,200.00  $411,015.00  

1. Costs shown are estimates only and may be updated as design progresses 

2. Estimates include construction engineering, estimated at 15%.
 

 

 
This request shall constitute agreement between the Municipality and the State; is subject to the terms and 
conditions that follow (pages [3] – [7]); is made by the undersigned under proper authority to make such request 

for the designated Municipality, upon signature by the State, upon fully executed signature of applicable State 
Municipal Maintenance Agreement and delivery to the Municipality. The initiation and accomplishment of the 
improvement will be subject to the applicable federal and state regulations. No term or provision of neither the 
State/Municipal Financial Agreement nor any of its attachments may be changed, waived, or terminated orally 
but only by an instrument in writing executed by both parties to the State/Municipal Financial Agreement. 

 



   

 

 3 of 7 ID 1130-65-76 NE Region  

Signed for and in behalf of the City of Appleton 

 
Name  

 
 

 
Title 

           (print) 

 
Signature  

 

 
Date 

Signed for and in behalf of Outagamie County 

 
Name  

 
 
 
Title 

           (print) 

 
Signature  

 

 
Date 

 
Signed for and in behalf of the State  

 
Name 

 
 

 
Title 

          (print) 
 

Signature 

 
 

Date 
   (please sign in blue ink) 

 

 

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

1. The Municipality shall pay to the State all costs incurred by the State in connection with the improvement which 
exceeds federal/state financing commitments or are ineligible for federal/state financing. Local participation 
shall be limited to the items and percentages set forth in the Summary of Costs table, which shows Municipal 

funding participation. In order to guarantee the Municipality’s foregoing agreements to pay the State, the 
Municipality, through its above duly authorized officers or officials, agrees and authorizes the State to set off 
and withhold the required reimbursement amount as determined by the State from General Transportation 
Aids or any moneys otherwise due and payable by the State to the Municipality. 

2. Funding of each project phase is subject to inclusion in an approved program and per the State’s Facility 
Development Manual (FDM) standards. Federal aid and/or state transportation fund financing will be limited 
to participation in the costs of the following items as specified in the Summary of Costs: 

(a) Design engineering and state review services. 

(b) Real Estate necessitated for the improvement. 

(c) Compensable utility adjustment and railroad force work necessitated for the project. 

(d) The grading, base, pavement, curb and gutter, and structure costs to State standards, excluding the cost of 
parking areas. 

(e) Storm sewer mains, culverts, laterals, manholes, inlets, catch basins, and connections for surface water 

drainage of the improvement; including replacement and/or adjustments of existing storm sewer manhole 
covers, and inlet grates as needed.  

(f) Construction engineering incidental to inspection and supervision of actual construction work, except for 

inspection, staking, and testing of sanitary sewer and water main. 

(g) Signing and pavement marking necessitated for the safe and efficient flow of traffic, including detour 



   

 

 4 of 7 ID 1130-65-76 NE Region  

routes. 

(h) Replacement of existing sidewalks necessitated by construction and construction of new sidewalk at the 
time of construction. Sidewalk is considered to be new if it’s constructed in a location where it has not 
existed before. 

(i) Replacement of existing driveways, in kind, necessitated by the project. 

(j) New installations or alteration resulting from roadway construction of standard State street lighting 

and traffic signals or devices. Alteration may include salvaging and replacement of existing components. 

(k) WisDOT will replace the existing trees located in the median of the Ballard Road interchange 

3. Work necessary to complete the improvement to be financed entirely by the Municipality or other utility 
or facility owner includes the following items: 

(a) New installations of or alteration of sanitary sewers and connections, water, gas, electric, telephone, 
telegraph, fire or police alarm facilities, parking meters, and similar utilities. 

(b) New installation or alteration of signs not necessary for the safe and efficient flow of traffic. 

(c) Roadway and bridge width in excess of standards. 

(d) Construction inspection, staking, and material testing and acceptance for construction of sanitary 
sewer and water main. 

(e) Provide complete plans, specifications, and estimates for sanitary sewer and water main work. The 
Municipality assumes full responsibility for the design, installation, inspection, testing, and operation of 

the sanitary sewer and water system. This relieves the State and all of its employees from the liability for 
all suits, actions, or claims resulting from the sanitary sewer and water system construction. 

(f) Parking lane costs. 

(g) Coordinate, clean up, and fund any hazardous materials encountered for city utility construction. All 
hazardous material cleanup work shall be performed in accordance with state and federal regulations. 

(h)  Ballard and Capitol Intersection costs. 

• Compensable utility adjustment and railroad force work necessitated for the project. 

• The grading, base, pavement, curb and gutter, and structure costs to State standards 

• Storm sewer mains, culverts, laterals, manholes, inlets, catch basins, and connections for surface water 
drainage of the improvement; including replacement and/or adjustments of existing storm sewer 
manhole covers and inlet grates as needed. 

• Signing and pavement marking necessitated for the safe and efficient flow of traffic. 

• Replacement of existing sidewalks necessitated by construction and construction of new sidewalk at 
the time of construction.  Sidewalk is considered to be new if it’s constructed in a location where it has 
not existed before.  

• Replacement of existing driveways, in kind, necessitated by the project. 

• New installations or alteration resulting from roadway construction of standard street lighting and traffic 
signals or devices. Alteration may include salvaging and replacement of existing components. 

(i) Ballard Road Interchange Landscaping (CSS)  

(j) City of Appleton Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) 



   

 

 5 of 7 ID 1130-65-76 NE Region  

4. As the work progresses, the Municipality will be billed for work completed which is not chargeable to 
federal/state funds. Upon completion of the project, a final audit will be made to determine the final division 
of costs. 

5. If the Municipality should withdraw the project, it shall reimburse the State for any costs incurred by the State 
on behalf of the project. 

6. The work will be administered by the State and may include items not eligible for federal/state participation. 

7. The Municipality shall, in cooperation with the State, assist with public relations for the project and 
announcements to the press and such outlets as would generally alert the affected property owners and the 
community of the nature, extent, and timing of the project and arrangements for handling traffic within and 
around the project. 

8. Basis for local participation: 

Design Engineering, Real Estate Acquisition, Utility Coordination: 

The State will pay 100% of the cost for design engineering, real estate acquisition, and utility coordination. 

Costs for design engineering, real estate acquisition, and utility coordination are shown as not applicable 
(N/A) in the summary of costs table due to the complexities of isolating individual Let Project costs from 
the Appleton-Green Bay corridor wide design ID (1130-63-01) and this information is not relevant to the 
municipal construction cost share. 

Construction ID: 1130-65-76 

The Project Agreement will be revised, if necessary, as the project progresses. All costs shown are 

approximate and subject to final audit. 

Category 1000 – Roadway Items 

The State will pay 100% of the construction costs under Category 1000 – Roadway Items unless otherwise 
noted. 

Category 16XX – Outagamie County 

In accordance with Local Participation Policy Section 3-25-5 of the State’s Program Management Manual 
proposed improvements requested by the Municipality within the project limits, but outside the original 
project scope, are considered 100% the responsibility of the Municipality. 

 

Item 

Number Item Description Units 

Estimated 

Qty Unit Price Amount 

305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 1 ¼-Inch TON 1 $13 $13.00 

      

 1130-65-76 Construction Total    $13.00 
 15% Construction Engineering    $2.00 

 1130-65-76 Project Total    $15.00 

 

Category 18XX – 100% State Funded 

The State will pay 100% of the construction costs under Category 18XX – 100% State Funded Items unless 
otherwise noted. 

 

 



   

 

 6 of 7 ID 1130-65-76 NE Region  

Category 20XX – B-44-0324 

The State will pay 100% of the construction costs under Category 20XX – B-44-0324 unless otherwise 
noted. 

Category 20XX – B-44-0325 

The State will pay 100% of the construction costs under Category 20XX – B-44-0325 unless otherwise 
noted. 

Category XXXX – Ballard and Capitol Intersection  

In accordance with Local Participation Policy Section 3-25-5 of the State’s Program Management Manual 
proposed improvements requested by the Municipality within the project limits, but outside the original 
project scope, are considered 100% the responsibility of the Municipality. 

Category XXXX - Ballard Rd Interchange Landscaping (CSS) 

In accordance with the Local Participation Policy Section 3-25-5 of the State’s Program Management 
Manual Wis. Stat. 85.0205 (1m) prevents the use of improvement funds on elements of a highway 
improvement project that are determined to be primarily related to the aesthetic preferences of communities 

adjacent to the improvement. These aesthetic preferences are commonly called community sensitive 
solutions (CSS) or community sensitive design (CSD). 

In accordance with Local Participation Policy Section 3-25-5 of the State’s Program Management Manual 
proposed improvements requested by the Municipality within the project limits, but outside the original 
project scope, are considered 100% the responsibility of the Municipality. 

Category XXXX - Ballard Rd Tree Replacement  

In accordance with the Local Participation Policy Section 3-25-15 of the State’s Program Management 

Manual landscaping replacement in the median or terrace area that is approved by WisDOT is eligible for 
WisDOT participation. 

Landscaping is 80 percent eligible for WisDOT participation when placement is in the right-of-way or 
when the municipality or WisDOT legally arranges for placement on private property in cases where there 
is insufficient space in the right-of-way.  

Landscaping will be consistent with the adopted WisDOT standards (limited to trees and shrubs as 
appropriate), provided the municipality or property owner accepts responsibility for the maintenance of the 
landscaping items. 

Category XXXX - City of Appleton Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) 

In accordance with Local Participation Policy Section 3-25-5 of the State’s Program Management Manual 
proposed improvements requested by the Municipality within the project limits, but outside the original 
project scope, are considered 100% the responsibility of the Municipality. 

Category XXXX – City of Appleton Sanitary Manhole Adjustments 

Wisconsin State Stature 84.295 (4m) Municipal Utility Relocation; Freeway Construction  

(a) The state shall pay 90 percent of the eligible costs of the relocation or replacement of any municipal 
utility facilities required by the construction of any freeway undertaken by the department. The affected 

municipal utility shall pay the balance of such costs. 

 

 



   

 

 7 of 7 ID 1130-65-76 NE Region  

Item 

Number 
Item Description Units 

Estimated 

Qty 
Unit Price Amount 

SPV.0060 Special 1200.  Adjusting Sanitary Manhole EACH 1 $1,739 $1,739  

            
  1130-65-76 Construction Total       $1,739  

  15% Construction Engineering       $261  

  1130-65-76 Project Total        $2,000  

  10% Municipal Participation         $200 

 

 

Comments and Clarification: This agreement is an active agreement that may need to be amended as the project 
is designed. It is understood that these amendments may be needed as some issues have not been fully evaluated 
or resolved. The purpose of this agreement is to specify the local and state involvement in funding the project. 
A signed agreement is required before the State will prepare or participate in the preparation of detailed designs, 
acquire right-of-way, or participate in construction of a project that merits local involvement. 

 



From: Debra Ebben
To: Debra Ebben
Subject: FW: FY24 Bus Grant Award for Appleton - Congratulations!
Date: Thursday, July 18, 2024 3:29:38 PM
Attachments: image003.png

image004.png
image005.png
image006.png
image007.png

 

From: Garg, Ajay (FTA) <ajay.garg@dot.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, July 9, 2024 10:53 AM
To: Ronald C. McDonald <Ronald.McDonald@Appleton.org>
Cc: Brookins, Kelley (FTA) <kelley.brookins@dot.gov>
Subject: FY24 Bus Grant Award for Appleton - Congratulations!

 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

Hi Mr. McDonald,
 
Congratulations on your Award!
 
Today, FTA is announcing the grant awards for the FY24 Low and No Emission (Low-
No) and Bus and Bus Facilities (Bus) grant programs.

Combined, the FY24 Low-No and Bus grants will provide nearly $1.5 billion in
competitive funding for 117 projects in 47 states, resulting in approximately 1,100 new
buses on the nation’s streets.

I’m happy to say that your agency will receive $12.0M for modernize of bus
maintenance facility project.  

We are excited to help you deliver on this important endeavor, which will improve
transit service for your community while creating American jobs.

We would greatly appreciate it if you publicized this grant award on your social
media channels! This email includes materials to assist you, such as a sample press
release, media advisory, and customizable social media graphics.

Please include #busmonth in any social media items and be sure to tag FTA. Our
social media handles can be found here.

For additional guidance, please visit FTA’s Social Media Toolkit webpage. I can also
connect you to FTA’s public affairs office as needed.

Feel free to mention elements of your award in your external press, such as the
facility to be replaced, equity, air quality, workforce development, etc.

If applicable: A particular focus this year is streamlining the procurements of buses
funded through these awards, for example, by reducing customizations and using

mailto:Debra.Ebben@Appleton.org
mailto:Debra.Ebben@Appleton.org
mailto:ajay.garg@dot.gov
mailto:Ronald.McDonald@Appleton.org
mailto:kelley.brookins@dot.gov
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.transit.dot.gov%2fabout%2fnews%2fsocial-media&c=E,1,ACdsy7rlYLibc_qPGMCiO5FAh6-wKhPIw3PRXfu1KK8lEsitHyIWj4zYKI0i9zs2N_6ikt8hUMBmTpBLLSFpxLsjvrVm2GibkLk-tCQVf8_wgiVfkZHJ&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.transit.dot.gov%2ffunding%2fgrants%2fsocial-media-toolkit-fta-fy24-buses-bus-facilities-and-low-or-no-emission-grants&c=E,1,YB0KmWRTggqAtVmk4v9Z8sN3gK141UJ2Kl48e655GseGpxxvwnC_aZkVSP3PHO-XX6oqOsfNPAX-oUFGUDkLPUjGEbDJs1Kf9N5o1uqyL_N58GSik-nkfr0RxTTm&typo=1







standardized bus models as much as possible.

If you are considering holding an event in the coming weeks, please let us know. We
would be happy to participate.

If you have any questions about how to complete your application in TrAMS, please
do not hesitate to contact us.

Again, congratulations – this is a great day for investing in American infrastructure!

 
 
Regards,
 
 
 

Ajay Garg
Deputy Regional Administrator
Region V
200 West Adams, Suite 320
 Chicago, IL 60606
T 312.353.2790
E ajay.garg@dot.gov

   

                

 
 
 

Attention: This message was sent from a source external to the City of Appleton. Please
use caution when opening attachments or clicking links.
Attention: This message was sent from a source external to the City of Appleton. Please
use caution when opening attachments or clicking links.

mailto:ajay.garg@dot.gov
https://www.facebook.com/FTADOT/
https://twitter.com/FTA_DOT
https://www.instagram.com/federaltransitadministration/




Appleton Health Department 
Policies 

 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared Documents/General/POLICIES/N 
Nursing/POL_N200_Child Passenger Safety Program_DRAFT.docx 

 

Title: Child Passenger Safety Program 

Policy #: N200 

Creation Date: 4.24.24 Last Approved 
Date:  Reviewed Annually 

Description: Child Passenger Safety Program 

PHAB Domain/ 
Standard/ 
Measure (LINK): 

4.1.2 A Participate Actively in Community Health Coalitions 

Statutory 
Authority/ 
Evidence Base/ 
Links: 

Child Safety Restraint Systems Section 347.48 Wisconsin Statutes 

Author(s)/ 
Reviewer(s): Val Davis, Julie Erickson, Sonja Jensen, Katie Schink-Pawlowski 

Policy Approval Tracking 

Created/ 
Reviewed/ 
Revised Date 

Legal Services 
Approval Date 

Board of 
Health 
Approval Date 

Council 
Approval Date 

Health Officer or 
Designee Signature 
(Name/Title) 

Created 4.24.24 6.5.24    

     

     

 

Purpose 
A Child Passenger Safety (CPS) program will ensure caregivers have access to a car seat/s for their 
children along with proper installation and education. 

Policy 
Appleton Health Department will decrease childhood injuries by providing car seats to eligible families 
and by providing car seat checks with CPS education. Eligible families will meet the criteria as defined 
in Child Passenger Safety Program Procedure. 

https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/statutes/statutes/347/iii/48#:%7E:text=347.48(4)(as)1,with%20a%20back%20passenger%20seat.


Appleton Health Department 
Policies 

 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared Documents/General/POLICIES/N 
Nursing/POL_N200_Child Passenger Safety Program_DRAFT.docx 

 

Definitions 
Car seat-approved child passenger restraint system 

CPS-Child Passenger Safety 

Attachments 

Child Passenger Safety Program Procedure 

Child Passenger Safety Appointment Scheduling Procedure 

Child Passenger Safety Fitting Station Procedure 



Appleton Health Department 
Procedures 

 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared Documents/General/POLICIES/N 
Nursing/PRO_N201_ChildPassengerSafetyProgramProcedure_DRAFT.docx 

 

Title: Child Passenger Safety Program Procedure 

Procedure #: PRO_N201 

Creation Date: 5.20.24 Last Approved 
Date:  Reviewed Annually 

Description: Procedure for the Child Passenger Safety Program 

PHAB Domain/ 
Standard/ 
Measure (LINK): 

4.1.2 A Participate Actively in Community Health Coalitions 

Statutory 
Authority/ 
Evidence Base/ 
Links: 

Child Safety Restraint Systems Section 347.48 Wisconsin Statutes 

Author(s)/ 
Reviewer(s): Val Davis, Julie Erickson, Sonja Jensen, Katie Schink-Pawlowski 

Procedure Approval Tracking 

Created/ 
Reviewed/ 
Revised Date 

Division Supervisor 
Signature 

Department Medical 
Advisor (if required) 

Health Officer or 
Designee Signature 
(Name/Title) 

Created 5/20/24    

    

    

 

Purpose 

A Child Passenger Safety (CPS) program will ensure caregivers have access to a car seat for their 
children along with proper installation and education.    
 

Procedure 

Referrals 
1) Referrals can be made by Public Health staff, WIC, Community partners, or self-referral for 

families/individuals who need a car seat(s) or education on proper use of a car seat(s). 
2) Incoming referrals are given to lead CPS tech to be assigned and recorded on spread sheet. 

https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/statutes/statutes/347/iii/48#:%7E:text=347.48(4)(as)1,with%20a%20back%20passenger%20seat.


Appleton Health Department 
Procedures 

 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared Documents/General/POLICIES/N 
Nursing/PRO_N201_ChildPassengerSafetyProgramProcedure_DRAFT.docx 

 
3) CPS tech will reach out to client to gather necessary information and schedule an appointment. 

Information needed: 
•  Childs name 
•  Age 
• Height  
• Weight 
•  Car seat model and manufacturer 
• Vehicle year, make and model 

Voucher 
4) Eligibility includes those who live in City of Appleton needing a car seat and who are on or qualify for 

Badger Care, meet WIC income guidelines, or have a child eligible for reduced school lunches. 
5) Appointments can be scheduled with the caregiver to be held at a mutual agreeable time and location.  

Installation 

1) Install car seat per installation guidelines in accordance with the National Child Passenger Safety 
Certification Training Program. 

2) Review the most up to date Car Seat Recall/Defects and Safety Notices. 
https://www.saferidenews.com/resources/tools-for-cpsts/recalls/ 

3) Complete Safe Kids Installation Checklist. Have caregiver sign and initial consent and release of liability 
on the form.  

4) If family is receiving a car seat, have the caregiver complete the mandatory Recipient Survey Form, and 
sign the car seat voucher.  CPS Tech should complete voucher form. 

Record Retention 
1) The completed Safe Kids Installation Checklist, car seat voucher, and Recipient Survey Form will be 

maintained for 7 years.  Scan and upload forms into appropriate folder. 
2) The City of Appleton Health Department will maintain proof of current Child Passenger Safety 

Technician Certification for any individuals installing car seats.  

Definitions 
CPS Tech-Child Passenger Safety Technician 

CPS Program-Child Passenger Safety Program 

Voucher- Wisconsin Department of Transportation’s Bureau of Transportation Safety (BOTS) grant funded car 
seat documentation form  

WIC-Women, Infants and Children 

 

https://www.saferidenews.com/resources/tools-for-cpsts/recalls/


Appleton Health Department 
Procedures 

 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared Documents/General/POLICIES/N 
Nursing/PRO_N201_ChildPassengerSafetyProgramProcedure_DRAFT.docx 

 

Attachments and References 
The LATCH Manual (most recent version)  

National Child Passenger Safety Certification Training Program Technician Guide 

Voucher Form 

Installation Checklist 

Recipient Survey  

Referral Tracking Document  

Car Seat Recall/Defects and Safety Notices  

 

https://www.nhtsa.gov/vehicle-safety/car-seats-and-booster-seats#installation-help-car-seat-installation-instructions
https://www.saferidenews.com/resources/tools-for-cpsts/recalls/


Appleton Health Department 
Procedures 

 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared Documents/General/POLICIES/N 
Nursing/PRO_N202_ChildPassengerSeatAppointmentScheduling_DRAFT.docx 

 
 

Title: Child Passenger Safety Seat Appointment Scheduling  

Procedure #: PRO_N202 

Creation Date: 04.09.24 Last Approved 
Date:  Reviewed Annually 

Description: Procedure for Child Passenger Safety Seat Appointment Scheduling 

PHAB Domain/ 
Standard/ 
Measure (LINK): 

4.1.2 A Participate Actively in Community Health Coalitions 

Statutory 
Authority/ 
Evidence Base/ 
Links: 

Child Safety Restraint Systems Section 347.48 Wisconsin Statutes 

Author(s)/ 
Reviewer(s): Val Davis, Julie Erickson, Sonja Jensen, Katie Schink-Pawlowski 

Procedure Approval Tracking 

Created/ 
Reviewed/ 
Revised Date 

Division Supervisor 
Signature 

Department Medical 
Advisor (if required) 

Health Officer or 
Designee Signature 
(Name/Title) 

Created 
04.09.24    

    

    

 

Purpose 
Procedure to ensure that appointment scheduling for child passenger safety seat installation and 
education appointments is an efficient and equitable process. 

Procedure 
Voucher Program 

1. A client must meet the following criteria to qualify for free child passenger seat from City of 
Appleton 

a. Appleton resident 

https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/statutes/statutes/347/iii/48#:%7E:text=347.48(4)(as)1,with%20a%20back%20passenger%20seat.


Appleton Health Department 
Procedures 

 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared Documents/General/POLICIES/N 
Nursing/PRO_N202_ChildPassengerSeatAppointmentScheduling_DRAFT.docx 

b. Income eligible (must qualify for WIC, Badger Care 
and/or free and reduced lunch) 

2. If above criteria are met and client requests a car seat, schedule for next fitting station if opening 
available in Outlook Calendar titled ‘Fitting Station”.  

3. Time slots are marked off for the second Tuesday of the month, April-October from 1-5pm. The 
last appointment should be scheduled for 4:30pm. 

4. Let client know the dates of upcoming fitting stations and available time slots. 
a. For families having one seat installed, schedule one 30-minute time slot. 
b. For families having two or more seats installed, schedule two consecutive 30-minute 

time slots.  
c. Explain to client that education and installation of car seat will take 30-60 minutes. 
d. Provide the location of the car seat fitting station:  

i. Appleton Fire Department #5, 1701 W. Brewster St., Appleton, 54914. 
e. Ask client to bring vehicle manual. 

5. If the client expresses an urgent situation (i.e. pregnant and due before next fitting station), let 
them know a technician will call them to make alternate arrangements. 

6. Notify a CPS Technician of situation so they can reach out to client. 
7. Fill out referral form and save here J:\Nursing\Car Seat referrals and appts to Nursing: Car Seat 

Referrals and Appointments. 
8. Fill out a car seat voucher for each child in need of seat. Please fill out as much information as 

possible (height, weight, birthdate, due date, vehicle year, make and model).  
a. Note if client needs interpreter and which language. 
b. If they are scheduled for fitting station, notify Lead CPS Technician via teams. 
c. If they have an urgent need for an individual appointment, put in Lead CPS Technician’s 

mailbox and send Teams message. 

Services for General Public 

1. If a client already has a car seat but needs help installing it 
• Schedule these clients in the Outlook Calendar using the process above. 
• A voucher does not have to be filled out for these appointments. 

 

Definitions 
Car seat-approved child passenger restraint system 

CPS-Child Passenger Safety 

BOTS – Bureau of Transportation Safety 

Voucher – Wisconsin Bureau of Transportation Safety (BOTS) grant funded car seat documentation form 

WIC – Women, Infants and Children  



Appleton Health Department 
Procedures 

 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared Documents/General/POLICIES/N 
Nursing/PRO_N202_ChildPassengerSeatAppointmentScheduling_DRAFT.docx 

Attachments 
The LATCH Manual (most recent version)  

National Child Passenger Safety Certification Training Program Technician Guide  

Voucher Form 

Installation Checklist 

Recipient Survey  

Referral Tracking Document  

Car Seat Recall/Defects and Safety Notices  

 

https://www.nhtsa.gov/vehicle-safety/car-seats-and-booster-seats#installation-help-car-seat-installation-instructions
https://www.saferidenews.com/resources/tools-for-cpsts/recalls/


Appleton Health Department 
Procedures 

 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared Documents/General/POLICIES/N 
Nursing/PRO_N203_ChildPassengerFittingStation_DRAFT.docx 

 
 

Title: Child Passenger Fitting Station 

Procedure #: PRO_N203 

Creation Date: 4.24.24 Last Approved 
Date:  Reviewed Annually 

Description: Procedure for Child Passenger Fitting Station 

PHAB Domain/ 
Standard/ 
Measure (LINK): 

4.1.2 A Participate Actively in Community Health Coalitions 

Statutory 
Authority/ 
Evidence Base/ 
Links: 

Child Safety Restraint Systems Section 347.48 Wisconsin Statutes 

Author(s)/ 
Reviewer(s): Val Davis, Julie Erickson, Sonja Jensen, Katie Schink-Pawlowski 

Procedure Approval Tracking 

Created/ 
Reviewed/ 
Revised Date 

Division Supervisor 
Signature 

Department Medical 
Advisor (if required) 

Health Officer or 
Designee Signature 
(Name/Title) 

Created 4.24.24    

    

    

 

Purpose 
A procedure for the Appleton Child Passenger Safety Fitting Station to ensure that the process is 
efficient and equitable for families who need child passenger safety seat installation and education.  

Procedure 
Scheduling 

1. Schedule in Fitting Station Outlook Calendar, follow scheduling instructions. 
2. Schedule interpreter service if needed for fitting station after appointment with client is 

scheduled. 

https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://phaboard.org/wp-content/uploads/Standards-Measures-Initial-Accreditation-Version-2022.pdf
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/statutes/statutes/347/iii/48#:%7E:text=347.48(4)(as)1,with%20a%20back%20passenger%20seat.


Appleton Health Department 
Procedures 

 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared Documents/General/POLICIES/N 
Nursing/PRO_N203_ChildPassengerFittingStation_DRAFT.docx 

Day of Fitting Station 

1. Print Excel spreadsheet for appointment schedule. This should have age, height, weight of child 
to determine what seats will be needed for car seat vouchers. Bring seats, if needed, to fire 
station. Update car seat inventory on spreadsheet. 

2. Make sure you have copies of vouchers needed. 
3. Have BOTS surveys if providing seats with voucher. One survey per seat given must be 

completed. 
4. Try to use convertible seats for infants unless underlying circumstance. Convertible seats will 

last longer. Keep track of names of clients receiving seats so duplicate seats are not given to 
same client in the future. 

5. Bring printed copy of Excel spreadsheet schedule. 
6. Bring Safe Kids check in form for staff and volunteers to sign in and out. 
7. All forms and supplies should be in bin located in storage closet at Fire Department #5. 
8. Bring laptop to look up car seat manufacturer instructions if not available. 

At Fire Department 

1. If garage door is closed go to front door of fire station located off Brewster St. 
2. If equipment is in stall find firefighter to clear/move equipment. 
3. Supplies are in storage closet (storage bins, forms, pool noodles, scale, doll, extra seats, etc.)  
4. Have all staff and volunteers sign in and out on Safe Kids Check In form (Needed for Buckle Up 

Grant). 
5. When registrants arrive for appointments record how many adults and children attend for each 

appointment on schedule. 
6. For example, if 2 adults and 2 children come for one time slot, record 2A2C. If registrant is a no-

show record NS. For a pregnant mom use 1A1C. 
7. If one family comes for multiple time slots only record information next to one of their 

appointments. 
8. This information is needed for the Buckle Up Report. 
9. Complete a car seat checklist form for each vehicle at the fitting station using pencil. 
10. Check form for completion and ensure the tech has written their tech number on the form when 

they have finished installing the seat(s). 
11. If registrant has a voucher, have them complete and sign a BOTS survey for each seat 

provided. Also have them sign the voucher form. 
12. Bring all completed forms and donations back to health department at the end of the evening or 

the following day.  
13. Check supplies to see if anything is needed for next fitting station (forms, noodles, etc.) 

After Fitting Station 

1. After returning to health department, look over forms, make sure everything is filled in and 
completed correctly. If any errors use a white out pen to make corrections. 

2. Fill out ‘Buckle Up’ grant form for all completed check list forms. 



Appleton Health Department 
Procedures 

 

https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthDepartment-Teams/Shared Documents/General/POLICIES/N 
Nursing/PRO_N203_ChildPassengerFittingStation_DRAFT.docx 

3. If voucher was used, make a copy of car seat 
checklist form. Place copies, signed vouchers, and completed BOTS surveys in Lead CPS 
Technician’s mailbox for filing. 

4. Paperclip original car seat check list forms and place in Lead CPS Technician’s mailbox for 
filing. 

5. Place completed registration cards for car seats in outgoing mail slot. 
6. If any donations were received, write amount, and date on note and give to Administrative 

Assistant. 

Definitions 
Car seat-approved child passenger restraint system 

CPS-Child Passenger Safety 

BOTS – Bureau of Transportation Safety 

Voucher – Wisconsin Bureau of Transportation Safety (BOTS) grant funded car seat documentation 
form 

 

Attachments 
The LATCH Manual (most recent version)  

National Child Passenger Safety Certification Training Program Technician Guide  

Voucher Form 

Installation Checklist 

Recipient Survey  

Referral Tracking Document  

Car Seat Recall/Defects and Safety Notices  

 

https://www.nhtsa.gov/vehicle-safety/car-seats-and-booster-seats#installation-help-car-seat-installation-instructions
https://www.saferidenews.com/resources/tools-for-cpsts/recalls/


Appleton Health Department 
Child Passenger Safety Checklist

Use blue, black, or #2 pencil and for mistakes use Wite-out correction tape.

Only submit original forms; copies will not be accepted.

18. Child/CSS location in vehicle
Yes No

32. My Ethnicity (VOLUNTARY)

Yes No

CHILD NUMBER ONE - COMMENT BOX ON BACK
Child Present No UnbornYes

Yes No

Child Initials

Height/inches Weight/lbs

1. Child/CSS location in vehicle

CPS Class

Tech Number

Tech Number

26. CSS/Vehicle Compatible

27. Education Materials Given

31. I participated/installed CSS

25. Child / CSS Correct

30. I harnessed child/doll in CSS

Caregiver First Name (Person Receiving Education) Caregiver Last Name

City State Zip

FINDINGS N/ANoYes

7. CSS history known

8. CSS involved in a crash

9. CSS labels missing

10. CSS expired

11. CSS recalled

12. CSS correct direction

17. Seatbelt correct

15. Lower anchors correct

16. Tether correct

13. CSS harness correct

19. Child/CSS installed using
(select all that apply)

Tech Last Name

Tech Last Name COALITION #

Caregiver signature

Phone

- -

TECHNICIAN - ALL QUESTIONS BELOW REFER TO YOUR STATE LAW

Child's age

(Mark - Go to #7)

3. Restraint type:

(Cosco, Eddie Bauer, Safety 1st,Maxi Cosi)

21. Restraint type:

14. Recline angle correct

Britax

Chicco UPPAbaby

Graco

Dorel

Clek

Baby Trend

Peg PeregoRecaro

Nuna

Diono

Other

Same as 4,5,6

Evenflo Bubble Bum

22. CSS MFG:

(Cosco, Eddie Bauer, Safety 1st,Maxi Cosi)

Yes No

20. Coalition provided a new CSS?
Yes No

D Other seating location

back
row3rd row

front row
Explain:

Britax

Chicco UPPAbaby

Graco

Dorel

Clek

Baby Trend

Peg PeregoRecaro

Diono

Nuna

Other

Evenflo Bubble Bum

4. CSS MFG:

D

back
row3rd row

front row Explain:

Lap/Shoulder

Special Needs

Base only

BP Booster

RF convertible

RF only w/ base

Lap only

RF only w/o base

Vest

FF w/ harness

(Mark - Go to #17)

Lap/Shoulder

Special Needs

Base only

BP Booster

RF convertible

RF only w/ base

Lap only

RF only w/o base

Vest

FF w/ harness

28. Discussed Unattended
Children In & Around Cars

29. Next Steps Discussed

Fill in circles like thisFill in boxes, from left to right one letter/number per box 1 2 3 A B C

(Mark - Go to 25)

Other seating location(Mark -Go to #17)

Vehicle Make/Mfg. (e.g. Chevy, Buick) Vehicle Model (e.g. Malibu, Enclave) Vehicle Year

(Mark - Go to 25)

Are you a citizen of the European Union (EU)?

Email Address

/ / 2 0Today's Date

Uninstalled (i.e in box)

Seatbelt

Tether

Integrated Seat

No CSS

Uninstalled

Seatbelt

Tether

Integrated Seat

Partner #

Unrestrained
(Mark - Go to #18)

Month Day Year

Tech Worked alone

Senior Checker

Inspection Station

ON ARRIVAL

ON DEPARTURE

2. CSS installed using (select all that apply)

Black or African American

White Hispanic Asian

American Indian/Alaska Native

Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander

Other

Initials Donation $

CAREGIVER SIGN OFF:

No CSS (Mark - Go to #18)

5. Model Number

6. MFG Date (MM/DD/YYYY)

/ /

23. Model Number:

24. MFG Date (MM/DD/YYYY):

/ /

Lower anchors

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No N/A

33. I can install my car seat on my own
Yes Maybe No

Lower anchors

Child with Special Transport Needs?

YES

0 - 12 Months

13 - 23 Months

Years
(write whole number only 2,3,4…)

Address (Optional)

Child First Name (Optional)

BASED ON LAW

BASED ON STATE LAW

30133

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING CAREFULLY! THIS WAIVER AFFECTS YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS. IF THERE IS ANYTHING IN THIS WAIVER THAT YOU DO 
NOT UNDERSTAND OR IF YOU OBJECT TO ANY PROVISION CONTAINED IN THE WAIVER, SEEK ADVICE FROM YOUR LEGAL COUNSEL. REQUESTS 
FOR MODIFICATIONS MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE AT (920) 832-6423. For good and valuable consideration, including car 
seat inspection and educational services provided at no cost to caregivers by City of Appleton staff in order to reduce the occurrences of improper 
child safety seat installations, caregiver agrees on behalf of caregiver and caregiver’s heirs, assigns and the like, to hold harmless, indemnify, and 
defend the City of Appleton and its officers, officials, employees and agents from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expenses, costs 
(including attorney fees) arising in any way out of the car seat inspection or educational services provided including, but not limited to, any acts or 
omissions to act which the caregiver may commit.



Direction: All infants and toddlers should ride in a rear-facing CSS for as long as possible, until they reach the highest weight or height allowed by their CSS
manufacturer. Most convertible seats have limits that will permit children to ride rear-facing for 2 years or more. (AAP updated August 2018).

This list is not exhaustive and should not be relied upon in place of the NHTSA standardized curriculum.

QUICK REFERENCE: KNOW YOUR STATE LAWS

18. Child/CSS location in vehicle Yes No

Child# 2 - Comments

Yes No

CHILD NUMBER TWO - COMMENT BOX BELOWChild Present No UnbornYes

Yes No

Child Initials

Height/inches Weight/lbs

2. CSS installed using (select all that apply)

1. Child/CSS location in vehicle

Tech Number

Tech Number

26. CSS/Vehicle Compatible

27. Education Materials Given

31. I participated/installed CSS

25. Child /CSS Correct

30. I harnessed child/doll in CSS

FINDINGS N/ANoYes

7. CSS history known

8. CSS involved in a crash

9. CSS labels missing

10. CSS expired

11. CSS recalled

12. CSS correct direction

17. Seatbelt correct

15. Lower anchors correct

16. Tether correct

13. CSS harness correct

19.CSS installed using(select all that apply)

Tech Last Name

Tech Last Name

Initials Donation $

(Mark - Go to #7)

3. Restraint type:

(Cosco, Eddie Bauer, Safety 1st,Maxi Cosi)

21. Restraint type:

14. Recline angle correct

Britax

Chicco UPPAbaby

Graco

Dorel

Clek

Baby Trend

Peg PeregoRecaro

Nuna

Diono

Other

Same as 4,5,6

Evenflo Bubble Bum

22. CSS MFG:

(Cosco, Eddie Bauer, Safety 1st,Maxi Cosi)

Yes No

(Mark - Go to #18)

D Other seating location

back
row3rd row

front row
Explain:

D

back
row3rd row

front row Explain:

Lap/Shoulder

Special Needs

Base only

BP Booster

RF convertible

RF only w/ base

Lap only

RF only w/o base

Vest

FF w/ harness

(Mark - Go to #17)

Lap/Shoulder

Special Needs

Base only

BP Booster

RF convertible

RF only w/ base

Lap only

RF only w/o base

Vest

FF w/ harness

(Mark - Go to 25)

Other seating location(Mark -Go to #17)

(Mark - Go to 25)

No CSS

Uninstalled

Seatbelt

Tether

Integrated Seat

No CSS

Uninstalled

Seatbelt

Tether

Integrated Seat

Unrestrained
(Mark - Go to #18)

Revised 11/2019

Location
All children under age 13 should ride in a back seat. If a child must ride in the front seat, then the child with a full harness CSS or properly adjusted shoulder
belt, seated in the correct forward facing and upright position, should sit there. Move the vehicle seat as far back from the airbag as possible. For older children
sitting in safety belts next to side airbags, remind them to sit straight up and avoid resting their heads on a window or structural pillar of the vehicle.

Harness - Know Your State Law
Rear-facing CSS harness straps should pass through the slots at or below the child's shoulders. The forward facing CSS harness straps should pass through the slots
at or above the child's shoulders. Read CSS instructions. Use all CSS until the upper height or weight limits are met. A child is too large for the CSS when the
shoulders are above the top FF harness slots, the child’s head is within 1 inch of the top of the rear facing CSS or he exceeds CSS weight or height limits. Harness
straps must lay flat on the chest and over the hips. Harness straps must pass the "pinch" test: when the buckled straps are pinched at the shoulder, there should be
no slack or extra webbing. The harness retainer clip must sit at the child's armpit level, and the straps must be threaded properly through the clip.

Belt-Positioning Booster (BPB) Seats - Know Your State Law
Use all BPBs with vehicle lap and shoulder safety belts. Check BPB instructions for use with switchable shoulder belts. Special products, such as vests and Y
harnesses used with a booster base, must be used according to manufacturer's instructions and the vehicle owner's manual. Many children will be between 8-12
years before the safety belt alone fits properly. Use a BPB until that time.

Installation: Fully read and follow all labels plus CSS and vehicle manuals for every CSS installation.
Never install a rear-facing CSS in front of a frontal airbag. No system is fail-safe, so even if the passenger sensing system or airbag switch shows the right front
passenger frontal airbag is turned off, secure rear-facing CSS in a back seat. Safety belts must pass through the CSS exactly as the manufacturer directs. CSS must
not move more than 1 inch side to side or front to back when grasped at the belt path. In general, use either lower anchors or safety belt, not both together, unless
allowed by both the CSS and vehicle manufacturers. Check vehicle manuals to identify designated lower anchor and tether anchor locations. Always use the top
tether when directed by the CSS and vehicle instructions. Follow the current LATCH Manual if further guidance or clarification is needed. LATCH weight limits must be
followed. Heavier children who ride in a harnessed CSS may require special arrangements. Seat belts in vehicles made after 1996 meet lockability requirements, so
no locking clip should be needed. Always test vehicle safety belts to be sure they are locked at either the retractor or latchplate unless a lock off or locking clip has
been used to secure the car seat. Treat unused safety belts as you would any cord by ensuring that they are out of reach of children, and that caregivers are aware of
entanglement danger. Technology (e.g., inflatable seat belts) changes regularly and requires your full attention. You must read manuals! This summary does not take
the place of reading manuals.

Child Ready for Safety Belt
With the child's back and bottom against vehicle seat back, the knees should bend naturally at vehicle seat edge. When the safety belt is buckled, the lap belt fits low
on the hips, touching the thighs, and the shoulder belt rests between neck and shoulder on the collarbone. Never place the shoulder belt under arms or behind backs.
Optimally, the child's feet should touch the floor.

Other
Remind caregivers to NEVER LEAVE A CHILD ALONE IN A CAR. The CSS is not a babysitter. Children should not spend excessive amounts of time in a CSS when
outside of a vehicle.

Tech Worked alone

Senior Checker

5. Model Number

Britax

Chicco UPPAbaby

Graco

Dorel

Clek

Baby Trend

Peg PeregoRecaro

Nuna

Diono

Other

Evenflo Bubble Bum

4. CSS MFG:

ON ARRIVAL

ON DEPARTURE

Child# 1 - Comments

CAREGIVER SIGN OFF:

6. MFG Date (MM/DD/YYYY)

/ /

20. Coalition provided a new CSS?
Yes No

23. Model Number:

24. MFG Date (MM/DD/YYYY):

/ /

Child with Special Transport Needs?

Lower anchors

Lower anchors

28. Discussed Unattended
Children In & Around Cars

Yes No

29. Next Steps Discussed Yes No

Yes No N/A

33. I can install my car seat on my own

Yes Maybe No

Child's age 0 - 12 Months

13 - 23 Months

Years
(write whole number only 2,3,4…)

BASED ON LAW

BASED ON STATE LAW

Child First Name (Optional)

30133



 

Car Seat Voucher 
 

 

     Scheduled for install         CPST to call caregiver to schedule               Caregiver will call to schedule 

Voucher guidelines 
• Car seats provided through the AHD CPS Program are obtained through the WI DOT’s Bureau of 

Transportation Safety (BOTS) grant.  
• Voucher recipient must live in the City of Appleton and qualify for BadgerCare, WIC, or free or reduced 

school lunches. 
• There is no charge to residents for grant funded car seats.  
• Available seats may vary and will be chosen by CPST as appropriate for the child and caregiver needs. 

 
To be completed by CPS Tech installing seat  

 

Issue date:                                            This voucher expires 60 days from issue date. 

Name of caregiver  

Street Address                                                         City                                                  Zip code  

Phone                                                                      Interpreter  

Name of child   

Child date of birth (or due date)   Age  

Child weight                                                                          Child height                    

Vehicle Year                           Make                                      Model      
 
Comments: 
 
 

 

Caregiver signature Acknowledging receipt of car seat                                                     Date                                           

  

Agency issuing voucher                             Type of seat given (rear-facing only, convertible, combination, high 
back booster, backless booster) 
        Recipient Survey completed by caregiver 

  

Name of CPST providing car seat             Signature                                                         Date 



 

Highway Safety Project Agreement 

WI DOT 

Bureau of Transportation Safety 

 

 

 
Recipient Survey Form 

(A copy of this form is required to be on file by the Grantee) 

 

 

Car Seat Recipient Information: 

 

County:   ____________________________________________ 

Zip Code:  ___________________________________________ 

Date of Installation:  ____________________________________ 
Age of Child:   _________________________________________ 

 

 

Type of seat distributed   

 Infant 

 Convertible 

 Combination with Harness 

 Booster 

 

Please rate the following statements 1-4   

(1- not at all, 2 - somewhat, 3 – moderately, 4 – significantly 

 

_____  My Knowledge of proper car seat use increased.   
 

_____  I am able to properly install the car seat on my own after receiving instruction.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

For Staff Use Only- 

 
Donation received?   Yes   No 

 

Amount received $ ________ 



EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES  347.021 Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats.

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

CHAPTER 347

EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES

SUBCHAPTER I

GENERAL PROVISIONS
347.01 Words and phrases defined.
347.02 Applicability of chapter.
347.03 Sale of prohibited equipment unlawful.
347.04 Owner responsible for improperly equipped vehicle.
347.05 Reciprocity agreements as to equipment.

SUBCHAPTER II

LIGHTING EQUIPMENT
347.06 When lighted lamps required.
347.07 Special restrictions on lamps and the use thereof.
347.08 Determining the visibility distance and mounted height of lamps.
347.09 Headlamps on motor vehicles.
347.10 Headlamp specifications for motor vehicles other than mopeds and motor

bicycles.
347.11 Headlamp specifications for mopeds and motor bicycles.
347.115 Modulating headlamps for motorcycles, motor bicycles or mopeds.
347.12 Use of multiple−beam headlamps.
347.13 Tail lamps and registration plate lamps.
347.14 Stop lamps.
347.145 Deceleration warning lights for motorcycles, motor bicycles, mopeds or

motor buses.
347.15 Direction signal lamps or devices.
347.16 Clearance lamps and reflectors.
347.17 Color of clearance and marker lamps and reflectors.
347.18 Mounting of clearance lamps and reflectors.
347.19 Visibility of clearance lamps and reflectors.
347.20 Lamp or flag on projecting load or fixture.
347.21 Lamps and flags on trains of agricultural vehicles.
347.22 Lamps on farm tractors, self−propelled implements of husbandry, and

lightweight utility vehicles.
347.23 Lamps on highway maintenance equipment.
347.24 Lamps and reflectors on nonmotor vehicles and equipment.
347.245 Identification emblem on certain slow moving vehicles.
347.25 Special warning lamps on vehicles.
347.26 Restrictions on certain optional lighting equipment.

347.27 When lighted lamps required on parked vehicles.
347.28 Certain vehicles to carry flares or other warning devices.
347.29 Display of warning devices for certain vehicles when standing on highway.
347.30 Penalty for violating lighting equipment requirements.

SUBCHAPTER III

OTHER EQUIPMENT
347.35 Brakes.
347.36 Performance ability of brakes.
347.37 Brake fluid, sale regulation.
347.38 Horns and warning devices.
347.385 Traffic control signal preemption and priority devices.
347.39 Mufflers.
347.40 Mirrors.
347.41 Speed indicators.
347.413 Ignition interlock device tampering; failure to install.
347.415 Odometer tampering.
347.417 Immobilization device tampering.
347.42 Windshield wipers.
347.43 Safety glass.
347.435 Vehicle monitoring and feedback.
347.44 Painting requirements for school buses; restrictions as to painting of other

vehicles.
347.445 Crossing gates for school buses.
347.447 Additional safety mirrors on school buses.
347.45 Tire equipment.
347.455 Modifications to height of vehicle.
347.46 Fenders and mudguards.
347.47 Drawbars, trailer hitches and mobile home couplings.
347.475 Airbags, prohibited practices.
347.48 Safety belts and child safety restraint systems.
347.485 Protective headgear for use on motorcycles.
347.486 General requirements.
347.487 Seating requirements.
347.488 Moped equipment.
347.489 Lamps and other equipment on bicycles and other vehicles and devices.
347.49 Equipment of vehicles transporting flammable liquids.
347.50 Penalties.

Cross−reference:  See also ch. Trans 305, Wis. adm. code.

SUBCHAPTER I

GENERAL PROVISIONS

347.01 Words and phrases defined.  Words and phrases
defined in s. 340.01 are used in the same sense in this chapter
unless a different definition is specifically provided.

347.02 Applicability of chapter.  (1) No provision of this
chapter requiring vehicles to be equipped in a particular manner
is applicable to any of the following vehicles unless the vehicle is
expressly included within or made subject to the particular provi-
sion:

(a)  Farm tractors.

(b)  Implements of husbandry.

(c)  Vehicles drawn by animals.

(d)  Road machinery.

(e)  Bicycles.

(em)  Electric bicycles.

(g)  Motor bicycles.

(h)  Golf carts operated in accordance with s. 349.18 (1) (b) or
(c) or (1m).

(i)  Electric scooters and electric personal assistive mobility
devices.

(j)  Lightweight utility vehicles, as defined in s. 346.94 (21) (a)
2.

(k)  Personal delivery devices.

(2) No provision of this chapter requiring or prohibiting cer-
tain types of equipment on a vehicle is applicable when such vehi-
cle is not operated upon or occupying a highway.

(2m) (a)  No provision of this chapter requiring or prohibiting
certain types of equipment on a vehicle is applicable to an
imported vehicle which has been granted entry into the United
States by the federal government solely for the purpose of test or
experiment.

(b)  The exemption under par. (a) is limited to the one−year
period following the entry of the vehicle.

(3) Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to prohibit the
use of additional parts and accessories on any vehicle not incon-
sistent with this chapter.

(4) Beginning July 1, 1960, the provisions of this chapter cov-
ering lighting shall be applicable to all state, county and municipal
trucks, truck tractors, trailers and semitrailers.

(5) If a vehicle registered under s. 341.25 (1) (a), 341.265,
341.266, or 341.269 has equipment which was designated by the
manufacturer as optional equipment in the model year the vehicle
was manufactured, it is not necessary for such equipment to be in
operating condition unless it replaces equipment which is
required by law to be both present and functioning.

(6) Notwithstanding the requirements of this chapter, the
department may establish special equipment standards for vehi-
cles operated under s. 343.135 which differ from the equipment
standards established under this chapter.  Equipment standards
established under this subsection may not be less stringent than
any federal standards established for the vehicle.

(7) The vehicle equipment requirements for a street modified
vehicle shall be the same as the vehicle equipment requirements
for a vehicle of the same type and model year that is not a street

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.01
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.02
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.03
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.04
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.05
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.06
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.07
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.08
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.09
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.10
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.115
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.12
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.13
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.14
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.145
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.15
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.16
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.18
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.19
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.20
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.21
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.22
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.23
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.24
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.245
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.26
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.27
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.28
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.30
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.35
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.36
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.37
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.38
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.385
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.39
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.40
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.41
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.413
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.415
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.417
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.42
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.43
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.435
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.44
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.445
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.447
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.45
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.455
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.46
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.47
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.475
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.485
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.486
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.487
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.488
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.489
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.49
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.50
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20Trans%20305
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/349.18(1)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/349.18(1)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/349.18(1m)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.94(21)(a)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.94(21)(a)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.02(2m)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/341.25(1)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/341.265
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/341.266
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/341.269
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/343.135


Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats. 2 347.02 EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

modified vehicle.  The vehicle equipment requirements for a rep-
lica vehicle or a homemade vehicle specified in s. 341.268 (1) (b)
2. shall be the same as the vehicle equipment requirements for a
vehicle of the same type and model year as the vehicle used for
purposes of the reproduction.

(8) If the department establishes by rule limitations on the tint-
ing of motor vehicle windows, the limitations do not apply to
police vehicles owned by the state or a county, city, village, or
town when tinting is necessary for the protection of personnel,
passengers, or equipment.

History:  1977 c. 39; 1979 c. 345; 1981 c. 275; 1983 a. 243, 288, 538; 1985 a. 187;
1985 a. 197 s. 7; 1993 a. 165; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 85; 2001 a. 90, 109; 2009 a. 135,
157; 2013 a. 20; 2015 a. 232; 2017 a. 13; 2019 a. 11, 34; 2023 a. 251.

347.03 Sale of prohibited equipment unlawful.  No per-
son shall sell for highway use any device, appliance, accessory or
replacement part the use of which on a motor vehicle is unlawful.

347.04 Owner responsible for improperly equipped
vehicle.  Any owner of a vehicle not equipped as required by this
chapter who knowingly causes or permits such vehicle to be oper-
ated on a highway in violation of this chapter is guilty of the viola-
tion the same as if he or she had operated the vehicle personally.
No demerit points shall be assessed or counted pursuant to s.
343.32 against the operator’s license of the owner of the vehicle
by reason of the owner’s conviction of any such violation unless
the owner was personally operating the vehicle at the time of the
violation.

History:  1989 a. 105.

347.05 Reciprocity agreements as to equipment.
(1) The secretary, with the approval of the governor, is authorized
to enter into reciprocal agreements with the duly authorized repre-
sentatives of other jurisdictions exempting the residents of those
jurisdictions from details of vehicle equipment requirements of
this state which are particularly burdensome to residents of such
other jurisdictions operating vehicles in this state, provided the
law of such other jurisdiction requires vehicles to be equipped in
a manner rendering them substantially as safe as those equipped
in the manner required by the laws of this state.  The agreements
shall provide substantially like exemptions for residents of this
state when operating vehicles in such other jurisdiction.

(2) This section does not authorize reciprocity agreements as
to laws governing the size and weight of vehicles.

History:  1977 c. 29 s. 1654 (7) (c).

SUBCHAPTER II

LIGHTING EQUIPMENT

347.06 When lighted lamps required.  (1) Except as pro-
vided in subs. (2) and (4), no person may operate a vehicle upon
a highway during hours of darkness or during a period of limited
visibility unless all headlamps, tail lamps, and clearance lamps
with which the vehicle is required to be equipped are lighted.
Parking lamps as described in s. 347.27 may not be used for this
purpose.  This subsection does not apply if lamps that are automat-
ically activated whenever the vehicle is started are in use, if the
headlamps are of sufficient intensity to satisfy the requirements
for daytime running lamps under 49 CFR 571.108, S7.10.13.

(2) Headlamps need not be lighted on a towed vehicle or on
a vehicle having at least 2 lighted adverse weather lamps on the
front thereof and being operated under the circumstances
described in s. 347.26 (3) (b).

(3) The operator of a vehicle shall keep all lamps and reflec-
tors with which such vehicle is required to be equipped reasonably
clean and in proper working condition at all times.

(4) A duly authorized warden, as defined in s. 24.01 (11), may
operate a vehicle owned or leased by the department of natural
resources upon a highway during hours of darkness or during a
period of limited visibility without lighted headlamps, tail lamps,

or clearance lamps in the performance of the warden’s duties
under s. 29.924 (2).

History:  1977 c. 425; 1979 c. 32; 1981 c. 98 s. 3; 1997 a. 248; 2015 a. 165; 2017
a. 365.

347.07 Special restrictions on lamps and the use
thereof.  (1) Whenever a motor vehicle equipped with head-
lamps also is equipped with any adverse weather lamps, spot-
lamps or auxiliary lamps, or with any other lamp on the front
thereof projecting a beam of intensity greater than 300 candle-
power, not more than a total of 4 of any such lamps or combina-
tions thereof on the front of the vehicle shall be lighted at any one
time when such vehicle is upon a highway.

(2) Except as provided in sub. (3), or as otherwise expressly
authorized or required by this chapter, no person shall operate any
vehicle or equipment on a highway which has displayed thereon:

(a)  Any color of light other than white or amber visible from
directly in front; or

(b)  Any color of light other than red on the rear; or

(c)  Any flashing light.

(3) A motorcycle may be equipped with a lighting device that
illuminates the ground directly beneath the motorcycle if all of the
following apply:

(a)  The lighting device is not visible to approaching vehicles.

(b)  The lighting device does not display a red, blue, or amber
light.

(c)  The lighting device does not display a flashing, oscillating,
or rotating light.

History:  2015 a. 27.

347.08 Determining the visibility distance and
mounted height of lamps.  (1) Whenever this chapter states
a requirement as to distance from which certain lamps and devices
shall render objects visible or within which such lamps or devices
shall be visible, such distance shall be measured during hours of
darkness under normal atmospheric conditions and upon a
straight, level, unlighted highway unless a different time, direc-
tion or condition is expressly stated.

(2) Whenever this chapter requires a lamp or device to be
mounted at a certain height, the distance shall be measured from
the center of the lamp or device to the level ground upon which the
vehicle stands when such vehicle is without load.

347.09 Headlamps on motor vehicles.  (1) No person
may operate a motor vehicle on a highway during hours of dark-
ness or during a period of limited visibility, unless the vehicle is
equipped as follows:

(a)  Except as provided in pars. (b) and (c), every motor vehicle
shall be equipped with at least 2 headlamps, which headlamps
shall comply with the requirements and limitations set forth in
sub. (2) and s. 347.10 and shall be mounted symmetrically with
respect to the vertical plane extending through the longitudinal
axis of the vehicle with at least one on each side of the center of
the front of the motor vehicle.

(b)  Every moped or motorcycle shall be equipped with at least
one and not more than 2 headlamps, which headlamps shall com-
ply with the requirements and limitations set forth in sub. (2) and
s. 347.10.

(c)  Every motor bicycle or vehicle registered under s. 341.067
and operated by a person licensed under s. 343.075 or 343.135
shall be equipped with at least one and not more than 2 headlamps,
which headlamps shall comply with the requirements and limita-
tions set forth in sub. (2) and s. 347.11.

(2) Every headlamp on a motor vehicle shall be located at a
height of not more than 54 inches nor less than 24 inches.

History:  1983 a. 243; 1985 a. 65; 2015 a. 165; 2019 a. 50.
Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.11, 305.43, and 305.55, Wis. adm. code.

347.10 Headlamp specifications for motor vehicles
other than mopeds and motor bicycles.  (1) Except as pro-
vided in sub. (4), the headlamps or the auxiliary driving lamp or

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/341.268(1)(b)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/341.268(1)(b)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/39
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1979/345
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1981/275
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/288
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/538
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/187
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/197
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/197,%20s.%207
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1993/165
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1997/27
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1999/85
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/90
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/109
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/135
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/157
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2013/20
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/232
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2017/13
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2019/11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2019/34
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2023/251
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/343.32
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1989/105
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29,%20s.%201654
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.06(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.06(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.27
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571.108
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.26(3)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/24.01(11)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/29.924(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/425
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1979/32
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1981/98
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1981/98,%20s.%203
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1997/248
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/165
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2017/365
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2017/365
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.07(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/27
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.09(1)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.09(1)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.09(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.10
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.09(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.10
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/341.067
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/343.075
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/343.135
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.09(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/65
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/165
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2019/50
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.43
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.55
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.10(4)


EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES  347.133 Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats.

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

the auxiliary passing lamp or combination thereof on motor vehi-
cles other than mopeds and motor bicycles shall be so arranged
that the driver may select at will between distributions of light pro-
jected to different elevations.  No such lamp shall have any type
of decorative covering that restricts the amount of light emitted
when the lamp is in use.  Such lamps may, in addition, be so
arranged that such selection can be made automatically.  This sub-
section does not apply to any type of decorative covering origi-
nally equipped on the vehicle at the time of manufacture and sale.

(2) Multiple−beam headlamps shall comply with the follow-
ing requirements:

(a)  There shall be an uppermost distribution of light or com-
posite beam so aimed and of such intensity as to reveal persons
and vehicles at a distance of at least 350 feet ahead for all condi-
tions of loading;

(b)  There shall be a lowermost distribution of light or compos-
ite beam so aimed and of sufficient intensity to reveal persons and
vehicles at a distance of at least 100 feet ahead, and on a straight
level road under any condition of loading none of the high−inten-
sity portion of the beam shall be so directed as to strike the eyes
of an approaching driver.

(3) No person shall sell after July 1, 1958, any new motor
vehicle equipped with multiple beam headlamps and no person
shall operate any motor vehicle sold new after July 1, 1958, and
equipped with multiple beam headlamps unless such vehicle also
is equipped with a beam indicator which is lighted whenever the
uppermost distribution of light from the headlamps is in use and
which is not otherwise lighted.  Such indicator shall be so
designed and located that when lighted it will be readily visible
without glare to the driver of the vehicle so equipped.  This subsec-
tion does not apply to motorcycles.

(4) Any motor vehicle may be operated during hours of dark-
ness or during a period of limited visibility when equipped with
2 lighted lamps upon the front of the motor vehicle capable of
revealing persons and objects 75 feet ahead in lieu of lamps
required by subs. (1) to (3) if the vehicle at no time is operated at
a speed in excess of 20 miles per hour.  No lighted lamp under this
subsection may have any type of decorative covering that restricts
the amount of light emitted when the lighted lamp is in use.  This
subsection does not apply to any type of decorative covering origi-
nally equipped on the vehicle at the time of manufacture and sale.

History:  1983 a. 243; 1995 a. 346; 2015 a. 165.
Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.11, 305.43, and 305.55, Wis. adm. code.

347.11 Headlamp specifications for mopeds and
motor bicycles.  The headlamps on mopeds or motor bicycles
may be of the single−beam or multiple−beam type but in either
event shall comply with the following requirements and limita-
tions:

(1) The headlamp shall be an electric headlamp and the cur-
rent shall be supplied by a wet battery and electric generator, by
a current−generating coil incorporated into the magneto or by a
generator driven directly by the motor by means of gears, friction
wheel, chain or belt.

(2) The headlamp shall display a white light of sufficient illu-
minating power to reveal any person, vehicle or substantial object
at a distance of 200 feet ahead and shall be so adjusted or operated
that the glaring light rays therefrom are not directed into the eyes
of the driver of any oncoming vehicle.  No headlamp shall have
any type of decorative covering that restricts the amount of light
emitted when the headlamp is in use.  This subsection does not
apply to any type of decorative covering originally equipped on
the vehicle at the time of manufacture and sale.

(3) If the moped or motor bicycle is equipped with a multiple−
beam headlamp, the upper beam shall meet the minimum require-
ments set forth in sub. (2) and the lowermost beam shall meet the
requirements applicable to a lowermost distribution of light as set
forth in s. 347.10 (2) (b).

(4) If the moped or motor bicycle is equipped with a single−
beam lamp, such lamp shall be so aimed that when the vehicle is
loaded none of the high−intensity portion of light, at a distance of
25 feet ahead, projects higher than the level of the center of the
lamp from which it comes.

History:  1983 a. 243; 1995 a. 346.

347.115 Modulating headlamps for motorcycles,
motor bicycles or mopeds.  A motorcycle, motor bicycle or
moped may be equipped with and use a means of modulating the
upper beam of the headlamp between a high and a lower bright-
ness at a rate of 200 to 280 changes per minute.  A headlamp may
not be modulated during hours of darkness.

History:  1981 c. 52; 1983 a. 243.

347.12 Use of multiple−beam headlamps.  (1) When-
ever a motor vehicle is being operated on a highway during hours
of darkness or during a period of limited visibility, the operator
shall use a distribution of light or composite beam directed high
enough and of sufficient intensity to reveal a person or vehicle at
a safe distance in advance of the vehicle, subject to the following
requirements and limitations:

(a)  Whenever the operator of a vehicle equipped with multi-
ple−beam headlamps approaches an oncoming vehicle within 500
feet, the operator shall dim, depress or tilt the vehicle’s headlights
so that the glaring rays are not directed into the eyes of the operator
of the other vehicle.  This paragraph does not prohibit an operator
from intermittently flashing the vehicle’s high−beam headlamps
at an oncoming vehicle whose high−beam headlamps are lit.

(b)  Whenever the operator of a vehicle equipped with multi-
ple−beam headlamps approaches or follows another vehicle
within 500 feet to the rear, the operator shall dim, depress, or tilt
the vehicle’s headlights so that the glaring rays are not reflected
into the eyes of the operator of the other vehicle.  This paragraph
does not prohibit an operator from intermittently flashing the
vehicle’s high−beam headlamps as provided under par. (a).

(2) Subsection (1) (a) and (b) does not apply to the use of alter-
nately flashing or pulsating headlamps under s. 347.25 (1r).

History:  1989 a. 69; 1991 a. 316; 1999 a. 66; 2015 a. 165.
Sub. (1) (b) does not require proof that the headlights reflected into the eyes of

another driver.  The statute directs drivers operating within 500 feet to dim their head-
lights and concludes by describing the purpose of this requirement:  to prevent the
glaring rays from reflecting into another driver’s eyes.  An interpretation that would
require an ordinary driver using high beams to know whether his or her headlights
will impair another driver’s vision is absurd.  State v. Tomaszewski, 2010 WI App 51,
324 Wis. 2d 433, 782 N.W.2d 725, 09−0385.

347.13 Tail lamps and registration plate lamps.  (1) No
person may operate a motor vehicle, mobile home, or trailer or
semitrailer upon a highway during hours of darkness or during a
period of limited visibility unless the motor vehicle, mobile home,
or trailer or semitrailer is equipped with at least one tail lamp
mounted on the rear which, when lighted during hours of dark-
ness, emits a red light plainly visible from a distance of 500 feet
to the rear.  No tail lamp may have any type of decorative covering
that restricts the amount of light emitted when the tail lamp is in
use.  No vehicle originally equipped at the time of manufacture
and sale with 2 tail lamps may be operated upon a highway during
hours of darkness or during a period of limited visibility unless
both lamps are in good working order.  This subsection does not
apply to any type of decorative covering originally equipped on
the vehicle at the time of manufacture and sale.

(2) Every tail lamp on a vehicle shall be located at a height of
not more than 72 inches nor less than 20 inches.

(3) No person shall operate on a highway during hours of
darkness any motor vehicle upon the rear of which a registration
plate is required to be displayed unless such motor vehicle is
equipped with a lamp so constructed and placed as to illuminate
with a white light the rear registration plate and render it clearly
legible from a distance of 50 feet to the rear.  Such lamp may be
incorporated as part of a tail lamp or may be a separate lamp.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.10(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.10(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1995/346
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/165
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.43
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.55
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.11(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.10(2)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1995/346
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1981/52
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.12(1)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.12(1)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.12(1)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1r)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1989/69
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1991/316
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1999/66
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/165
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/2010%20WI%20App%2051
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/324%20Wis.%202d%20433
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/782%20N.W.2d%20725
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/wicourtofappeals/09-0385


Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats. 4 347.13 EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

(4) Tail lamps and registration plate lamps shall be so wired as
to be lighted whenever the headlamps or auxiliary driving lamps
are lighted.  In a tractor−semitrailer combination, 2 switches may
be employed, one to activate semitrailer lamps and one to activate
tractor lamps.

History:  1973 c. 252; 1995 a. 346; 2015 a. 165.
Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.13, 305.16, 305.43, 305.45, and 305.55,

Wis. adm. code.
A tail lamp is functioning for its intended use and thus in good working order when

during hours of darkness it emits a red warning light that is visible to another vehicle
traveling 500 feet behind it.  Sub.(1) does not requires all light bulbs in a tail lamp to
be lit.  Although s. 347.06 (3) and administrative rules require tail lamps to be kept
in “proper working condition,” “proper” is not a synonym for “perfect.”  Rather it is
more akin to “good” or “suitable.”  State v. Brown, 2014 WI 69, 355 Wis. 2d 668, 850
N.W.2d 66, 11−2907.

347.14 Stop lamps.  (1) No person shall operate a motor
vehicle, lightweight utility vehicle as defined in s. 346.94 (21) (a)
2., mobile home, or trailer or semitrailer upon a highway unless
such motor vehicle, lightweight utility vehicle, mobile home, or
trailer or semitrailer is equipped with at least one stop lamp
mounted on the rear and meeting the specifications set forth in this
section.  The stop lamp on a mobile home or trailer or semitrailer
shall be controlled and operated from the driver’s seat of the pro-
pelling vehicle.  A stop lamp may be incorporated with a tail lamp.
No vehicle originally equipped at the time of manufacture and sale
with 2 stop lamps shall be operated upon a highway unless both
such lamps are in good working order.

(2) A stop lamp shall be so constructed as to be actuated upon
application of the service or foot brake or separate trailer brake
and shall emit a red or amber light plainly visible and understand-
able from all distances up to 300 feet to the rear during normal sun-
light when viewed from the driver’s seat of the vehicle following.

Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.15, 305.43, 305.45, and 305.55, Wis.
adm. code.

History:  2009 a. 157.

347.145 Deceleration warning lights for motorcycles,
motor bicycles, mopeds or motor buses.  (1) A motor-
cycle, motor bicycle or moped may be equipped with and use a
system in which an amber light which pulses in a controlled fash-
ion at a rate which varies exponentially with deceleration is center
mounted on the rear of the vehicle.

(2) A motor bus may be equipped with amber lights that shine
with a steady beam or that pulse during deceleration, braking, or
standing and idling.  The lights shall be mounted symmetrically
with respect to the vertical center line of the motor bus in a hori-
zontal alignment on the rear of the motor bus.  The lights may be
mounted no higher than the lower edge of the rear window, or no
higher than 72 inches if the motor bus does not have a rear win-
dow.

History:  1981 c. 52; 1983 a. 243; 1987 a. 235; 2001 a. 104.
Cross−reference:  See also s. Trans 305.43, Wis. adm. code.

347.15 Direction signal lamps or devices.  (1) No person
may sell any new motor vehicle, other than a moped or motorcy-
cle, unless such motor vehicle is equipped with direction signal
lamps meeting the requirements of this section.  No person may
operate on a highway any motor vehicle sold new after January 1,
1955, or any mobile home, or trailer or semitrailer sold new after
January 1, 1968, other than a vehicle which is operated pursuant
to s. 341.47 (1) (b) or a moped or motorcycle, unless such vehicle
is equipped with direction signal lamps meeting the requirements
of this section.  Any other vehicle may be equipped with such
lamps.  Subsection (3m) notwithstanding direction signals are not
required on trailers when the rear direction signals on the towing
vehicle are fully visible from all distances to the rear to 300 feet
during normal sunlight when viewed from the driver’s seat of the
vehicle following.

(2) Except as provided in sub. (1), there shall be at least 2
direction signal lamps showing to the front on motor vehicles and
at least 2 showing to the rear on motor vehicles, mobile homes,
recreational vehicles, trailers and semitrailers, so as to indicate
intention to turn right or left.  Lamps showing to the front shall be

located on the same level and as widely spaced laterally as practi-
cable and lamps showing to the rear shall be located on the same
level and as widely spaced laterally as practicable.  Such lamps
shall project a flashing white or amber light visible to the front and
a flashing red or amber light visible to the rear.  Direction signal
lamps when in use shall be plainly visible and understandable
from all distances to 300 feet during normal sunlight.  No direction
signal lamp shall have any type of decorative covering that
restricts the amount of light emitted when the direction signal
lamp is in use.  When actuated, such lamps shall indicate the
intended direction of turning by flashing the lights showing to the
front and rear on the side toward which the turn is made.  This sub-
section does not apply to any type of decorative covering origi-
nally equipped on the vehicle at the time of manufacture and sale.

(3) Vehicles equipped with direction signal lamps shall be
equipped with a signal visible to the signaling driver when the sig-
naling driver’s signal lamps are operating.

(3m) Any motor vehicle or combination of vehicles in use on
a highway shall be equipped with direction signals meeting the
requirements of this section when the distance from the center of
the top of the steering post to the left outside limit of the body, cab
or load of such motor vehicle or combination of vehicles exceeds
24 inches, or when the distance from the center of the top of the
steering post to the rear limit of the body or load thereof exceeds
14 feet.

(4) Vehicles sold new prior to July 1, 1958, are exempt from
the requirements of this section if they either comply with the
requirements of s. 85.06 (15), 1955 stats., or are exempt from the
requirements of that section.

History:  1975 c. 297; 1983 a. 243; 1985 a. 65; 1991 a. 316; 1995 a. 346; 2007 a.
11; 2019 a. 50.

Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.09, 305.43, and 305.55, Wis. adm. code.

347.16 Clearance lamps and reflectors.  (1) No person
shall operate on a highway during hours of darkness any vehicle,
except automobiles, having a width at any part in excess of 80
inches unless such vehicle is equipped with:

(a)  Two clearance lamps mounted on the front of the vehicle
so as to be visible from the front; and

(b)  Two clearance lamps mounted on the rear of the vehicle so
as to be visible from the rear; and

(c)  Two reflectors mounted on the rear of the vehicle in such
a manner as to indicate as nearly as possible the extreme width of
the vehicle.

(2) No person shall operate any of the following vehicles on
a highway during hours of darkness unless such vehicles are
equipped as indicated:

(a)  Every truck tractor shall carry on the front 2 clearance
lamps, one at each side.

(b)  Every trailer or semitrailer shall carry on the rear 2 reflec-
tors, one on each side.

(3) Reflectorized material extending across the full width of
the vehicle and otherwise meeting the mounting and visibility
specifications for reflectors may be used in lieu of the reflectors
required by this section.

Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.14 and 305.55, Wis. adm. code.

347.17 Color of clearance and marker lamps and
reflectors.  Whenever a vehicle is equipped with clearance
lamps, sidemarker lamps or reflectors:

(1) Those clearance and marker lamps and reflectors mounted
on the front or on the side near the front of the vehicle shall display
or reflect an amber color;

(2) Those clearance lamps and marker lamps and reflectors
mounted on the rear or on the sides near the rear of the vehicle, or
on both, shall display or reflect a red color.

Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.14 and 305.55, Wis. adm. code.

347.18 Mounting of clearance lamps and reflectors.
(1) Whenever s. 347.16 requires any reflector to be displayed

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1973/252
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1995/346
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/165
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.13
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.16
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.43
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.45
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.55
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/2014%20WI%2069
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/355%20Wis.%202d%20668
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/850%20N.W.2d%2066
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/850%20N.W.2d%2066
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/wisupremecourt/11-2907
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.94(21)(a)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.94(21)(a)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.15
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.43
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.45
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.55
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/157
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1981/52
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1987/235
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/104
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.43
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/341.47(1)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.15(3m)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.15(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/1955/85.06(15)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1975/297
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/65
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1991/316
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1995/346
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2007/11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2007/11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2019/50
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.09
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.43
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.55
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.14
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.55
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.14
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.55
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.16


EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES  347.245 Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats.

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

upon a vehicle, each such reflector shall be mounted at a height not
less than 16 inches nor more than 60 inches above the ground on
which the vehicle stands.  On vehicles which are more than 80
inches wide, the front and rear reflectors shall be mounted so as
to indicate as nearly as possible the extreme width of the vehicle.
Any required red reflector on the rear of a vehicle may be incorpo-
rated with the tail lamp but such reflector shall meet all the other
reflector requirements of this chapter.

(2) Whenever this chapter requires a vehicle to be equipped
with clearance lamps, such lamps shall be mounted in such a man-
ner as to indicate the extreme width of the vehicle and as near to
the top thereof as practicable except that when rear identification
lamps are mounted at the extreme height of the vehicle, rear clear-
ance lamps may be mounted at optional heights.

History:  1975 c. 121.
Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.14 and 305.55, Wis. adm. code.

347.19 Visibility of clearance lamps and reflectors.
(1) Every reflector required by s. 347.16 to be displayed upon a
vehicle shall be of such size and characteristics and so maintained
as to be readily visible during the hours of darkness from all dis-
tances within 500 feet to 50 feet from the vehicle when directly in
front of lawful upper beams of headlamps.

(2) Front and rear clearance lamps when lighted shall be capa-
ble of being seen and distinguished under normal atmospheric
conditions during hours of darkness at a distance of 500 feet from
the front and rear, respectively, of the vehicle.

Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.14, 305.43, and 305.55, Wis. adm. code.

347.20 Lamp or flag on projecting load or fixture.
(1) No person shall operate on a highway during hours of dark-
ness any vehicle with a load or fixture thereon extending more
than 4 feet beyond the rear of the bed or body thereof unless there
is displayed at the extreme rear end of the load or fixture a red light
or lantern plainly visible from a distance of at least 500 feet to the
sides and rear.  The red light or lantern shall be in addition to any
tail lamp or clearance lamp which the vehicle is required to carry.

(2) No person shall operate on a highway, at times other than
hours of darkness, any vehicle with a load or fixture thereon
extending more than 4 feet beyond the rear of the bed or body
thereof unless there is displayed at the extreme rear end of such
load or fixture a red flag or cloth not less than 12 inches square and
so hung that the entire area is visible to the operator of a vehicle
approaching from the rear.

(3) This section does not apply to vehicles loaded with loose
hay or straw.

History:  1981 c. 176.

347.21 Lamps and flags on trains of agricultural vehi-
cles.  (1) No person shall operate on a highway during hours of
darkness any train of vehicles authorized by s. 348.08 (1) (d)
unless there is mounted on each side of every vehicle in such train,
including farm tractors and implements of husbandry, at least one
lamp emitting a red or amber light visible from a distance of 500
feet to the side of the vehicle on which mounted or, in lieu thereof,
at least one red or amber reflector visible from all distances within
500 feet to 50 feet of the side of the vehicle when directly in front
of lawful upper beams of headlamps.

(1m) No person shall operate on a highway during hours of
darkness any train of vehicles authorized by s. 348.08 (1) (b)
unless there is mounted on each side of every vehicle in such train
at least one lamp emitting a red or amber light visible from a dis-
tance of 500 feet to the side of the vehicle on which mounted or,
in lieu thereof, at least one red or amber reflector visible from all
distances within 500 feet to 50 feet of the side of the vehicle when
directly in front of lawful upper beams of headlamps.

History:  1979 c. 143, 355; 1981 c. 276; 1981 c. 391 s. 210; 1987 a. 164; 2013 a.
377; 2015 a. 232.

347.22 Lamps on farm tractors, self−propelled imple-
ments of husbandry, and lightweight utility vehicles.
(1) No person shall operate or park a farm tractor, self−propelled

implement of husbandry, or lightweight utility vehicle, as defined
in s. 346.94 (21) (a) 2., upon a highway during hours of darkness
unless such tractor, implement of husbandry, or lightweight utility
vehicle carries the lighted headlamps and tail lamps which would
be required of other motor vehicles under similar circumstances.

(2) Except as provided in s. 347.25 (2g), no person shall oper-
ate or park a farm tractor, self−propelled implement of husbandry,
or lightweight utility vehicle, as defined in s. 346.94 (21) (a) 2.,
upon a highway during hours of darkness with any lamp thereon
showing any light to the rear other than red or amber in color.

History:  2009 a. 157; 2013 a. 377; 2015 a. 232.

347.23 Lamps on highway maintenance equipment.
(1) No person shall operate upon a highway during hours of dark-
ness any road machinery or motor vehicle used in highway con-
struction or maintenance unless such vehicle or road machinery
is equipped either as prescribed by par. (a) or (b):

(a)  A red light visible from a distance of 500 feet shall be dis-
played on each side of the front and on each side of the rear to give
adequate warning of the presence of such vehicle or machinery
and to show safe clearance for passing or overtaking vehicles; or

(b)  In lieu of the red lights prescribed by par. (a), 2 amber flood-
lamps may be used, one to be mounted on each side of the vehicle
or machinery so as to illuminate its sides and its attachments, if
any, to show safe clearance for passing or overtaking vehicles.
Such floodlamps shall display an amber light of sufficient illumi-
nating power to indicate safe clearance from a distance of 200 feet
to the front and rear of such vehicle or machinery.

(2) The lights specified in sub. (1) need not be displayed upon
motor vehicles used in highway construction or maintenance
work when such vehicles are traveling along the highway at their
normal operating speed in the ordinary course of traffic.

(4) No person shall operate upon the left−hand side of a high-
way during hours of darkness any road machinery or motor vehi-
cle used in highway construction or maintenance, including snow
and ice control, unless such vehicle or machinery is equipped with
an auxiliary lamp or lamps projecting a flashing amber light visi-
ble from all directions for a 360−degree lens (beehive type lamp)
or revolving type lamp and visible front and rear for reflectorized
stationary directional type lamps.  For flashing type lamps the
number of flashes per minute shall be between 60 and 90.  For
revolving type lamps the revolutions per minute shall be between
45 and 90.  The lenses of such auxiliary lamps shall not be less than
6 inches in diameter for the reflectorized stationary directional
type lamp; 3−3/4 inches minimum diameter and 5−inch minimum
height for the 360−degree lens (beehive type lamp); and 3−3/4
inches minimum width and 4−5/8 inches minimum height for the
revolving type lamp.  The lamps shall be equipped with bulbs of
50 candlepower minimum.  The lamps shall be mounted approxi-
mately midway between the transverse extremities of the vehicle
or machinery and at the highest practicable point.

347.24 Lamps and reflectors on nonmotor vehicles
and equipment.  (1) (a)  Except as provided under pars. (b) and
(c) and s. 347.22 (1), no person may operate on a highway during
hours of darkness any implement of husbandry or any other vehi-
cle not specifically required by law to be equipped with lamps or
other lighting devices unless such implement or vehicle is
equipped with at least 2 lighted lamps or lanterns exhibiting a
white light visible from a distance of 500 feet ahead and 2 lighted
lamps or lanterns exhibiting a red light visible from a distance of
500 feet to the rear or, as an alternative to the red lamps or lanterns,
2 red reflectors mounted as specified in s. 347.18 and meeting the
visibility requirements of s. 347.19 may be displayed on the rear
of such vehicle or implement of husbandry.

(am)  No person may operate on a highway during hours of
darkness any implement of husbandry that extends 4 feet or more
to the left of the center line of its towing vehicle unless the imple-
ment is equipped with an amber reflector meeting the visibility
requirements of s. 347.19 and mounted on the left side, facing for-

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1975/121
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.14
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.55
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.16
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.14
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.43
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.55
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1981/176
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/348.08(1)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/348.08(1)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1979/143
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1979/355
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1981/276
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1981/391
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1981/391,%20s.%20210
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1987/164
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2013/377
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2013/377
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/232
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.94(21)(a)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(2g)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.94(21)(a)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/157
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2013/377
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/232
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.23(1)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.23(1)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.23(1)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.23(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.24(1)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.24(1)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.22(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.18
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.19
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.19


Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats. 6 347.24 EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

ward, so as to mark the extreme width of the implement to drivers
of oncoming vehicles.

(b)  Any implement of husbandry or any other vehicle not spe-
cifically required by law to be equipped with lamps or other light-
ing device and which was manufactured on or before January 1,
1984, shall comply with the lamp requirements of s. 347.24 (1),
1981 stats.

(c)  An implement of husbandry which is an all−terrain vehicle
or utility terrain vehicle need only comply with the lamp require-
ments established under s. 23.33 (6).

(d)  An off−highway motorcycle, as defined in s. 23.335 (1) (q),
that is being operated as an implement of husbandry off a highway
need only comply with the lamp requirements established under
s. 23.335 (17) (a).

(2) No person may operate on a highway during hours of dark-
ness or during periods of inclement weather a vehicle drawn by an
animal unless the vehicle is equipped with at least one lighted
white light visible from a distance of 500 feet ahead and 2 lighted
red lights and 2 yellow or amber strobe lights visible from a dis-
tance of 500 feet to the rear.  The red rear lights shall be mounted
in such a manner as to indicate the extreme width of the vehicle.
The yellow or amber strobe lights shall be mounted not more than
6 inches from the lateral extremities of the vehicle.

(3) (a)  In this subsection, “wide implement of husbandry”
means any implement of husbandry that has a total width in excess
of 15 feet or that partly extends, when operated primarily on the
right half of the roadway, over the center of the roadway into any
lane intended for travel in the opposite direction.

(b)  Except as provided in par. (bm), no person may operate on
a highway any wide implement of husbandry unless it is equipped
with all of the following and any lamp or light required under this
paragraph is lighted and visible at the time of operation:

1.  At least 2 amber flashing warning lamps, visible from both
the front and rear of the implement of husbandry.  When lighted,
these lamps shall be capable of being seen and distinguished under
normal atmospheric conditions during hours of darkness at a dis-
tance of 500 feet from the front and rear of the implement of hus-
bandry.  These lamps shall be mounted, as nearly as practicable,
to indicate the extreme width of the implement of husbandry, but
not more than 16 inches from the lateral extremities of the imple-
ment of husbandry.

2.  Red retroreflective conspicuity material, visible to the rear
and mounted within 25 inches of, respectively, the extreme left
and extreme right of the implement of husbandry and spaced as
evenly as practicable.  This conspicuity material shall be of such
size and characteristics and so maintained as to be readily visible
during the hours of darkness from all distances within 500 feet to
50 feet from the implement of husbandry when directly in front of
lawful upper beams of headlamps.

3.  At least 2 strips of yellow retroreflective conspicuity mate-
rial visible to the front of the implement of husbandry.  On the left
and right sides of the implement of husbandry, the outer edge of
at least one strip of this material shall be mounted within 16 inches
of, respectively, the extreme left and extreme right of the imple-
ment of husbandry.  This conspicuity material shall be of such size
and characteristics and so maintained as to be readily visible dur-
ing the hours of darkness from all distances within 500 feet to 50
feet from the implement of husbandry when directly in front of
lawful upper beams of headlamps.

4.  Subject to ss. 347.06 (1) and (3), 347.13 (2), and 347.22 (1),
at least 2 red tail lamps mounted symmetrically to the rear of the
implement of husbandry, or as close to the rear as practicable.
These tail lamps are not required to be wired to light when head-
lamps or other lamps light.  When lighted, these tail lamps shall
be capable of being seen and distinguished under normal atmo-
spheric conditions during hours of darkness at a distance of 500
feet from the rear of the implement of husbandry.

(bm)  A person may operate on a highway, at times other than
hours of darkness, a wide implement of husbandry that does not
comply with par. (b) if all of the following apply:

1.  The wide implement of husbandry is accompanied by an
escort vehicle operating with hazard lights activated.

2.  Two orange or red flags, not less than 12 inches square, are
attached to the rear of the wide implement of husbandry, or as
close to the rear as practicable, in a manner that is clearly visible
to the operator of a vehicle approaching from the rear and that
marks the extreme left and extreme right of the implement of hus-
bandry.

(c)  In addition to any applicable requirement under par. (b) or
(bm), if a wide implement of husbandry has a total width in excess
of 22 feet, no person may operate the implement of husbandry on
a highway unless the implement of husbandry is accompanied by
an escort vehicle operating with hazard lights activated.  If the
implement of husbandry is being operated on a highway with only
one lane for travel in each direction, the escort vehicle shall be
operated ahead of the implement of husbandry on the highway.
If the implement of husbandry is being operated on a highway
with more than one lane for travel in each direction or on a 3−lane
highway, the escort vehicle shall be operated behind the imple-
ment of husbandry on the highway.  This paragraph does not apply
to an implement of husbandry that is traveling between fields or
between a farm and a field and is operated on the highway for a
distance of 0.5 miles or less.

(d)  No person may operate on a highway any implement of
husbandry manufactured on or after January 1, 2014, unless it is
equipped with all lighting and marking devices with which the
implement of husbandry was originally equipped by the manufac-
turer and all such lighting and marking devices are in good work-
ing order and visible at the time of operation.

(e)  The requirements under this subsection apply in addition
to any applicable requirements under subs. (1) and (2) and ss.
347.21, 347.22, and 347.27.

History:  1977 c. 418; 1983 a. 124; 1985 a. 29; 1993 a. 455; 2001 a. 104; 2011 a.
208; 2013 a. 377; 2015 a. 170, 232; 2017 a. 228.

347.245 Identification emblem on certain slow moving
vehicles.  (1) No person may operate on a highway any vehicle
or equipment, any implement of husbandry, any animal−drawn
vehicle, or any other machinery, including all road machinery, that
usually travels at speeds of less than 25 miles per hour or any vehi-
cle operated under a special restricted operator’s license issued
under s. 343.135 or any lightweight utility vehicle, as defined in
s. 346.94 (21) (a) 2., unless there is displayed on the most practica-
ble visible rear area of the vehicle or combination of vehicles, a
slow moving vehicle (SMV) emblem as described in and dis-
played as provided in sub. (2).  Any towed vehicle or machine is
exempt from this provision if the towing vehicle is visible from the
rear and is in compliance with this section.  All road machinery is
excluded when it is engaged in actual construction or maintenance
work either guarded by a flagman or clearly visible warning signs.
The requirement of the emblem shall be in addition to any lighting
devices required or permitted by law.  Mopeds and motor bicycles
are excluded from the provisions of this section unless they are
operated under a special restricted operator’s license issued under
s. 343.135.  Electric scooters, electric personal assistive mobility
devices, and personal delivery devices are excluded from the pro-
visions of this section.  The SMV emblem need not be displayed
on vehicles moving directly across the highway.

(2) Standards and specifications for the design and position of
mounting of the SMV emblem shall be established by rule by the
secretary.  The standards and specifications for SMV emblems
shall correlate with and, so far as possible, conform with those
approved by the American society of agricultural engineers.  The
secretary shall submit such standards and specifications, and any
subsequent changes therein, to the assembly and senate commit-

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/1981/347.24(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/23.33(6)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/23.335(1)(q)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/23.335(17)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.24(3)(bm)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.06(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.06(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.13(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.22(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.24(3)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.24(3)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.24(3)(bm)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.24(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.24(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.21
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.22
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.27
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/418
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/124
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1993/455
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/104
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2011/208
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2011/208
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2013/377
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/170
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/232
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2017/228
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/343.135
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.94(21)(a)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.245(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/343.135


EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES  347.257 Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats.

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

tees having jurisdiction over transportation matters as determined
by the speaker of the assembly and the president of the senate act-
ing jointly for their approval.

(3) No person shall display such emblem on a roadway, except
as provided in sub. (1), nor on roadside stationary objects such as
mailboxes or signposts and no such emblem shall be used as a
clearance marker for wide vehicles.  No slow moving vehicle
actually engaged in construction or maintenance guarded by a
flagman or clearly visible warning signs need remove the slow
moving vehicle emblem.

(4) No person shall display such emblem on any vehicle or
equipment not specified in sub. (1).

(5) This section does not apply to any vehicle or combination
of vehicles to the left rear of which is attached a yellow or amber
flashing light at least 4 inches in diameter, except to an implement
of husbandry.

History:  1977 c. 29, 288; 1979 c. 34; 1981 c. 138; 1987 a. 164; 2001 a. 90; 2009
a. 157; 2013 a. 377; 2015 a. 232; 2017 a. 13; 2019 a. 11.

Cross−reference:  See also ch. Trans 304, Wis. adm. code.

As applied to Amish appellants, requiring slow moving vehicle signs on buggies
unconstitutionally infringed on religious liberties.  State v. Miller, 202 Wis. 2d 56, 549
N.W.2d 235 (1996), 94−0159.

347.25 Special warning lamps on vehicles.  (1) Except
as provided in subs. (1m) (a), (1n), (1r), and (1s), an authorized
emergency vehicle may be equipped with one or more flashing,
oscillating, or rotating red lights, except that ambulances, fire
department equipment, privately owned motor vehicles under s.
340.01 (3) (d), (dg), or (dm) being used by personnel of a full−time
or part−time fire department, by members of a volunteer fire
department or rescue squad, or by an organ procurement organiza-
tion or any person under an agreement with an organ procurement
organization, and privately owned motor vehicles under s. 340.01
(3) (dh) being used to transport or pick up medical devices or
equipment, may be equipped with red or red and white lights, and
shall be so equipped when the operator thereof is exercising the
privileges granted by s. 346.03 or 346.215 (2) (a).  The lights shall
be so designed and mounted as to be plainly visible and under-
standable from a distance of 500 feet both during normal sunlight
and during hours of darkness.  No operator of an authorized emer-
gency vehicle may use the warning lights except when responding
to an emergency call or when in pursuit of an actual or suspected
violator of the law, when responding to but not upon returning
from a fire alarm, when transporting an organ for human trans-
plantation, when transporting medical personnel for the purpose
of performing human organ harvesting or transplantation immedi-
ately after the transportation, when necessarily parked in a posi-
tion which is likely to be hazardous to traffic, or as authorized
under s. 346.215 (2) (a).

(1m) (a)  A police vehicle under s. 340.01 (3) (a) may be
equipped with a blue light and a red light which are flashing, oscil-
lating or rotating.

(b)  If the vehicle is so equipped, the lights shall be illuminated
as required under s. 346.03 or 346.215 (2) (a) when the operator
of the police vehicle is exercising the privileges granted under s.
346.03 or 346.215 (2) (a).  On a marked police vehicle, the blue
light shall be mounted on the passenger side of the vehicle and the
red light shall be mounted on the driver side of the vehicle.  When
in use on an unmarked police vehicle, the blue light shall be dis-
played on the passenger side of the vehicle and the red light shall
be displayed on the driver side of the vehicle.  The lights shall be
designed and displayed so as to be plainly visible and understand-
able from a distance of 500 feet during normal sunlight and during
hours of darkness.  No operator of a police vehicle may use the
warning lights except when responding to an emergency call or
when in pursuit of an actual or suspected violator of the law, when
responding to but not upon returning from a fire alarm, when nec-
essarily parked on a highway in a position which is likely to be
hazardous to traffic using the highway, or as authorized under s.
346.215 (2) (a).

(c)  If the state or any local authority intends to equip its police
vehicles as authorized under par. (a), the state or the local authority
shall give notice of its intent as a class 2 notice under ch. 985 at
least 90 days before so equipping the first vehicle.

(1n) A police vehicle under s. 340.01 (3) (a) may be equipped
with one or more flashing white lights.  The lights shall be
designed and displayed so as to be plainly visible and understand-
able from a distance of 500 feet both during normal sunlight and
during hours of darkness.  The lights may be used only when the
warning lamps authorized under sub. (1) or (1m) are in use.

(1r) (a)  1.  A police vehicle under s. 340.01 (3) (a) may be
equipped so that the high beams of its headlamps pulsate or flash
alternately at a rate of 70 to 90 pulses or flashes per minute.  The
pulsating or flashing headlamps may be used only when the warn-
ing lamps authorized under sub. (1) or (1m) are in use.

2.  If the state or any local authority intends to equip its police
vehicles as authorized under subd. 1., the state or the local author-
ity shall give notice of its intent as a class 2 notice under ch. 985
at least 90 days before so equipping the first vehicle.

(b)  1.  a.  A vehicle of a fire department under s. 340.01 (3) (c)
or an ambulance under s. 340.01 (3) (g) may be equipped so that
the high beams of its headlamps pulsate or flash alternately at a
rate of 70 to 90 pulses or flashes per minute.  The pulsating or
flashing headlamps may be used only when the warning lamps
authorized under sub. (1) are in use.

b.  If any local authority intends to equip its vehicles as autho-
rized under subd. 1. a., the local authority shall give notice of its
intent as a class 2 notice under ch. 985 at least 90 days before so
equipping the first vehicle.

2.  a.  A sheriff or others designated by the county board may
authorize that an ambulance under s. 340.01 (3) (i) be equipped so
that the high beams of its headlamps pulsate or flash alternately
at a rate of 70 to 90 pulses or flashes per minute.  The pulsating or
flashing headlamps may be used only when the warning lamps
authorized under sub. (1) are in use.

b.  If the sheriff or others designated by the county board
intend to authorize any ambulance under s. 340.01 (3) (i) to be
equipped as authorized under subd. 2. a., the local authority shall
give notice of its intent as a class 2 notice under ch. 985 at least 90
days before authorizing the first vehicle to be so equipped.

(c)  1.  a.  The state fire marshal may authorize that a privately
owned motor vehicle under s. 340.01 (3) (d) that is being used by
a deputy state fire marshal be equipped so that the high beams of
its headlamps pulsate or flash alternately at a rate of 70 to 90 pulses
or flashes per minute.  The pulsating or flashing headlamps may
be used only when the warning lamps authorized under sub. (1)
are in use.

b.  If the state fire marshal intends to authorize any privately
owned motor vehicle under s. 340.01 (3) (d) that is being used by
a deputy state fire marshal to be equipped as authorized under
subd. 1. a., the state shall give notice of its intent as a class 2 notice
under ch. 985 at least 90 days before authorizing the first vehicle
to be so equipped.

2.  a.  A fire chief may authorize that a privately owned motor
vehicle under s. 340.01 (3) (d) that is being used by an employee
of the fire department or, if applicable, a member of the volunteer
fire department be equipped so that the high beams of its head-
lamps pulsate or flash alternately at a rate of 70 to 90 pulses or
flashes per minute.  The pulsating or flashing headlamps may be
used only when the warning lamps authorized under sub. (1) are
in use.

b.  If the fire chief intends to authorize any privately owned
motor vehicle under s. 340.01 (3) (d) that is being used by an
employee of the fire department or, if applicable, a member of the
volunteer fire department to be equipped as authorized under
subd. 2. a., the local authority shall give notice of its intent as a
class 2 notice under ch. 985 at least 90 days before authorizing the
first vehicle to be so equipped.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.245(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.245(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/288
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1979/34
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1981/138
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1987/164
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/90
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/157
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/157
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2013/377
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/232
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2017/13
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2019/11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20Trans%20304
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/202%20Wis.%202d%2056
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/549%20N.W.2d%20235
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/549%20N.W.2d%20235
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/wisupremecourt/94-0159
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1m)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1n)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1r)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1s)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(dg)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(dm)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(dh)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(dh)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.03
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.215(2)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.215(2)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.03
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.215(2)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.03
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.215(2)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.215(2)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1m)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%20985
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1m)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1m)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1r)(a)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%20985
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(g)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1r)(b)1.a.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%20985
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(i)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(i)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1r)(b)2.a.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%20985
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1r)(c)1.a.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%20985
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1r)(c)2.a.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%20985


Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats. 8 347.25 EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

(1s) A vehicle in use by a fire department as a command post
at the site of an emergency call may be equipped with a blue or
green light which is flashing, oscillating or rotating.

(2) No person may operate a school bus which is painted as
provided in s. 347.44 unless it is equipped with a 360−degree
flashing white strobe light having a flashrate of 60 to 120 per
minute and either flashing red warning lights or flashing red and
amber warning lights.  The secretary shall prescribe rules for the
type, installation, operation and light output brilliance of the lights
required under this subsection.  No vehicle may be equipped with
the warning and strobe lights required under this subsection unless
it also is painted as provided in s. 347.44.

Cross−reference:  See also ch. Trans 300, Wis. adm. code.

(2g) No person may operate on a highway any self−propelled
implement of husbandry having a total width in excess of 12 feet
unless it is equipped with a 360−degree yellow or amber rotating
strobe or beacon light, mounted at the highest practicable point,
or 2 flashing amber lights visible to the front and rear, and the light
or lights are activated.

(2m) A human service vehicle may be equipped with a
360−degree flashing strobe light with a flashrate of 60 to 120 per
minute.  Notwithstanding s. 110.05 (1), the secretary shall pre-
scribe rules for the type, color, installation, operation and light
output brilliance of the lights permitted under this subsection.

(3) The lead vehicle in a funeral procession may be equipped,
or any vehicle in the procession may be equipped if all vehicles
in the procession are so equipped, with a flashing amber light that
may be used only in the procession.

(4) No vehicle may be equipped with or display any blue col-
ored light or lamp unless the vehicle is used in police work autho-
rized by the state or a political subdivision of the state or is used
by a fire department as authorized under sub. (1s).

(5) Notwithstanding s. 347.26 (11), whenever flashing warn-
ing lamps on an authorized emergency vehicle are designed and
being used to exhibit a directional arrow at the scene of an emer-
gency, the lamps exhibiting the directional arrow may be flashing
simultaneously or sequentially.  If the use of flashing warning
lamps to exhibit a directional arrow would likely direct approach-
ing traffic into a lane of traffic moving in the opposite direction,
only the flashing warning lamps that exhibit the horizontal bar of
a directional arrow may be used and such lamps shall be flashing
simultaneously.

History:  1977 c. 29 s. 1654 (7) (c); 1977 c. 228; 1979 c. 54, 149; 1983 a. 56; 1985
a. 143; 1987 a. 126; 1989 a. 69; 1991 a. 73, 142; 1993 a. 369; 1995 a. 31, 190; 1997
a. 31, 117; 2007 a. 20, 177; 2009 a. 46; 2013 a. 95, 96, 313, 377; 2015 a. 232.

The trial court acted erroneously in imposing the burden of proof as to the intensity
of the light upon the plaintiff.  The statutory exemption of emergency vehicles from
adherence to traffic regulations is available as an affirmative defense, and the defen-
dants bear the burden of proving the necessary compliance with the statutory condi-
tion.  A light showing only to the front would not provide the operator with emergency
privileges for stopping, parking, or turning as to vehicles approaching from the rear.
Pittman v. Lieffring, 59 Wis. 2d 52, 207 N.W.2d 610 (1973).

347.26 Restrictions on certain optional lighting equip-
ment.  (1) GENERAL RESTRICTIONS.  A vehicle need not be
equipped with the lamps specified in this section, but if a vehicle
is equipped with any such lamps, no person shall operate such
vehicle on a highway during hours of darkness unless such lamps
comply with the requirements of this section and no person shall
use such lamps in a manner inconsistent with this section.

(2) SPOTLAMPS.  (a)  Any motor vehicle may be equipped with
not more than 2 spotlamps.

(b)  No spotlamp shall be used as a substitute for headlamps.
No spotlamp shall be used as an auxiliary driving light on any
motor vehicle except when such spotlamp is set or adjusted so that
the rays of light are projected directly upon the road surface at a
distance not exceeding 150 feet directly in front of the vehicle and
to the right of the center of the traveled roadway.  No spotlamp
shall project any glaring light into the eyes of an approaching
driver.

(3) ADVERSE WEATHER LAMPS.  (a)  Any motor vehicle may be
equipped with not more than 2 adverse weather lamps which shall

be mounted on the front of the vehicle below the level of the cen-
ters of the headlamps.

(b)  Adverse weather lamps shall not be used in lieu of head-
lamps unless absolutely necessary in case of rain, snow, dust or
fog and then only when a vehicle is equipped with 2 adverse
weather lamps mounted on opposite sides of the front of the vehi-
cle and when both such adverse weather lamps are lighted.  When-
ever any vehicle is equipped with only one adverse weather lamp,
both headlamps of such vehicle shall be lighted at all times when
such adverse weather lamp is lighted.

(4) BACK−UP LAMPS.  (a)  Any motor vehicle may be equipped
with not more than 2 back−up lamps which shall be so directed as
to project a white or amber light illuminating the roadway to the
rear of such vehicle for a distance not to exceed 75 feet.

(b)  No lighted back−up lamp shall be displayed on any vehicle
upon a highway except when such vehicle is about to be or is being
driven backward.  Whenever a back−up lamp is lighted during
hours of darkness, the tail lamp or tail lamps on the vehicle dis-
playing such lighted back−up lamp also shall be lighted.

(5) IDENTIFICATION LAMPS ON TAXICABS AND BUSES.  No person
shall operate a motor vehicle regularly used for transporting pas-
sengers for hire displaying any lighting device for identification
purposes other than a single illuminated sign or lighted lamp
mounted above the top line of the windshield, colored white,
amber or green.  Such illuminated sign or lamp shall be so con-
structed as to emit a steady or flashing nonglaring light.

(6) WARNING LAMPS ON TOW TRUCKS AND SERVICE VEHICLES.

(a)  Any vehicle which by reason of its use upon a highway creates
a vehicular traffic hazard requiring the exercise of unusual care in
approaching, overtaking or passing shall be equipped with a flash-
ing or rotating amber lamp of the dome type at the highest practi-
cable point, visible from a distance of 500 feet, or 2 flashing amber
lamps, one showing to the front and one showing to the rear, vis-
ible from a distance of 500 feet and mounted approximately mid-
way between the extremities of the width of the vehicle and at the
highest practicable point.  Such amber lamp or lamps shall be
lighted when such vehicle is moving a disabled vehicle along or
upon a public highway at a speed below the average speed of
motor vehicle traffic on such street or highway and may not be lit
at other times.

(b)  Operators of tow trucks or towing vehicles shall equip each
tow truck or towing vehicle with a flashing or rotating red lamp,
in addition to flashing type amber lamps.  Such lamp shall be
placed on the dome of the vehicle at the highest practicable point
visible from a distance of 500 feet.  This flashing red lamp shall
be used only when such vehicle is standing on or near the traveled
portion of a highway preparatory to towing or servicing the dis-
abled vehicle.

(7) WARNING LAMPS ON CERTAIN HIGHWAY VEHICLES.  Any
vehicle of the department or a county or municipal highway
department that by reason of its use upon a highway creates a
vehicular traffic hazard requiring the exercise of unusual care in
approaching, overtaking, or passing may be equipped with any of
the following configurations of flashing red, amber, or green
lamps:

(a)  A lamp of the dome−light type.

(b)  Two lamps, one showing to the front and one showing to
the rear.  The lamps shall be mounted approximately midway
between the extremities of the width of the vehicle and at the high-
est practicable point and shall be used only for the purpose of
warning operators of other vehicles of the presence of the traffic
hazard.

(c)  Four lamps, 2 showing to the front and 2 showing to the
rear.  The lamps showing to the front shall be mounted at the same
level and as widely spaced laterally as practicable.  The lamps
showing to the rear shall be mounted at the same level and as
widely spaced laterally as practicable.

(8) WARNING LAMPS FOR MAIL DELIVERY VEHICLES.  Any vehi-
cle used for mail delivery may be equipped with a flashing amber

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.44
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.44
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20Trans%20300
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/110.05(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(1s)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.26(11)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29,%20s.%201654
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/228
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1979/54
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1979/149
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/56
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/143
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/143
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1987/126
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1989/69
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1991/73
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1991/142
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1993/369
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1995/31
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1995/190
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1997/31
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1997/31
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1997/117
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2007/20
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2007/177
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/46
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2013/95
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2013/96
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2013/313
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2013/377
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/232
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/59%20Wis.%202d%2052
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/207%20N.W.2d%20610


EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES  347.289 Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats.

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

lamp or strobe light mounted at the highest practicable point and
showing to the front and rear that may be used only to warn other
motorists of the presence of a vehicular traffic hazard requiring the
exercise of unusual care in approaching, overtaking or passing
when the vehicle is being used to deliver mail.

(9) WARNING LAMPS ON PUBLIC UTILITY AND COOPERATIVE

VEHICLES.  (a)  Subject to par. (b), any vehicle of a public utility,
as defined in s. 196.01 (5), telecommunications carrier, as defined
in s. 196.01 (8m), or cooperative association organized under ch.
185 for the purpose of producing or furnishing heat, light, power,
or water to its members that by reason of its use upon a highway
creates a vehicular traffic hazard requiring the exercise of unusual
care in approaching, overtaking, or passing may be equipped with
any of the following configurations of flashing amber or green
lamps:

1.  A lamp of the dome−light type.

2.  Two lamps, one showing to the front and one showing to
the rear.  The lamps shall be mounted approximately midway
between the extremities of the width of the vehicle and at the high-
est practicable point and shall be used only for the purpose of
warning operators of other vehicles of the presence of the traffic
hazard.  If the mounting of lamps midway between the extremities
of the width of the vehicle is impracticable because of the vehi-
cle’s design, then the mountings shall be made at or near the upper
left front and rear corners of the vehicle.

3.  Four lamps, 2 showing to the front and 2 showing to the
rear.  The lamps showing to the front shall be mounted at the same
level and as widely spaced laterally as practicable.  The lamps
showing to the rear shall be mounted at the same level and as
widely spaced laterally as practicable.

(b)  In this paragraph, “maintenance and restoration of utility
service” means the immediate restoration of a utility service that
is outside the normal parameters of general maintenance or con-
struction when damage or interruption of service has been caused
to utility infrastructure by adverse weather or other events and that
requires utility crews to park utility vehicles in the roadway or on
the shoulder of the roadway.  No person may use flashing green
lamps under par. (a) unless the vehicle upon which the lamps are
mounted is operated for the purpose of maintenance and restora-
tion of utility service.

(10) FLASHING AMBER LIGHT ON OVERSIZE VEHICLE.  Any vehi-
cle moving on the highway pursuant to an oversize permit issued
under s. 348.25, 348.26 or 348.27 may be equipped with a flashing
amber dome light upon the cab of such vehicle or with double
faced flashing amber light mounted along the sides of such vehicle
mounted and used when the movement is oversize.

(11) FLASHING WARNING LAMPS.  (a)  Any vehicle may be
equipped with lamps which may be used for the purpose of warn-
ing the operators of other vehicles of the presence of a vehicular
traffic hazard requiring the exercise of unusual care in approach-
ing, overtaking or passing, and when so equipped may display
such warning in addition to any other warning signals required by
this section.  The lamps used to display such warning to the front
shall be mounted at the same level and as widely spaced laterally
as practicable, and shall display simultaneously flashing white or
amber lights, or any shade of color between white and amber.  The
lamps used to display such warning to the rear shall be mounted
at the same level and as widely spaced laterally as practicable, and
shall show simultaneously flashing amber or red lights, or any
shade of color between amber and red.  These warning lights shall
be visible from a distance of not less than 500 feet under normal
atmospheric conditions at night.  Directional signals meeting the
requirements of this chapter shall be used or lamps meeting these
requirements, mounted so as to comply with turn signal installa-
tion.

(am)  In addition to any other lamps authorized under this sub-
section, a motor truck having a gross vehicle weight rating of more
than 26,000 pounds may be equipped with a 360−degree flashing
or rotating amber light mounted at the highest practicable point.

The flashing or rotating amber lamp may be lighted only when the
motor truck is upon a highway having a maximum speed limit of
more than 35 miles per hour and the motor truck is traveling 10 or
more miles per hour below the maximum speed limit, is stopped,
or is backing on such highway.  The flashing or rotating amber
lamp may not be lit at other times.

(b)  Whenever any vehicle other than an automobile, which is
equipped as permitted in par. (a), is stopped for more than 10 min-
utes on the traveled portion of any highway, or shoulder thereof,
during hours of darkness, the driver of such vehicle shall display
warning signals as required by s. 347.29.

History:  1977 c. 29 s. 1654 (8) (a); 1983 a. 53 s. 114; 1985 a. 204; 1989 a. 134,
336; 1993 a. 496; 2005 a. 38; 2021 a. 255; 2023 a. 155.

Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.075, 305.08, 305.10, and 305.11, Wis.
adm. code.

347.27 When lighted lamps required on parked vehi-
cles.  (1) No person shall park or leave a vehicle standing,
whether attended or unattended, upon a roadway or the shoulder
immediately adjacent thereto during hours of darkness unless:

(a)  Such vehicle is parked or standing where there is sufficient
artificial light to render it visible from a distance of 500 feet or is
lawfully parked within the corporate limits of a city or village and
in either case is equipped with at least one red reflector mounted
on the rear thereof as near as practicable to the side of the vehicle
which is closest to passing traffic and otherwise meeting the
mounting and visibility requirements specified in ss. 347.18 and
347.19; or

(b)  Such vehicle displays one or more lighted lamps meeting
the following requirements:

1.  At least one lamp shall display a white or amber light vis-
ible from a distance of 500 feet to the front of the vehicle, and the
same lamp or at least one other lamp shall display a red light vis-
ible from a distance of 500 feet to the rear of the vehicle.

2.  The location of such lamp or lamps shall always be such
that at least one lamp or combination of lamps meeting the
requirements of this section is installed as near as practicable to
the side of the vehicle which is closest to passing traffic.

3.  If the vehicle is equipped with 2 parking lamps and 2 tail
lamps, both parking lamps and both tail lamps shall be lighted.

(2) Any lighted headlamps on a vehicle parked on a highway
shall be depressed or dimmed.

(3) In this section, “vehicle” includes farm tractors, imple-
ments of husbandry, animal−drawn vehicles, lightweight utility
vehicles as defined in s. 346.94 (21) (a) 2., and road machinery.

History:  2009 a. 157; 2015 a. 232.

347.28 Certain vehicles to carry flares or other warn-
ing devices.  (1) No person shall operate a motor truck or motor
bus more than 80 inches in width or a truck tractor or road tractor
on any highway outside the corporate limits of a city or village
during hours of darkness unless such vehicle carries in a place
readily accessible to the driver the following warning devices:

(a)  At least 3 pot torches or 3 red electric lanterns or 3 red emer-
gency reflectors, each of which shall be capable of being seen and
distinguished at a distance of at least 600 feet under normal atmos-
pheric conditions during hours of darkness.  If pot torches are car-
ried in lieu of red electric lanterns, at least 3 red−burning fusees
shall be carried in addition to such pot torches; and

(b)  At least 2 red−cloth flags, not less than 12 inches square,
with standards to support such flags.

(2) No person shall operate upon a highway outside the corpo-
rate limits of a city or village during hours of darkness any motor
vehicle used for the transportation of explosives or any cargo tank
truck used for the transportation of flammable liquids or com-
pressed gases unless there is carried in such vehicle 3 red electric
lanterns or 3 red emergency reflectors meeting the requirements
of sub. (1).  No pot torch or fusee or signal produced by flame shall
be carried in any such vehicle.  Such red emergency reflectors
shall comply with the specifications for such reflectors as set forth

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.26(9)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/196.01(5)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/196.01(8m)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%20185
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.26(9)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/348.25
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/348.26
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/348.27
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.26(11)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29,%20s.%201654
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/53
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/53,%20s.%20114
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/204
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1989/134
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1989/336
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1993/496
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2005/38
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2021/255
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2023/155
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.075
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.08
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.10
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.18
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.19
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.94(21)(a)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/157
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/232
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.28(1)


Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats. 10 347.28 EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

in interstate commerce commission motor carrier safety regula-
tions.

347.29 Display of warning devices for certain vehicles
when standing on highway.  (1) Except as provided in s.
347.26 (11) (b), whenever any motor truck, motor bus, trailer or
semitrailer more than 80 inches in width or truck tractor or road
tractor is left standing, whether attended or unattended, during
hours of darkness upon the traveled portion of any highway or the
shoulder adjacent thereto outside the corporate limits of a city or
village, the operator of such vehicle shall display the following
warning devices upon the highway during the entire time the vehi-
cle is so left standing and such devices shall be placed in the fol-
lowing order:

(a)  A lighted fusee or lighted red electric lantern or a red emer-
gency reflector shall immediately be placed at the traffic side of
the vehicle in the direction of the nearest approaching traffic.  If
a lighted fusee was so placed, the driver shall replace such fusee
with a lighted pot torch or lighted red electric lantern or a red emer-
gency reflector after the driver has placed the warning devices
specified in pars. (b) and (c) and before the fusee burns out.

(b)  A lighted pot torch or lighted red electric lantern or a red
emergency reflector shall be placed approximately 100 feet from
the standing vehicle in the center of the lane occupied by such
vehicle and toward traffic approaching in that lane.

(c)  One lighted pot torch or lighted red electric lantern or a red
emergency reflector shall be placed approximately 100 feet from
the standing vehicle in the center of the lane occupied by such
vehicle and in the opposite direction from the warning device
placed in accordance with par. (b).

(2) Whenever any vehicle referred to in this section is left
standing, whether attended or unattended, within 500 feet of a
curve, hillcrest or other obstruction to view, the warning signal in
that direction shall be so placed as to afford ample warning to other
users of the highway, but in no case less than 100 feet nor more
than 500 feet from the standing vehicle.

(3) Whenever any vehicle of a type referred to in this section
is left standing, whether attended or unattended, upon any road-
way of a divided highway during hours of darkness, the appropri-
ate warning devices prescribed in subs. (1) and (4) shall be placed
as follows:

(a)  One shall be placed at a distance of approximately 200 feet
from the vehicle in the center of the lane occupied by the standing
vehicle and in the direction of traffic approaching in that lane;

(b)  One shall be placed at a distance of approximately 100 feet
from the vehicle in the center of the lane occupied by the vehicle
and in the direction of traffic approaching in that lane;

(c)  One shall be placed at the traffic side of the vehicle and
approximately 10 feet from the vehicle in the direction of the near-
est approaching traffic.

(4) No operator of a motor vehicle used in the transportation
of explosives, or of a cargo tank truck used for the transportation
of any flammable liquid or compressed flammable gas shall use
any flame−producing emergency signal for protecting any such
vehicle.  In lieu thereof, red electric lanterns or red emergency
reflectors shall be used, the placement of which shall be in the
same order and manner as prescribed in subs. (1) to (3).

(5) Whenever any vehicle of a type referred to in this section
is left standing at any place mentioned in this section at times other
than during hours of darkness, the operator of the vehicle shall dis-
play 2 red flags upon the roadway in the lane of traffic occupied
by the standing vehicle, one at a distance of approximately 100
feet in advance of the vehicle and one at a distance of approxi-
mately 100 feet to the rear of the vehicle.

(6) The flares, fusees, red electric lanterns, red emergency
reflectors and flags to be displayed as required in this section shall
conform with the requirements of s. 347.28.

(7) This section does not apply to vehicles standing on a high-
way in compliance with traffic regulations or the directions of a
traffic officer or official traffic sign or signal.

History:  1991 a. 316.

A flag warning under sub. (5) is not applicable in a city.  Northland Insurance Co.
v. Avis Rent−A−Car, 62 Wis. 2d 643, 215 N.W.2d 439 (1974).

347.30 Penalty for violating lighting equipment
requirements.  (1) Any person violating s. 347.06 or 347.13
(2), (3) or (4) may be required to forfeit not less than $10 nor more
than $20 for the first offense and not less than $25 nor more than
$50 for the 2nd or subsequent conviction within a year.

(2) Any person violating ss. 347.03, 347.07 to 347.12, 347.13
(1) or 347.14 to 347.29 may be required to forfeit not less than $10
nor more than $200.

(3) Notwithstanding sub. (2), on or after April 5, 2018, and
before 6 months after April 5, 2018, if a person violates s. 347.24
(2) by operating on a highway during hours of darkness a vehicle
that is drawn by an animal and that is not equipped with 2 yellow
or amber strobe lights visible from a distance of 500 feet to the rear
and mounted not more than 6 inches from the lateral extremities
of the vehicle, a law enforcement officer shall issue the person a
warning notice and may not issue a citation.

History:  1971 c. 278; 2017 a. 228.

SUBCHAPTER III

OTHER EQUIPMENT

347.35 Brakes.  (1) MOTOR VEHICLES.  No person shall oper-
ate any motor vehicle, other than a moped or motorcycle, upon a
highway unless such motor vehicle is equipped with brakes ade-
quate to control the movement of and to stop and hold such vehicle
and capable of meeting the performance specifications under s.
347.36.  There shall be 2 separate means of applying the brakes,
each of which means shall be effective to apply the brakes to at
least 2 wheels.

(1a) PARKING BRAKES.  Every such vehicle and combination of
vehicles, except mopeds and motorcycles, shall be equipped with
parking brakes adequate to hold the vehicle on any grade on which
it is operated, under all conditions of loading on a surface free
from snow, ice or loose material.  The parking brakes shall be
capable of being applied by the driver’s muscular effort or by
spring action or by equivalent means.  Their operation may be
assisted by the service brakes or other source of power provided
that failure of the service brake actuation system or other power
assisting mechanism will not prevent the parking brakes from
being applied.  The parking brakes shall be so designed that when
once applied they shall remain applied with the required effec-
tiveness despite exhaustion of any source of energy or leakage of
any kind.  The same brake drums, brake shoes and lining assem-
blies, brake shoe anchors and mechanical brake shoe actuation
mechanism normally associated with the wheel brake assemblies
may be used for both the service brakes and the parking brakes.
If the means of applying the parking brakes and the service brakes
are connected in any way, they shall be so constructed that failure
of any one part shall not leave the vehicle without operative
brakes.

(2) MOPEDS AND MOTORCYCLES.  No person may operate a
moped or motorcycle upon a highway unless the moped or motor-
cycle is equipped with at least one brake capable of meeting the
performance specifications set forth in s. 347.36.  The brake may
be designed to be operated either by hand or by foot.

(3) TRAILERS, SEMITRAILERS AND TOWED VEHICLES.  (a)  Except
as provided in par. (am), no person shall operate on a highway any
trailer, semitrailer or other towed vehicle having a gross weight of
3,000 pounds or more and manufactured after January 1, 1942
unless such vehicle is equipped with brakes adequate to control
the movement of and to stop and hold it.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.26(11)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.29(1)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.29(1)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.29(1)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.29(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.29(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.29(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.29(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.28
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1991/316
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/62%20Wis.%202d%20643
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/215%20N.W.2d%20439
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.06
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.13(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.13(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.13(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.13(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.03
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.07
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.12
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.13(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.13(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.14
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.30(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.24(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.24(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1971/278
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2017/228
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.36
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.36
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.35(3)(am)


EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES  347.38511 Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats.

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

(am)  A motor vehicle may be towed without being equipped
with brakes as provided in par. (a) if the gross weight of the towed
vehicle is not more than 40 percent of the gross weight of the tow-
ing vehicle and the brakes on the towing vehicle are capable of
bringing the combination of towing vehicle and towed vehicle to
a stop as provided in s. 347.36 (1).

(b)  Every full trailer, semitrailer, pole trailer or other towed
vehicle required to be equipped with brakes shall be equipped
with brake systems of such design and type, and capable of meet-
ing such performance standards, as established by rule of the
department.

(c)  This subsection does not apply to farm trailers or to dis-
abled vehicles while being towed to a place of repair or to automo-
biles or trucks while being towed or being transported pursuant to
s. 341.47 (1) (b).

(4) MOBILE HOMES AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLES.  No person
shall manufacture and no person shall sell a mobile home or recre-
ational vehicle in this state unless such mobile home or recre-
ational vehicle is equipped with brakes adequate to control the
movement of and to stop and hold it.  No person shall operate on
a highway any mobile home registered as a 1940 or later year
model or recreational vehicle unless such mobile home or recre-
ational vehicle is equipped with brakes adequate to control the
movement of and to stop and hold it.

(5) IMPLEMENTS OF HUSBANDRY.  (a)  No person may operate
on a highway any self−propelled implement of husbandry manu-
factured after February 1, 1985, unless the vehicle is equipped
with brakes or other stopping device adequate to control the
movement of and to stop and hold the implement of husbandry.

(b)  Every self−propelled implement of husbandry required to
be equipped with brakes or other stopping device shall be
equipped with brakes or a stopping device that meets design, type
or performance standards established by the department by rule.
The rule of the department under this paragraph shall comply with
the applicable standard established by the American society of
agricultural engineers.

History:  1977 c. 29 s. 1654 (7) (e); 1979 c. 163; 1983 a. 124, 243, 244; 1985 a.
65; 2007 a. 11; 2019 a. 50.

Cross−reference:  See also ch. Trans 308 and ss. Trans 305.17, 305.37, and
305.51, Wis. adm. code.

347.36 Performance ability of brakes.  (1) Brakes on
motor vehicles and brakes on combinations of vehicles shall be
capable of bringing the vehicle or combination of vehicles to a
stop, under normal conditions, within 50 feet when traveling at a
speed of 20 miles per hour.

(3) All required brakes shall be maintained in good working
order.

History:  1983 a. 243.
Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.17 and 305.37, Wis. adm. code.

347.37 Brake fluid, sale regulation.  (1) After January 1,
1960, no hydraulic brake fluid for use in motor vehicles shall be
sold in this state if such brake fluid is below the minimum standard
of specifications established by the society of automotive engi-
neers for heavy duty type brake fluid No. 70R1 or a later designa-
tor for an improved product.

(2) All manufacturers of brake fluids selling such fluids in
Wisconsin shall state on the immediate containers in which such
fluid is packaged that the fluid therein meets or exceeds the speci-
fications under sub. (1).

347.38 Horns and warning devices.  (1) No person shall
operate a motor vehicle upon a highway unless such motor vehicle
is equipped with a horn in good working order and capable of
emitting sound audible under normal conditions from a distance
of not less than 200 feet, but no person shall at any time use a horn
otherwise than as a reasonable warning or make any unnecessary
or unreasonably loud or harsh sound by means of a horn or other
warning device.

(2) Except as otherwise provided in this section, no vehicle
shall be equipped with nor shall any person use upon a vehicle any
siren or compression or exhaust whistle.

(3) Any vehicle may be equipped with a theft alarm signal
device if such device is so arranged that it cannot be used by the
driver as an ordinary warning signal.

(4) An authorized emergency vehicle shall be equipped with
a siren, but such siren shall not be used except when such vehicle
is operated in response to an emergency call or in the immediate
pursuit of an actual or suspected violator of the law, when
responding to but not upon returning from a fire alarm, when
transporting an organ for human transplantation, or when trans-
porting medical personnel for the purpose of performing human
organ harvesting or transplantation immediately after the trans-
portation, in which events the driver of such vehicle shall sound
the siren when reasonably necessary to warn pedestrians and other
drivers.

Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.25 and 305.41, Wis. adm. code.
History:  2007 a. 20.

347.385 Traffic control signal preemption and priority
devices.  (1m) In this section:

(a)  “Authorized emergency vehicle” means an authorized
emergency vehicle as defined in s. 340.01 (3) (a), (c), (g), or (i).

(d)  “Political subdivision” means a county, city, village, or
town.

(e)  “Snow removal vehicle” means any vehicle equipped with
a snowplow or anti−icing equipment that is used by a political sub-
division for snow removal and is operated by a political subdivi-
sion or the agent or lessee of a political subdivision.

(f)  “Traffic control signal preemption device” means a device,
located on or within a traffic control signal, that is designed to
receive an electronic, radio, light, or sound transmission from an
approaching vehicle that alters the normal sequence of the traffic
control signal to provide or maintain a green signal for the vehicle
to proceed through the intersection.

(g)  “Traffic control signal priority device” means a device,
located on or within a traffic control signal, that is designed to
receive an electronic, radio, light, or sound transmission from an
approaching vehicle to request that a green signal be provided or
maintained for the vehicle to proceed through the intersection.

(i)  “Transmitter” means a device that emits a signal for the pur-
pose of activating a traffic control signal preemption device or a
traffic control signal priority device.

(2m) An authorized emergency vehicle may be equipped and
operated with lamps designed and used, or with any other trans-
mitter designed and used, to activate traffic control signal preemp-
tion devices.

(2r) A snow removal vehicle equipped with oscillating, rotat-
ing, or flashing lights that is actively engaged in snow removal
activities may be equipped and operated with lamps designed and
used, or with any other transmitter designed and used, to activate
traffic control signal priority devices.

(3m) The lamps authorized for use under this section may be
any color and may be flashing, oscillating, rotating or pulsating.

(4) No operator of an authorized emergency vehicle may use
a transmitter, including lamps under sub. (2m), except when
responding to an emergency call, when pursuing an actual or sus-
pected violator of the law, or when responding to, but not when
returning from, a fire alarm.

(5) (a)  No person may operate upon a highway a motor vehi-
cle, other than an authorized emergency vehicle or snow removal
vehicle, that is equipped with a transmitter or in which a transmit-
ter is located.  This subsection does not apply to a motor carrier or
person in the business of selling transmitters to authorized users
who transports a transmitter in original, unopened packaging or in
an inoperative condition in an enclosed storage compartment of
the vehicle.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.35(3)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.36(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/341.47(1)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29,%20s.%201654
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1979/163
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/124
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/244
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/65
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/65
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2007/11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2019/50
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20Trans%20308
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.37
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.51
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.17
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.37
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.37(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.25
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.41
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2007/20
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(g)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(3)(i)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.385(2m)


Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats. 12 347.385 EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

(b)  No person may sell a transmitter except for use for autho-
rized purposes as described in sub. (2m) or (2r).

(6) The authority responsible for maintenance of a traffic con-
trol signal may establish procedures for resolving conflicts
between multiple requests for signal preemption or priority at a
traffic signal, except that a signal preemption request from an
authorized emergency vehicle must be given priority over any sig-
nal priority request.

History:  2005 a. 193 ss. 1 to 6; Stats. 2005 s. 347.385; 2023 a. 167.

347.39 Mufflers.  (1) No person shall operate on a highway
any motor vehicle subject to registration unless such motor vehi-
cle is equipped with an adequate muffler in constant operation and
properly maintained to prevent any excessive or unusual noise or
annoying smoke.  This subsection also applies to motor bicycles.

(2) No muffler or exhaust system on any vehicle mentioned in
sub. (1) shall be equipped with a cutout, bypass or similar device
nor shall there be installed in the exhaust system of any such vehi-
cle any device to ignite exhaust gases so as to produce flame
within or without the exhaust system.  No person shall modify the
exhaust system of any such motor vehicle in a manner which will
amplify or increase the noise emitted by the motor of such vehicle
above that emitted by the muffler originally installed on the vehi-
cle, and such original muffler shall comply with all the require-
ments of this section.

(3) In this section, “muffler” means a device consisting of a
series of chambers of baffle plates or other mechanical design for
receiving exhaust gases from an internal combustion engine and
which is effective in reducing noise.

History:  1983 a. 243.
Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.20 and 305.39, Wis. adm. code.

347.40 Mirrors.  (1) No person shall operate any motor vehi-
cle upon a highway unless such vehicle is equipped with a mirror
so located as to reflect to the operator a view of the roadway for
a distance of 200 feet to the rear of such vehicle.

(2) No person shall operate on a highway any school bus hav-
ing a passenger−carrying capacity of 10 or more persons including
the operator unless such bus is equipped with at least one mirror
which is 7 inches in diameter so located as to enable the operator
to see a reflection of the road from the entire front bumper forward
to a point where direct observation is possible.

(3) No person may operate or permit the operation of any
motor bus on a highway unless the bus is equipped with 2 outside
rearview mirrors, one to the right and one to the left of the operator.
Each mirror shall have not less than 50 square inches of unob-
structed reflective surface and shall be firmly supported and
adjustable to give the operator a clear view past both the right and
left rear of the bus.

History:  1975 c. 84; 1987 a. 235.
Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.26 and 305.44, Wis. adm. code.

347.41 Speed indicators.  No person shall operate on a high-
way any motor vehicle primarily designed for use upon a highway
unless such motor vehicle is equipped with a speedometer which
with reasonable accuracy registers the speed of the vehicle, except
that motor trucks or truck tractors may be equipped with tachome-
ters or any other devices that indicate speed and motor vehicles
transported pursuant and in compliance with s. 341.47 (1) (b) and
(c) may be equipped with a governor of speed of a type which
restricts speed and which is set at a level equal to or below the lim-
its of 55 miles per hour in lieu of a speedometer.

History:  1983 a. 54.
Cross−reference:  See also s. Trans 305.18, Wis. adm. code.

347.413 Ignition interlock device tampering; failure to
install.  (1) No person may remove, disconnect, tamper with, or
otherwise circumvent the operation of an ignition interlock device
installed in response to the court order under s. 346.65 (6), 1999
stats., or s. 343.301 (1), 2007 stats., or s. 343.301 (1g), or fail to
have the ignition interlock device installed as ordered by the court,
or violate a court order under s. 343.301 (1g) restricting the per-

son’s operating privilege.  This subsection does not apply to the
removal of an ignition interlock device upon the expiration of the
order requiring the motor vehicle to be so equipped or to necessary
repairs to a malfunctioning ignition interlock device by a person
authorized by the department.

(3) The department shall design a warning label which shall
be affixed to each ignition interlock device upon installation.  The
label shall provide notice of the penalties for tampering with or
circumventing the operation of the ignition interlock device under
sub. (1) and s. 343.10 (5) (a) 3.

History:  1991 a. 277; 1993 a. 213; 1999 a. 109; 2001 a. 16 ss. 3445f, 3445g,
4060hd, 4060hw, 4060hy; 2009 a. 100, 121; 2017 a. 124.

347.415 Odometer tampering.  (1g) In this section,
“odometer” means an instrument for measuring and recording the
actual distance that a motor vehicle, snowmobile, all−terrain vehi-
cle, or utility terrain vehicle has traveled while in operation, but
does not include any auxiliary instrument designed to be reset to
zero to measure and record the actual distance that a motor vehi-
cle, snowmobile, all−terrain vehicle, or utility terrain vehicle has
traveled on trips.

(1m) No person may, either personally or through an agent,
remove, replace, disconnect, reset, tamper with, alter, or fail to
connect the odometer of any motor vehicle, snowmobile, all−ter-
rain vehicle, or utility terrain vehicle with the intent to change or
affect the number of miles indicated thereon.

(2) No person may operate a motor vehicle subject to registra-
tion under ch. 341 on any street or highway with knowledge that
the odometer is removed, disconnected or nonfunctional.  An
exemption may be provided if parts are on back order to correct
a nonfunctional odometer.

(3) No person may advertise for sale, sell, use, install, or have
installed any device which causes an odometer to register any
mileage other than the true mileage driven.  For purposes of this
subsection, “true mileage driven” means that mileage traveled by
the vehicle as measured and recorded by the odometer within the
manufacturer’s design tolerance.

(4) No person shall conspire with any other person to violate
sub. (1m), (2) or (3).

(5) Nothing in this section shall prevent the service, repair or
replacement of an odometer, provided the mileage indicated
thereon remains the same as before the service, repair or replace-
ment.  Where the odometer is incapable of registering the same
mileage as before such service, repair or replacement, the odome-
ter shall be adjusted to read zero, and a written notice shall be
attached, by the owner or an agent, to the left door frame of the
vehicle, or other location as prescribed by the department, speci-
fying the mileage prior to service, repair or replacement of the
odometer and the date on which it was serviced, repaired or
replaced.  No person may, with intent to defraud, remove or alter
such a notice so affixed.  No person who services, repairs or
replaces an odometer that is incapable of registering the same
mileage as before such service, repair or replacement may fail to
adjust the odometer to read zero or fail to attach the notice required
by this subsection.

History:  1975 c. 121, 199; 1977 c. 29 s. 1654 (7) (a); 1993 a. 159; 2003 a. 166;
2011 a. 208.

Cross−reference:  See also ch. Trans 154, Wis. adm. code.

347.417 Immobilization device tampering.  (1) No per-
son may remove, disconnect, tamper with, or otherwise circum-
vent the operation of any immobilization device installed in
response to a court order under s. 346.65 (6), 1999 stats., or s.
343.301 (2), 2007 stats.  This subsection does not apply to the
removal of an immobilization device pursuant to a court order or
to necessary repairs to a malfunctioning immobilization device.

(2) The department shall design a warning label which shall
be affixed by the owner of each immobilization device before the
device is used to immobilize any motor vehicle under s. 346.65
(6), 1999 stats., or s. 343.301 (2), 2007 stats.  The label shall pro-
vide notice of the penalties for removing, disconnecting, tamper-

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.385(2m)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.385(2r)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2005/193
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2005/193,%20s.%201
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2005/193,%20s.%206
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2023/167
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.39(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.20
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.39
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1975/84
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1987/235
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.26
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.44
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/341.47(1)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/341.47(1)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/54
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.18
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/1999/346.65(6)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/2007/343.301(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/343.301(1g)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/343.301(1g)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.413(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/343.10(5)(a)3.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1991/277
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1993/213
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1999/109
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/16
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/16,%20s.%203445f
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/16,%20s.%203445g
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/16,%20s.%204060hd
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/16,%20s.%204060hw
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/16,%20s.%204060hy
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/100
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/121
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2017/124
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%20341
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.415(1m)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.415(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.415(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1975/121
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1975/199
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29,%20s.%201654
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1993/159
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2003/166
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2011/208
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20Trans%20154
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/1999/346.65(6)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/2007/343.301(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/1999/346.65(6)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/1999/346.65(6)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/2007/343.301(2)


EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES  347.4513 Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats.

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

ing with, or otherwise circumventing the operation of the immobi-
lization device.

History:  1991 a. 277; 1999 a. 109; 2001 a. 16 ss. 3445h to 3445m, 4060hg, 4060hj,
4060hw, 4060hy; 2009 a. 100.

347.42 Windshield wipers.  No person may operate on a
highway any motor vehicle equipped with a windshield, except a
moped or motorcycle, unless the motor vehicle also is equipped
with a device for cleaning rain, snow or other moisture from the
windshield.  The device shall be so constructed as to be controlled
or operated by the operator of the vehicle and shall at all times be
maintained in good working order.

History:  1979 c. 163; 1983 a. 243; 1985 a. 65; 2019 a. 50.
Cross−reference:  See also s. Trans 305.35, Wis. adm. code.

347.43 Safety glass.  (1g) In this section, “safety glass”
means glass so treated or combined with other materials as to
reduce, in comparison with ordinary sheet glass or plate glass, the
likelihood of injury to persons by objects from external sources or
by such glass when it is struck, cracked or broken.

(1s) No person may operate upon a highway any motor vehi-
cle manufactured after January 1, 1936, except a recreational
vehicle other than a 5th−wheel recreational vehicle, unless the
motor vehicle is equipped with safety glass wherever glass is used
on the motor vehicle in partitions, doors, windows or windshields.

(2) No person may sell any new motor vehicle unless such
vehicle is equipped with safety glass in accordance with the
requirements of sub. (1s).

(4) If a common carrier or person operating under a permit or
certificate issued by the department is convicted of operating a
vehicle in violation of this section, the department may suspend
or revoke the permit or certificate until such time as the vehicle has
been equipped with safety glass as required by this section.

History:  1977 c. 29 s. 1654 (9) (f); 1981 c. 347; 1985 a. 187; 1993 a. 16; 1999 a.
85; 2007 a. 60.

Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.32 and 305.34, Wis. adm. code.
Sub. (1) [now sub. (1s)] requires that whenever broken glass is replaced in a vehicle

it must be replaced with safety glass.  Replacing glass with plastic violated this sec-
tion, and an officer observing a vehicle with replacement plastic had probable cause
to stop the vehicle for a violation of this section.  State v. Longcore, 2001 WI App 15,
240 Wis. 2d 429, 623 N.W.2d 201, 00−1171.

347.435 Vehicle monitoring and feedback.  Not-
withstanding s. 346.88, a person may operate a vehicle that has a
device mounted to the front windshield if all of the following
apply:

(1) The device is designed to monitor the vehicle and provide
feedback to the operator for the purpose of safety or improving
vehicle operation.

(2) The device is mounted directly above, behind, or below
the mirror required in s. 347.40 (1) or, if no mirror is present, at
the location where the mirror would typically be mounted.

(3) The device is mounted in a manner consistent with appli-
cable federal requirements if the vehicle is a commercial motor
vehicle as defined in 49 CFR 390.5.

History:  2015 a. 160.

347.44 Painting requirements for school buses;
restrictions as to painting of other vehicles.  (1) All
school buses shall be painted as follows:

(a)  With the exception of trim, the body, including hood, fend-
ers, cowl and roof shall be painted a uniform color, national school
bus glossy yellow, according to national institute of standards and
technology specifications;

(b)  The body trim, if used, shall be black; and

(c)  The words, “SCHOOL BUS”, in black letters at least 8
inches high shall appear on both the front and rear of the upper
body area or on a sign attached thereto.

(2) A motor vehicle described in s. 340.01 (56) (b) may, but
need not, comply with sub. (1).  If the motor vehicle complies with
sub. (1), the vehicle shall comply with other regulations relating
to school buses prescribed by the department by rule.

(3) No person may paint or in any way designate a motor vehi-
cle in the manner described in sub. (1) except as expressly autho-
rized by this section.

(4) When a motor vehicle in compliance with sub. (1), s.
347.25 (2), and the rules of the department relating to school bus
equipment is no longer operated as a school bus, the registration
of the motor vehicle for another purpose may not be permitted
until the owner:

(a)  Physically removes the signs identifying the vehicle as a
school bus, the lights required by s. 347.25 (2) and such other
equipment as the department may specify by rule; and

(b)  Repaints the entire vehicle to a color other than national
school bus glossy yellow or any color commonly referred to as
yellow.

History:  1975 c. 121, 199, 224, 429; 1977 c. 29 s. 1654 (7) (e); 1977 c. 228; 1979
c. 221; 1983 a. 175; 1985 a. 287; 1989 a. 165.

Cross−reference:  See also ch. Trans 300, Wis. adm. code.

347.445 Crossing gates for school buses.  No person
may operate a school bus that is painted as provided in s. 347.44
unless it is equipped with a retractable crossing gate on the front
of the bus that, when in use, prevents children from crossing in
front of the school bus in such proximity that they are not visible
to the operator of the school bus from the operator’s seat.  The sec-
retary shall prescribe rules for the specifications, installation, and
operation of crossing gates required under this section.

History:  2001 a. 58.

347.447 Additional safety mirrors on school buses.  A
school bus that is painted as provided in s. 347.44 may be
equipped with a supplemental mirror system, mounted on the pas-
senger side of the school bus and designed to enhance operator
visibility of children near the passenger side of the school bus, if
the supplemental mirror system does not make inoperative or
diminish the performance of any other mirror or safety device
required on the school bus.

History:  2011 a. 223.

347.45 Tire equipment.  (1) All automobiles, motor trucks,
motor buses, truck tractors, trailers, semitrailers, recreational
vehicles, and mobile homes when operated upon a highway shall
be completely equipped with tires inflated with compressed air
and all other motor vehicles when operated on a highway shall be
equipped with tires of rubber or of some material or construction
of equal resiliency.  No person may operate on a highway any
motor vehicle, trailer, semitrailer, recreational vehicle, or mobile
home having any metal tire in contact with the roadway, except
that tire chains of reasonable proportions may be used when
required for safety because of snow, ice or other conditions tend-
ing to cause a vehicle to skid, and except as provided in sub. (2)
(c).

(2) No person shall operate on a highway any vehicle, includ-
ing farm tractors, implements of husbandry, animal−drawn vehi-
cles and road machinery, if such vehicle has on the periphery of
any of its tires any block, stud, flange, cleat, spike or other pro-
tuberance of any material other than rubber which projects beyond
the tread of the traction surface of the tire, except that:

(a)  Farm tractors, implements of husbandry, bicycles, animal−
drawn vehicles, and road machinery may be operated with metal
tires or tires having protuberances that will not injure the highway.

(b)  Tire chains of reasonable proportions may be used on any
vehicle when required for safety because of snow, ice or other con-
ditions tending to cause a vehicle to skid.

(c)  A pneumatic tire may have embedded in it wire or wire
coils for improving traction on ice and snow, but such tire shall be
so constructed that the percentage of wire or wire coils in contact
with the roadway does not exceed, after the first 1,000 miles of use
or operation, 5 percent of the total tire area in contact with the
roadway.  During the first 1,000 miles of use or operation of any
such tire the wire or wire coils in contact with the roadway shall
not exceed 20 percent of the total tire area in contact with the road-

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1991/277
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1999/109
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/16
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/16,%20s.%203445h
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/16,%20s.%203445m
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/16,%20s.%204060hg
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/16,%20s.%204060hj
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/16,%20s.%204060hw
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/16,%20s.%204060hy
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/100
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1979/163
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/65
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2019/50
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.35
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.43(1s)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29,%20s.%201654
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1981/347
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/187
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1993/16
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1999/85
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1999/85
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2007/60
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.32
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.34
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/2001%20WI%20App%2015
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/240%20Wis.%202d%20429
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/623%20N.W.2d%20201
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/wicourtofappeals/00-1171
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.88
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.40(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20390.5
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/160
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(56)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.44(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.44(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.44(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.44(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.25(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1975/121
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1975/199
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1975/224
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1975/429
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29,%20s.%201654
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/228
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1979/221
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1979/221
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/175
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/287
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1989/165
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20Trans%20300
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.44
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/58
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.44
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2011/223
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.45(2)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.45(2)(c)


Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats. 14 347.45 EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

way.  Tires equipped with tungsten carbide studs shall be limited
in usage and design as follows:

1.  The department shall, by rule, designate the times of year
during which any type of tire described in this paragraph may be
used.

2.  Such tires may be used only on authorized emergency vehi-
cles, school buses, vehicles used to deliver mail and automobiles
with out−of−state registrations and then only if such automobile
is in the course of passing through this state for a period of not
more than 30 days.

3.  Such studs shall not project more than one−eighth inch
beyond the tread surface of the tire.

(3) The authority in charge of maintenance of the highway in
question may, in its discretion, issue a special permit authorizing
operation upon such highway of a vehicle the operation of which
would otherwise be prohibited under this section.

(4) No person shall knowingly operate on any highway any
vehicle on which any tire has been regrooved or recut or offer such
tire for sale or exchange.  This subsection shall not apply to
regrooved or recut commercial vehicle tires which are designed
and constructed in such a manner that regrooving or recutting is
an acceptable and safe practice, nor does this subsection apply to
regrooving or recutting done in a tire recapping process.

(5) Notwithstanding sub. (2), an implement of husbandry
equipped with rubber tracks or tracks made of equivalent material
may be operated on a highway if such operation will not injure the
highway.

History:  1973 c. 338; 1977 c. 29 s. 1654 (7) (a); 1985 a. 187; 1997 a. 102; 1999
a. 85; 2007 a. 11; 2009 a. 177; 2011 a. 73; 2015 a. 15, 232.

Cross−reference:  See also ch. Trans 306 and s. Trans 305.30, Wis. adm. code.

347.455 Modifications to height of vehicle.  (1) Except
as further provided in this section, no person may operate any
vehicle on a highway if modifications have been made to the sus-
pension system, axles or chassis of the vehicle which cause any
portion of the vehicle to ride more than 4 inches above the height
of the vehicle specified by the manufacturer.  The height of the
vehicle shall be measured from the level surface on which the
vehicle stands.

(2) If the modification is for the purpose of strengthening or
improving handling, modifications may be made to the suspen-
sion system, axles or chassis of a 4−wheel drive vehicle or a motor
truck which has a gross weight of not more than 8,000 pounds
which cause the vehicle to ride 5 or less inches above the height
of the vehicle specified by the manufacturer.  The height of the
vehicle shall be measured from the level surface on which the
vehicle stands.

(3) A 4−wheel drive vehicle or a motor truck which has a gross
weight of not more than 8,000 pounds may be modified to use a
tire and wheel size which exceeds the wheel and tire size specified
by the manufacturer for the vehicle by up to 4 inches in radius.

(4) No person may operate any vehicle on a highway if modi-
fications have been made to the suspension system, axles, chassis
or exhaust system of the vehicle which cause any portion of the
vehicle, except the tires, to extend below lines drawn from the bot-
tom of each wheel rim to the points of contact between the tires
on the opposite side and opposite end of the vehicle and the level
surface on which the vehicle stands.

History:  1981 c. 216; 1993 a. 165.
Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.18, 305.29, and 305.31, Wis. adm. code.

347.46 Fenders and mudguards.  (1) No person shall
operate a vehicle of the tractor type on a highway unless the driv-
ing wheels of such vehicle are protected by suitable fenders.

(2) No person shall operate on a highway in intercity move-
ment any privately owned motor truck or privately owned semi-
trailer drawn by a truck tractor, except those motor trucks and
semitrailers equipped with dump bodies, unless such motor truck
or semitrailer is equipped with rear fenders or mudguards of such
material and so constructed and placed as to restrict to a minimum

the splashing of water, mud or other material which may be
thrown by the rear wheels.  Such rear fenders or mudguards shall
meet the following minimum specifications:

(a)  The fenders or mudguards shall cover the tire or multiple
tires they are protecting starting at the top from a line drawn verti-
cally through the center of the axle and extending rearward and
downward so that the fender or mudguard under any condition of
operation or loading of the vehicle has a ground clearance of not
more than one third of the horizontal distance from the center of
the rearmost axle to the fender or mudguard;

(b)  The fenders or mudguards shall be at least as wide as the
tire or multiple tires they are protecting;

(c)  If the vehicle is so designed and constructed that the rear
wheels are covered in the manner specified in pars. (a) and (b) by
means of fenders, body construction or other means of enclosure,
then no special mudguards are required.  Otherwise, the vehicle
shall be equipped with special mudguards to the extent necessary
to meet the requirements of pars. (a) and (b).

Cross−reference:  See also ss. Trans 305.22 and 305.53, Wis. adm. code.

347.47 Drawbars, trailer hitches and mobile home
couplings.  (1) No person shall operate a vehicle towing or
drawing another vehicle or vehicles on a highway if the drawbar
or other connection between any 2 vehicles exceeds 12 feet in
length.

(2) No person shall operate a motor vehicle drawing a trailer,
semitrailer, recreational vehicle, or mobile home upon a highway
unless the hitch and coupling attaching the trailer, semitrailer, rec-
reational vehicle, or mobile home to the vehicle by which it is
drawn is of such construction as to cause such trailer, semitrailer,
recreational vehicle, or mobile home to follow in direct line with
the propelling vehicle without dangerous side swing or wobble.
The hitch and coupling, the surface to which they are attached, and
the connections, shall be of sufficient strength to prevent failure
under all conditions of operation.  The hitch is that part of the con-
necting mechanism, including the coupling platform and its
attaching members or weldments, which is attached to the towing
vehicle.  The coupling is that part of the connecting mechanism,
including the coupling and its attaching members or weldments,
which is attached to the trailer, recreational vehicle, or mobile
home and by which connection is made to the hitch.  If a device
is used between the trailer proper and the coupling such as a pole,
such device shall also meet the requirements of this section.

(3) In addition to the hitch and coupling specified in sub. (2),
every towed vehicle shall be coupled to the towing vehicle by
means of safety chains, leveling bars or cables.  This requirement
does not apply to a semitrailer having a connecting device com-
posed of a 5th wheel and kingpin assembly, nor to a pole or pipe
dolly.  The safety chains, leveling bars or cables shall have only
the necessary slack to permit proper turning and safety chains or
cables shall be so connected to the towed and towing vehicle to
prevent the drawbar from dropping to the ground if the hitch or
coupling disengages.  Two separate lengths of safety chain, level-
ing bars or cable shall be required on all trailers and mobile homes;
however, the department may authorize use of such other appro-
priate equipment or methods approved by nationally recognized
organizations which recommend safety standards for motor vehi-
cles.

(4) Trailer, semitrailer, recreational vehicle, and mobile home
couplings and the safety chains, leveling bars or cables shall be of
such minimum strength, design and type as established by pub-
lished rule of the department.

History:  1971 c. 88; 1977 c. 29 s. 1654 (7) (e); 1979 c. 34; 2007 a. 11.
Cross−reference:  See also ch. Trans 308 and s. Trans 305.52, Wis. adm. code.

347.475 Airbags, prohibited practices.  (1) In this sec-
tion, “airbag” means an inflatable restraint system that is designed
to be installed and to operate in a motor vehicle to deploy by inflat-
ing upon an impact of the vehicle with another object.

(2) No person may, either personally or through an agent, sell,
install, reinstall, or distribute any previously deployed airbag.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.45(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1973/338
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29,%20s.%201654
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/187
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1997/102
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1999/85
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1999/85
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2007/11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/177
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2011/73
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/15
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2015/232
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20Trans%20306
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.30
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1981/216
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1993/165
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.18
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.31
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.46(2)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.46(2)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.46(2)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.46(2)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.22
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.53
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.47(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1971/88
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29,%20s.%201654
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1979/34
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2007/11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20Trans%20308
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.52


EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES  347.4815 Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats.

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

This subsection does not apply to the sale of a motor vehicle with
a previously deployed airbag unless the deployment is concealed
or disguised.

(3) No person may, either personally or through an agent,
remove, disconnect, tamper with, or otherwise circumvent the
operation of any airbag, except for the purpose of testing, repair-
ing, or maintaining an airbag, salvaging an undeployed airbag,
disposing of a deployed airbag, or replacing a deployed airbag
with a functional airbag.  This subsection does not apply to the
installation or use of an on−off switch by any person who is autho-
rized by federal law or regulation to install or use an on−off switch
for an airbag.

(4) No person may, either personally or through an agent,
install a cover or otherwise conceal or disguise a missing airbag
or a previously deployed airbag.

History:  2001 a. 28.

347.48 Safety belts and child safety restraint systems.
(1) SAFETY BELTS REQUIRED.  (a)  No person may buy, sell, lease,
trade or transfer a motor vehicle other than an automobile at retail
from or to Wisconsin residents unless the vehicle is equipped with
safety belts installed for use as required under 49 CFR 571, and
no such vehicle may be operated in this state unless such belts
remain installed.

(b)  No person may buy, sell, lease, trade or transfer an automo-
bile that is required under 49 CFR 571 to be equipped with safety
belts from or to a resident of this state unless the front designated
seating positions of the automobile are equipped with safety belts
installed for use as required under 49 CFR 571 and unless each
rear outboard designated seating position of the automobile is
equipped with a safety belt consisting of a combination of a pelvic
and upper torso restraint that conforms to standards for a Type 2
seat belt assembly under 49 CFR 571.209, and no automobile may
be operated in this state unless such belts remain installed.  Noth-
ing in this section applies to antique reproductions.

(2) TYPE AND MANNER OF INSTALLING.  All such safety belts
must be of a type and must be installed in a manner approved by
the department.  The department shall establish specifications and
requirements for approved types of safety belts and attachments
thereto.  The department will accept, as approved, all seat belt
installations and the belt and anchor meeting the society of auto-
motive engineers’ specifications.

(2m) REQUIRED USE.  (a)  In this subsection, “properly
restrained” means wearing a safety belt approved by the depart-
ment under sub. (2) and fastened in a manner prescribed by the
manufacturer of the safety belt which permits the safety belt to act
as a body restraint.

(b)  If a motor vehicle is required to be equipped with safety
belts in this state, no person may operate that motor vehicle unless
the person is properly restrained in a safety belt.

(c)  If a motor vehicle is required to be equipped with safety
belts in this state, no person may operate that motor vehicle unless
each passenger who is at least 8 years old and who is seated at a
designated seating position in the front seat required under 49
CFR 571 to have a safety belt installed or at a designated seating
position in the seats, other than the front seats, for which a safety
belt is required to be installed is properly restrained.

(d)  If a motor vehicle is required to be equipped with safety
belts in this state, no person who is at least 8 years old and who is
seated at a designated seating position in the front seat required
under 49 CFR 571 to have a safety belt installed or at a designated
seating position in the seats, other than the front seats, for which
a safety belt is required to be installed may be a passenger in that
motor vehicle unless the person is properly restrained.

(dm)  Paragraphs (b), (c) and (d) do not apply to the operation
of an authorized emergency vehicle by a law enforcement officer
or other authorized operator under circumstances in which com-
pliance could endanger the safety of the operator or another.

(dr)  Paragraph (b) does not apply to the operator of a vehicle
while on a route which requires the operator to make more than 10
stops per mile involving an exit from the vehicle in the scope of
his or her employment.  Paragraphs (c) and (d) do not apply to a
passenger while on a route which requires the passenger to make
more than 10 stops per mile involving an exit from the vehicle in
the scope of his or her employment.

(e)  The department shall, by rule, exempt from the require-
ments under pars. (b) to (d) persons who, because of a physical or
medical condition, cannot be properly restrained in a safety belt.

Cross−reference:  See also ch. Trans 315, Wis. adm. code.

(f)  1.  This subsection does not apply if the motor vehicle is a
taxicab or is not required to be equipped with safety belts under
sub. (1) or 49 CFR 571.

2.  This subsection does not apply to a privately owned motor
vehicle while being operated by a rural letter carrier for the deliv-
ery of mail or while being operated by a delivery person for the
delivery of newspapers or periodicals.

3.  This subsection does not apply to a motor vehicle while
being operated by a land surveying crew while conducting a land
survey along or upon the highway.

7.  This subsection does not apply to a farm truck or dual pur-
pose farm truck while being used in conjunction with the planting
or harvesting of crops and not being operated upon the highway.

(g)  Evidence of compliance or failure to comply with par. (b),
(c) or (d) is admissible in any civil action for personal injuries or
property damage resulting from the use or operation of a motor
vehicle.  Notwithstanding s. 895.045, with respect to injuries or
damages determined to have been caused by a failure to comply
with par. (b), (c) or (d), such a failure shall not reduce the recovery
for those injuries or damages by more than 15 percent.  This para-
graph does not affect the determination of causal negligence in the
action.

(gm)  A law enforcement officer may not take a person into
physical custody solely for a violation of this subsection or sub.
(1) or (2) or a local ordinance in conformity with this subsection,
sub. (1) or (2) or rules of the department.

(3m) SAFETY BELT INFORMATION PROGRAM.  The department
shall develop and administer a public information program to pro-
mote safety belt awareness and use.

(4) CHILD SAFETY RESTRAINT SYSTEMS REQUIRED; STANDARDS;

EXEMPTIONS.  (ag)  In this subsection:

1.  “Child booster seat” means a child passenger restraint sys-
tem that meets the applicable federal standards under 49 CFR
571.213 and is designed to elevate a child from a vehicle seat to
allow the vehicle’s safety belt to be properly positioned over the
child’s body.

2.  “Designated seating position” has the meaning given in 49
CFR 571.3.

3.  “Properly restrained” means any of the following:

a.  With respect to par. (as) 1. and 2., fastened in a manner pre-
scribed by the manufacturer of the child safety restraint system
which permits the system to act as a body restraint but does not
include a system in which the only body restraint is a safety belt
of the type required under sub. (1).

b.  With respect to par. (as) 3., wearing a safety belt consisting
of a combination lap belt and shoulder harness approved by the
department under sub. (2) and fastened in a manner prescribed by
the manufacturer of the safety belt so that the safety belt properly
fits across the child’s lap and the center of the child’s chest in a
manner appropriate to the child’s height, weight, and age that per-
mits the safety belt to act as a body restraint.

c.  With respect to par. (as) 4., fastened in a manner prescribed
by the manufacturer of the system which permits the system to act
as a body restraint.

(am)  No person may transport a child under the age of 8 in a
motor vehicle unless the child is restrained in compliance with par.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/28
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571.209
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20Trans%20315
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/895.045
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571.213
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571.213
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571.3
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571.3
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)3.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)4.


Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats. 16 347.48 EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

(as) in a safety restraint system that is appropriate to the child’s age
and size and that meets the standards established by the depart-
ment under this paragraph.  The department shall, by rule, estab-
lish standards in compliance with applicable federal standards,
including standards under 49 CFR 571.213, for child safety
restraint systems.

(as)  A child under the age of 8 years who is being transported
in a motor vehicle shall be restrained as follows:

1.  If the child is less than one year old or weighs less than 20
pounds, the child shall be properly restrained in a rear−facing
child safety restraint system, positioned at a designated seating
position in a back passenger seat of the vehicle if the vehicle is
equipped with a back passenger seat.

2.  Subject to subd. 1., if the child is at least one year old and
weighs at least 20 pounds but is less than 4 years old or weighs less
than 40 pounds, the child shall be properly restrained as provided
in subd. 1. or properly restrained in a forward−facing child safety
restraint system, positioned at a designated seating position in a
back passenger seat of the vehicle if the vehicle is equipped with
a back passenger seat.

3.  Subject to subds. 1. and 2., if the child is at least 4 years old
but less than 8 years old, weighs at least 40 pounds but not more
than 80 pounds, and is not more than 57 inches in height, the child
shall be properly restrained as provided in subd. 2. or properly
restrained in a child booster seat.

4.  Subject to subds. 1. to 3., if the child is less than 8 years old,
the child shall be properly restrained as provided in subds. 1. to 3.
or properly restrained in a safety belt approved by the department
under sub. (2).

(b)  The department may, by rule, exempt from the require-
ments under pars. (am) and (as) any child who because of a physi-
cal or medical condition or body size cannot be placed in a child
safety restraint system, child booster seat, or safety belt.

(c)  This subsection does not apply if the motor vehicle is a
motor bus, school bus, taxicab, moped, motorcycle or is not
required to be equipped with safety belts under sub. (1) or 49 CFR
571.

(d)  Evidence of compliance or failure to comply with pars.
(am) and (as) is admissible in any civil action for personal injuries
or property damage resulting from the use or operation of a motor
vehicle but failure to comply with pars. (am) and (as) does not by
itself constitute negligence.

History:  1975 c. 337; 1977 c. 29 s. 1654 (7) (a); 1981 c. 327; 1983 a. 285; 1987
a. 132 ss. 3 to 6, 11; 1987 a. 399; 1989 a. 22; 1991 a. 26, 39, 198, 269; 1997 a. 190;
2005 a. 106; 2009 a. 28; 2011 a. 111.

Cross−reference:  See also ch. Trans 310 and s. Trans 305.27, Wis. adm. code.

“Seat belt negligence” and “passive negligence” are distinguished.  Jury instruc-
tions regarding seat belts are recommended.  A method for apportioning damages in
seat belt negligence cases is adopted. Foley v. City of West Allis, 113 Wis. 2d 475,
335 N.W.2d 824 (1983).

A common law action for contribution may not be brought against a person who
violates sub. (2m) (g).  Gaertner v. Holcka, 219 Wis. 2d 436, 580 N.W.2d 271 (1998),
96−2726.

A statute requiring the wearing of seat belts in motor vehicles would be constitu-
tional.  58 Atty. Gen. 241.

The seat belt defense — state of the law.  Kircher, 53 MLR 172.

The seat belt defense — the trial lawyer’s view.  Bowman, 53 MLR 191.

Practical defense problems — the expert’s view.  Huelke, 53 MLR 203.

The seat belt as a cause of injury.  Snyder, 53 MLR 211.

347.485 Protective headgear for use on motorcycles.
(1) (a)  No person who holds an instructional permit under s.
343.07 (4) or who is under 18 years of age may operate or ride
upon a motorcycle on any highway unless the person is wearing
protective headgear of a type which meets the standards estab-
lished for motorcycle operation in 49 CFR 571.218 and the chin
strap is properly fastened.

(am)  No person may operate a motorcycle when carrying a
passenger under 18 years of age unless the passenger is wearing
protective headgear.

(b)  No person may sell or offer for sale any protective headgear
for use by a driver or passenger on a motorcycle, not meeting the

standards established for motorcycle operation in 49 CFR
571.218.

(2) (a)  No person may operate a motorcycle on any highway
without wearing any of the following eye protection:

1.  A protective face shield attached to the headgear.

2.  Glasses.

3.  Goggles.

(b)  Except for photosensitive corrective glasses prescribed by
an ophthalmologist, physician, oculist or optometrist, eye protec-
tion worn during hours of darkness may not be tinted or darkened.

(c)  Notwithstanding par. (a), if the vehicle is an autocycle
equipped with a windshield or a motorcycle equipped with a
windshield that rises a minimum of 15 inches above the handlebar,
the use of other eye protective devices is not mandatory.

(d)  This subsection shall not apply to persons operating a
motorcycle in a parade sanctioned by the local municipality.

(3) No person may rent, lease or loan a motorcycle to another
unless he or she has ascertained that such party has the required
eye protection and, if the party holds an instructional permit under
s. 343.07 (4) or is under 18 years of age, that the party has the
required protective headgear for operating the motorcycle.

(4) Every person in the motorcycle rental business shall have
clean, usable protective headgear for rent in sufficient quantity to
care for the needs of all customers.

History:  1977 c. 29 s. 1654 (7) (e); 1977 c. 204, 447; 1983 a. 133, 243, 538; 1985
a. 65, 85; 2019 a. 50.

Three−wheeled trucks and automobiles, golf carts, and other special purpose vehi-
cles such as street sweepers, industrial fork−lifts, and motorized wheelbarrows are
not motorcycles, and operators are not subject to this section.  58 Atty. Gen. 17.

347.486 General requirements.  (1) No person may oper-
ate a motorcycle if the handlegrips of the handlebars rise more
than 30 inches above the lowest point of the top of the driver’s seat
when the seat is occupied.

(2) No person may operate a motorcycle with an improvised,
defective or repaired handlebar.

(3) No person may operate a motorcycle without a functioning
muffler.

History:  1979 c. 163; 1983 a. 243; 1985 a. 65; 2019 a. 50.
Cross−reference:  See also subch. III of ch. Trans 305, Wis. adm. code.

347.487 Seating requirements.  Except as provided in s.
346.595 (3m), no more than 2 persons may ride on a motorcycle
during operation, and then only if the vehicle is equipped and
designed with adequate seats and foot rests or pegs.  Foot rests or
pegs shall be mounted in accordance with manufacturer’s specifi-
cations.  In the absence of manufacturer’s specifications, foot rests
or pegs for the passenger shall be located on the same horizontal
plane as those of the operator.

History:  1983 a. 243; 1985 a. 65; 2019 a. 50.

347.488 Moped equipment.  No person may operate a
moped unless:

(1) The moped complies with all federal emission, equipment
and safety standards applicable at the time of manufacture;

(2) None of the original equipment installed on the moped by
the manufacturer has been replaced with equipment of lesser per-
formance characteristics; and

(3) The performance characteristics of the moped have not
been altered so as to enable it to exceed the maximum design
speed authorized for a moped under s. 340.01 (29m).

History:  1977 c. 288.

347.489 Lamps and other equipment on bicycles and
other vehicles and devices.  (1) No person may operate a
bicycle, motor bicycle, personal delivery device, electric scooter,
or electric personal assistive mobility device upon a highway,
sidewalk, bicycle lane, or bicycle way during hours of darkness
unless the bicycle, motor bicycle, personal delivery device, elec-
tric scooter, or electric personal assistive mobility device is
equipped with or, with respect to a bicycle or motor bicycle, the

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571.213
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)2.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)3.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)3.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(am)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(am)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(am)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(as)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1975/337
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29,%20s.%201654
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1981/327
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/285
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1987/132
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1987/132
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1987/132,%20s.%203
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1987/132,%20s.%206
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1987/132,%20s.%2011
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1987/399
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1989/22
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1991/26
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1991/39
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1991/198
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1991/269
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1997/190
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2005/106
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/28
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2011/111
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/ch.%20Trans%20310
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/Trans%20305.27
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/113%20Wis.%202d%20475
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/335%20N.W.2d%20824
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/219%20Wis.%202d%20436
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/courts/580%20N.W.2d%20271
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/wisupremecourt/96-2726
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/343.07(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571.218
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571.218
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/49%20CFR%20571.218
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.485(2)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/343.07(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/29,%20s.%201654
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/204
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/447
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/133
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/538
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/65
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/65
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/85
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2019/50
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1979/163
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/65
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2019/50
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/administrativecode/subch.%20III%20of%20ch.%20Trans%20305
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/346.595(3m)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/65
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2019/50
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/340.01(29m)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/288


EQUIPMENT OF VEHICLES  347.5017 Updated 21−22 Wis. Stats.

Updated 2021−22 Wis. Stats.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  July 9, 2024.

2021−22 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2023 Wis. Act 272 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on July 9, 2024.  Published and certified under s. 35.18.  Changes effective after July 9,
2024, are designated by NOTES. (Published 7−9−24)

operator is wearing, a lamp emitting a white light visible from a
distance of at least 500 feet to the front of the bicycle, motor bicy-
cle, personal delivery device, electric scooter, or electric personal
assistive mobility device.  A bicycle, motor bicycle, personal
delivery device, electric scooter, or electric personal assistive
mobility device shall also be equipped with a red reflector that has
a diameter of at least 2 inches of surface area or, with respect to
an electric scooter or an electric personal assistive mobility
device, that is a strip of reflective tape that has at least 2 square
inches of surface area, on the rear so mounted and maintained as
to be visible from all distances from 50 to 500 feet to the rear when
directly in front of lawful upper beams of headlamps on a motor
vehicle.  A lamp emitting a steady or flashing red light visible from
a distance of 500 feet to the rear may be used in lieu of the red
reflector.

(1m) No person may operate a personal delivery device upon
a sidewalk unless the device is equipped with a braking system
that, when engaged, will enable the personal delivery device to
come to a controlled stop.

(2) No person may operate a bicycle, motor bicycle, electric
scooter, or electric personal assistive mobility device upon a high-
way, bicycle lane, or bicycle way unless it is equipped with a brake
in good working condition, adequate to control the movement of
and to stop the bicycle, motor bicycle, electric scooter, or electric
personal assistive mobility device whenever necessary.

(3) No bicycle, motor bicycle, electric scooter, or electric per-
sonal assistive mobility device may be equipped with nor may any
person riding upon a bicycle, motor bicycle, electric scooter, or
electric personal assistive mobility device use any siren or com-
pression whistle.

(3m) (a)  1.  After January 1, 2018, a manufacturer or distribu-
tor of electric bicycles shall permanently affix to the electric bicy-
cle a label containing all of the following information in Arial font
of a minimum size of 9 point:

a.  The classification number of the electric bicycle.

b.  The speed at which the motor will cease to provide assist-
ance or power.

c.  The wattage of the motor equipped to the electric bicycle.

2.  If a person modifies an electric bicycle so as to change the
classification of the electric bicycle, the person shall prepare and
affix to the electric bicycle a revised label satisfying the require-
ments of subd. 1.

(b)  An electric bicycle shall meet the requirements of 16 CFR
Part 1512, as if the electric bicycle were a bicycle as defined under
16 CFR 1512.2 (a).

(c)  An electric bicycle shall operate so that the motor ceases
to provide assistance or power when the brakes are applied or the
motor ceases to provide assistance or power when the rider stops
pedaling.

(d)  No person may operate a class 3 electric bicycle unless the
electric bicycle is equipped with a speedometer that with reason-
able accuracy registers the speed of the electric bicycle in miles
per hour.

(4) No person may operate a personal delivery device upon a
sidewalk unless the device is equipped with a plate or marker that
is in a position to be clearly visible and that identifies the name and
contact information of the personal delivery device operator.

History:  1973 c. 182, 333; 1977 c. 208; 1983 a. 243 s. 39; Stats. 1983 s. 347.489;
1995 a. 138; 2001 a. 90; 2011 a. 73; 2017 a. 13; 2019 a. 11, 34.

347.49 Equipment of vehicles transporting flammable
liquids.  (1) In this section, “flammable liquid” means any gaso-
line, naphtha, benzine, fuel oil, crude oil, kerosene or other liquid
which has a flashpoint of 80 degrees Fahrenheit or less as deter-
mined by a Tagliabue or equivalent closed−cup test device.

(2) No person shall transport in or on any motor vehicle, trailer
or semitrailer upon a highway any flammable liquid except by

tank mounted on or attached to or structurally a part of such motor
vehicle, trailer or semitrailer and which is plainly marked to show
that flammable liquids are being transported therein.

(3) This section does not apply to transportation of flammable
liquids as freight only by the consumer from the place of purchase
to the place of consumption if such liquids are transported in
drums or other containers having a capacity of not more than 100
gallons each and if the total amount of such liquids so transported
in any one vehicle or combination of vehicles does not exceed 500
gallons.

History:  2017 a. 365 s. 111.

347.50 Penalties.  (1) Any person violating ss. 347.35 to
347.49, except s. 347.385 (5), s. 347.413 (1) or s. 347.415 (1m),
(2) and (3) to (5) or s. 347.417 (1) or s. 347.475 or s. 347.48 (2m)
or (4) or s. 347.489, may be required to forfeit not less than $10
nor more than $200.

(1m) Any person violating s. 347.385 (5) may be fined not
more than $10,000 or imprisoned for not more than one year in the
county jail, or both, for each violation.

(1s) Any person violating s. 347.413 (1) or 347.417 (1) may
be fined not less than $150 nor more than $600, or may be impris-
oned for not more than 6 months, or both for the first offense.  For
a 2nd or subsequent conviction within 5 years, the person may be
fined not less than $300 nor more than $1,000, or imprisoned for
not more than 6 months, or both.

(1t) In addition to the penalty under sub. (1s), if a person who
is subject to an order under s. 343.301 violates s. 347.413, the
court shall extend the order restricting the person’s operating priv-
ilege under s. 343.301 (1g) or (2m) for 6 months for each violation.

(2) Any person violating s. 347.415 (1m), (2), and (3) to (5)
or 347.475 may be fined not more than $5,000 or imprisoned for
not more than one year in the county jail, or both, for each viola-
tion.

(2m) (a)  Any person who violates s. 347.48 (2m) (b) or (c)
and any person 16 years of age or older who violates s. 347.48
(2m) (d) shall be required to forfeit $10.

(b)  No forfeiture may be assessed for a violation of s. 347.48
(2m) (d) if the violator is less than 16 years of age when the offense
occurs.

(3) (a)  Any person violating s. 347.48 (4) (am) may be
required to forfeit not less than $30 nor more than $75 if the child
is less than 4 years old.

(b)  No forfeiture may be assessed under par. (a) if all of the fol-
lowing apply:

1.  The motor vehicle was not equipped with a child safety
restraint system meeting the requirements under s. 347.48 (4)
(am) at the time the uniform traffic citation was issued.

2.  The person provides proof that, within 30 days after the uni-
form traffic citation was issued, a child safety restraint system
meeting the requirements under s. 347.48 (4) (am) was purchased
or leased and properly installed in the motor vehicle.

3.  The person has not, within the immediately preceding 3
years, been issued a uniform traffic citation for a violation of s.
347.48 (4) (am).

(4) Any person violating s. 347.48 (4) (am) may be required
to forfeit not less than $10 nor more than $25 for the first offense
if the child is at least 4 years old and less than 8 years old.  For a
2nd or subsequent conviction within 3 years involving a child who
is at least 4 years old and less than 8 years old, a person may be
required to forfeit not less than $25 nor more than $200.

(5) Any person violating s. 347.489 may be required to forfeit
not more than $20.

History:  1971 c. 278; 1975 c. 121; 1981 c. 327; 1983 a. 243; 1985 a. 309; 1987
a. 132; 1989 a. 22; 1991 a. 26, 277; 2001 a. 28; 2003 a. 166; 2005 a. 106, 193; 2007
a. 97; 2009 a. 28, 100; 2017 a. 124.

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.489(3m)(a)1.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/16%20CFR%201512
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/16%20CFR%201512
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/cfr/16%20CFR%201512.2(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1973/182
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1973/333
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1977/208
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243,%20s.%2039
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1995/138
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/90
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2011/73
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2017/13
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2019/11
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2019/34
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2017/365
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2017/365,%20s.%20111
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.35
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.49
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.385(5)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.413(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.415(1m)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.415(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.415(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.415(5)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.417(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.475
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.489
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.385(5)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.413(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.417(1)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.50(1s)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/343.301
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.413
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/343.301(1g)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/343.301(2m)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.415(1m)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.415(2)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.415(3)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.415(5)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.475
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(b)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(2m)(d)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(am)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.50(3)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(am)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(am)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(am)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(am)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.48(4)(am)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/347.489
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1971/278
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1975/121
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1981/327
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1983/243
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1985/309
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1987/132
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1987/132
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1989/22
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1991/26
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/1991/277
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2001/28
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2003/166
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2005/106
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2005/193
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2007/97
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2007/97
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/28
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2009/100
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/acts/2017/124


 

MEMORANDUM  

Date: 8/2/24 
To: Human Resources & Information Technology Committee 
From:  Charles E Sepers, Jr, PhD, MPH, Health Officer/Director, Department of 

Public Health 
Subject: Exclusion of Chicken Hens from Maximum Animal Provision 
 
 
The purpose of this memo is to highlight the changes made to the existing ordinance 
regarding the number and types of animals allowed per household or dwelling unit. 

Original Ordinance Language:  

Sec. 3-12. Maximum number of animals. 
"No person or household shall keep more than six (6) animals, the maximum number of 
dogs being three (3), the maximum number of rabbits being two (2), on any City lot, land 
parcel, or dwelling unit if in a multiple dwelling unit, with the exception of a litter of pups or 
kittens, which may be kept for a period of time not to exceed five (5) months from birth. 
This section does not apply to premises holding a valid kennel license." 

Modified Ordinance Language: 

Sec. 3-12. Maximum number of animals. 
"No person or household shall keep more than six (6) animals, the maximum number of 
dogs being three (3), the maximum number of rabbits being two (2), on any City lot, land 
parcel, or dwelling unit if in a multiple dwelling unit, with the exception of a litter of pups or 
kittens, which may be kept for a period of time not to exceed five (5) months from birth. 
This section does not apply to premises holding a valid kennel license or to chicken hens 
maintained under a valid permit issued by the Health Department." 

Summary of Changes: 

1. Exception of Chicken Hens: The modified ordinance now includes an exception 
for chicken hens. Specifically, it allows for chicken hens to be kept if they are 
maintained under a valid permit issued by the Health Department. 

o New Exception Clause: "or to chicken hens maintained under a valid 
permit issued by the Health Department." 

This amendment provides clarity and a legal framework for residents wishing to keep 
chicken hens within city limits, under regulated conditions set by the Health Department. 



100-24 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 19-86 OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO PARKING RESTRICTIONS. 

(Municipal Services Committee 8-7-2024) 
 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 
 

Section 1:  That Section 19-86 of Chapter 19 of the Municipal Code of the City of Appleton, 

relating to parking restrictions, is hereby created as follows.  This ordinance supersedes and repeals 

any conflicting ordinance regarding parking in the designated area. 

 
Parking be prohibited on the west side of Summit Street from Packard Street to Elsie 
Street. 
 
 
Section 2: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication, and upon its passage and publication, the Traffic Engineer is authorized and directed to 

make the necessary changes in the Parking District Map in accordance with this Ordinance. 

101-24 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 19-86 OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO PARKING RESTRICTIONS. 

(Municipal Services Committee 8-7-2024) 
 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 
 

Section 1:  That Section 19-86 of Chapter 19 of the Municipal Code of the City of Appleton, 

relating to parking restrictions, is hereby created as follows.  This ordinance supersedes and repeals 

any conflicting ordinance regarding parking in the designated area. 

 
Parking be prohibited on the west side of Summit Street from Prospect Avenue to 
Fourth Street. 



 
 
Section 2: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication, and upon its passage and publication, the Traffic Engineer is authorized and directed to 

make the necessary changes in the Parking District Map in accordance with this Ordinance. 


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CC Minutes 8-7-24
	0002_1_August 21 2024 Council Appointments Memo
	0003_1_Women's Equality Proclamation 2024
	0004_1_Sampson Street - Initial Resolution - Final
	0005_1_Location 1 Awning Applications
	0005_2_Location 2 Awning Applications
	0005_3_Location 3 Awning Applications
	0005_4_Location 4 Awning Applications
	0005_5_Main Entrance Awning Applications
	0006_1_J.H Findorff - City Center St - long term permit 9-6-24
	0008_1_MSC Memo Land Acquisition services Lawe St 08-12-2024
	0009_1_Catherine-North (Yield to Stop)
	0010_1_Mary-North (north leg) (Uncontrolled to Stop)
	0011_1_Mary-North (south leg) (Uncontrolled to Stop)
	0012_1_Mason St 1000S - Jefferson ES Parking Changes
	0013_1_North-Tonka (Uncontrolled to Stop)
	0014_1_Sampson Vacation Combined
	Application_NSampsonSt_SouthofWinnebago_StreetVacation
	ExhibitMap_NSampsonSt_SouthofWinnebago_StreetVacation
	Sampson St VAC Aerial
	Sampson St VAC Vicinity

	0015_1_SISP Contract Award_Amendment Memo
	0016_1_3039 N Ballard Rd Drive Extension Variance Request Memo
	0017_1_Corner Pub Alcohol Lic Non-Renewal MEMO - Atty
	0017_2_2024 Corner Pub Non-Renewal Hearing Notice
	0017_3_2023 Non-Use of License Letter- Corner Pub
	LEGAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT
	Office of the City Clerk

	0017_4_CORNER_PUB 2023 Inspection Report
	0017_5_CORNER_PUB 2024 Inspection Report
	0017_6_Corner Pub 2024.2025 Renewal
	0017_7_Kim Williams-inspection letter
	0017_8_Inspections SL Memo- Corner Pub 7-9-2024
	0017_9_7-10-24 - Corner Pub- Report of SL to Common Council
	0017_10_Council Follow-up Memo CornerPub 7-15-24
	0017_11_7-24-24 Corner Pub Report of SL to Council
	0017_12_8-14-24 Corner Pub SL Findings of Fact
	0018_1_Rye Restaurant Premise Amend. 2024
	0019_1_Dollar General 6535 Redacted
	0020_1_Dollar General 6535 Tob Redacted
	0021_1_Dollar General 21851 Redacted
	0022_1_Dollar General 21851 Tob Redacted
	0023_1_Trout Museum Premise Amend. 9.5.24
	0024_1_Fox Cities PAC Temp Premise Amend 8.21.24
	0024_2_Temp Premises Amendment - PAC - Special Issuance Order 8.19.24
	0025_1_Fox Cities PAC Temp Premise Amend 10.4.24
	0026_1_Rivera Restaurants LLC Reserve Class B Combo Redacted
	0027_1_Gonzalez Mexican Grill LLC Class B Reserve Combo Redacted
	0028_1_May's Kitchen Redacted
	0029_1_Wisconsin Ave Pantry CTV Redacted
	0030_1_Northland Amoco Tobacco Redacted
	0031_1_Richmond Citgo Tobacco Redacted
	0032_1_StaffReport_NSampsonSt_ StreetVacation_For8-14-24
	0033_1_DispositionofSurplusLand_MemotoCPC_For8-14-24
	0034_1_2024 Reid Irrigation Update Memo
	0034_2_2024 Reid Irrigation Update Sole Source Request
	0035_1_Irish Fest - Request Private Event Memo
	0036_1_Mom Prom Memo - Raffle License
	0037_1_8-R-24 Require Super Majority Vote on Wheel Tax Fee Changes
	0038_1_Finance Committee Memo - HR Strategic Planning ARPA
	0039_1_I-41 Ballard SMFA Finance Memo w Attachment 08-12-2024
	I-41 Ballard SMFA Finance Memo 08-12-2024.pdf
	SMFA_1130-65-76_Ballard_Road_CTH_E.pdf

	0041_1_FY24 Bus Grant Award for Appleton - Congratulations! email 
	0042_1_2024 RAISE Grant Award letter
	0043_1_POL_N200_Child Passenger Safety Program_DRAFT
	0043_2_POL_N200_Attachments
	PRO_N201_ChildPassengerSafetyProgramProcedure_DRAFT.pdf
	A Child Passenger Safety (CPS) program will ensure caregivers have access to a car seat for their children along with proper installation and education.
	Referrals
	Record Retention

	PRO_N202_ChildPassengerSeatAppointmentScheduling_DRAFT.pdf
	PRO_N203_ChildPassengerFittingStation_DRAFT.pdf
	Appleton_SafeKidsChecklist_2024.pdf
	Appleton_Car Seat Voucher Form_2024.pdf
	To be completed by CPS Tech installing seat

	Recipient_Survey_Form.pdf
	Child Passenger Safety Restraint Systems Secion 347.48 Wisconsin Statutes.pdf

	0044_1_2024.08.02_AnimalOrdinanceMemorandum_a
	0046_1_Ordinances to Council 8-21-24

	Fee: $40.00
	Paid yes or no: 
	Name print: Greg VanDenPlas
	Company: RODAC Development & Construction
	Address 1: 3346 S. Pine Tree Road
	Address 2: Green Bay, WI 54155
	Telephone: (920) 676-9411
	email: greg@rodacllc.com
	Date: 7.16.2024
	Street Address: 10 E College Ave
	Multiple Streets: 
	Other: 
	City Manual Pages: 
	State Manual Pages: 
	Permit #: 
	Check Box13: Off
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box15: Yes
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box22: Off
	Check Box31: Off
	Check Box32: Yes
	Check Box33: Off
	Check Box34: Off
	Check Box35: Yes
	Check Box36: Off
	Check Box37: Off
	Check Box38: Yes
	Text39: 
	Date40_af_date: 
	Text41: per Mike - This is for a dumpsters, comparable to the stalls on College Ave in from of Park Central redevelopment last year.   Except I asked them to find a spot off College Ave with Farmers Market and Octoberfest in the works.    They may need to incorporate a port-a-potty, but that is the motivation for the screened fencing.  
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box4: Yes
	Check Box20: Yes
	Check Box23: Off
	Check Box24: Off
	Check Box25: Off
	Check Box26: Off
	Check Box27: Off
	Check Box28: Off
	Check Box29: Yes
	Check Box30: Off
	Check Box42: Off
	Check Box39: Off
	Check Box40: Off
	Check Box41: Off
	Check Box21: Yes
	Check Box6: Yes
	Check Box7: Off
	Text1: Dumpster location for ongoing tenant buildout of space at 10E College Ave for Prevea Health Clinic.
	Text2: Perimeter of dumpster to be enclosed with 6' high privacy screen
	Date4_af_date: 8/6/24
	Date5_af_date: 9/13/24
	Text6: 
	Date1_af_date: 8/6/2024
	Date2_af_date: 11/15/24
	Date3_af_date: 
	Company Name: RODAC Development & Construction
	Agent: Greg VanDenPlas
	Company Address: 3346 S. Pine Tree Road, Green Bay, WI 54155
	Phone Number: (920) 676-9411/greg@rodacllc.com
	Reason: Dumpster location for active construction site
	Location: Morrison (west) at College Ave (north)
	Zone  Space: Zone 9201 - Meters 217, 218 & 219
	Dates: 8/6/24(9/13/24) apprv....to project completion 11.15.24
	Amount Due:  $2,478.20/
	Approved by: Pete Neuberger/ RT
	1: 
	Date1_af_date: 7/24/24

	Bond Number: 
	Bond Period: 
	2: 
	Company Name: RODAC Development & Construction
	Date: 7.16.2024

	Print Name: Greg VanDenPlas
	Insurance Carrier: Auto Owners
	Insurance Agent Name and Phone Number: Alliance Insurance Centers-(920) 330-9000
	Policy Number: 61648880
	Policy Period: 5.15.2024 to 5.15.2025
	Bond Carrier: 
	Bond Agent Name and Phone Number: 


